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This Offering Circular replaces and supersedes the Offering Circular dated 22nd November, 2004
describing the Programme (as defined below). Any Notes (as defined below) issued under the Programme
on or after the date of this Offering Circular are issued subject to the provisions described herein. This
does not affect any Notes already in issue.
This Offering Circular comprises a base prospectus for the purposes of Article 5.4 of Directive
2003/71/EC (the ‘‘Prospectus Directive’’).
Under the U.S.$15,000,000,000 Euro Note Programme (the ‘‘Programme’’), each of Banco
Comercial Português, S.A. (the ‘‘Bank’’ or ‘‘BCP’’), acting either through its head office or through its
international Madeira branch, (Sucursal Financeira Internacional) and BCP Finance Bank, Ltd. (‘‘BCP
Finance’’ and, together with the Bank in its capacity as an issuer of Notes under the Programme, the
‘‘Issuers’’ and each an ‘‘Issuer’’) may from time to time issue notes in bearer and/or registered form
(respectively, ‘‘Bearer Notes’’ and ‘‘Registered Notes’’ and together the ‘‘Notes’’, which expression shall
include Senior Notes and Subordinated Notes (each as defined below)) denominated in any currency
agreed between the Issuer of such Notes (the ‘‘relevant Issuer’’) and the relevant Dealer (as defined
herein). The payment of all amounts payable in respect of Notes issued by BCP Finance will be
unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by the Bank.
Notes issued by BCP Finance will be guaranteed by the Bank (the ‘‘Guarantor’’) acting through its
international Madeira branch ‘‘Sucursal Financeira Internacional’’. Notes issued by BCP Finance will only be
guaranteed through the head office of the Bank after (i) an appropriate resolution has been passed by its
Board of Directors and (ii) the Dealers have been provided with a legal opinion from the Bank’s external
legal advisers in Portugal.
The Final Terms (as defined below) for each Tranche (as defined below) of Notes will state whether
the Notes of such Tranche are to be (i) senior Notes which, in the case of Notes issued by BCP Finance,
will be guaranteed on an unsubordinated basis (‘‘Senior Notes’’) or (ii) subordinated Notes which, in the
case of Notes issued by BCP Finance, will be guaranteed on a subordinated basis (‘‘Subordinated Notes’’).
The maximum aggregate nominal amount of all Notes from time to time outstanding will not
exceed U.S.$15,000,000,000 (or its equivalent in other currencies calculated as described herein), subject
to increase as provided herein. A description of the restrictions applicable at the date of this Offering
Circular relating to the maturity of certain Notes is set out on page 10.
The Notes will be issued on a continuing basis to one or more of the Programme Dealers or Issue
Dealers (each as defined herein) appointed under the Programme from time to time. The Programme
Dealers and the Issue Dealers are herein together referred to as the ‘‘Dealers’’ and references to a ‘‘Dealer’’
are to a Programme Dealer or, as the case may be, an Issue Dealer. References to the ‘‘relevant Dealer’’ are
references to the Dealer or Dealers with whom the relevant Issuer has agreed or proposes to agree the
terms of an issue of Notes under the Programme.
An investment in Notes issued under the Programme involves certain risks. For a discussion of
these risks see ‘‘Risk Factors’’.
Application has been made to the Financial Services Authority in its capacity as competent
authority under the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 (the ‘‘UK Listing Authority’’) for Notes
issued under the Programme during the period of twelve months from the date of this Offering Circular
to be admitted to the official list of the UK Listing Authority (the ‘‘Official List’’) and to the London Stock
Exchange plc (the ‘‘London Stock Exchange’’) for such Notes to be admitted to trading on the London
Stock Exchange’s Gilt Edged and Fixed Interest Market. References in this Offering Circular to Notes
being ‘‘listed’’ (and all related references) shall mean that such Notes have been admitted to trading on the
London Stock Exchange’s Gilt Edged and Fixed Interest Market and have been admitted to the Official
List. The London Stock Exchange’s Gilt Edged and Fixed Interest Market is a regulated market for the
purposes of Directive 93/22/EEC (the Investment Services Directive). The Programme provides that
Notes may be listed on such other or further stock exchange(s) as may be agreed between the relevant
Issuer and the relevant Dealer. Each Issuer may also issue unlisted Notes.
Notice of the aggregate nominal amount, the issue price, the issue date and maturity date of the
Notes, interest (if any) payable in respect of the Notes and any other terms and conditions not contained
herein which are applicable to each Tranche of Notes will be set forth in Final Terms (the ‘‘Final Terms’’)
which, with respect to Notes to be listed on the London Stock Exchange will be delivered to the UK
Listing Authority and the London Stock Exchange, respectively.
The Programme has been rated ‘‘A1/Prime-1’’ (in respect of Senior Notes with a maturity of more
than one year and Senior Notes with a maturity of one year or less, respectively) and ‘‘A2’’ (in respect of
Subordinated Notes) by Moody’s Investors Service Limited (‘‘Moody’s’’), ‘‘A-/A-2’’ (in respect of Senior
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Notes with a maturity of more than one year and Senior Notes with a maturity of one year or less,
respectively) and ‘‘BBB+’’ (in respect of Subordinated Notes) by Standard & Poor’s Rating Services, a
Division of McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc. (‘‘Standard & Poor’s’’), and ‘‘A+/F1’’ (in respect of Senior Notes
with a maturity of more than one year and Senior Notes with a maturity of one year or less, respectively)
and ‘‘A’’ (in respect of Subordinated Notes) by Fitch Ratings Ltd (‘‘Fitch’’). Tranches of Notes issued
under the Programme may be rated or unrated. Where a tranche of Notes is rated, such rating will not
necessarily be the same as the ratings assigned to the Programme. A security rating is not a
recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities and may be subject to suspension, reduction or
withdrawal at any time by the assigning rating agency.
The relevant Issuer may agree with any Dealer that Notes may be issued in a form not
contemplated by the Terms and Conditions of the Notes set out herein, in which event (in the case of
Notes admitted to the Official List) a supplementary Offering Circular if appropriate, will be made
available, which will describe the effect of the agreement reached in relation to such Notes.
The Issuers may decide in the future to issue Notes on an undated subordinated basis under the
Programme. In such circumstances, the Issuers will prepare a supplementary offering circular containing
the terms and conditions of such Notes which will include, where the Issuer is BCP Finance, details of the
guarantee of the Bank.
Each of BCP Finance and the Bank (the ‘‘Responsible Persons’’) accepts responsibility for the
information contained in this Offering Circular. To the best of the knowledge of each of BCP Finance and
the Bank (each having taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case) the information contained
in this Offering Circular is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the
import of such information.
This Offering Circular is to be read in conjunction with all documents which are deemed to be
incorporated herein by reference (see ‘‘Documents Incorporated by Reference’’ below). This Offering Circular
shall be read and construed on the basis that such documents are so incorporated and form part of this
Offering Circular.
Neither the Trustee nor any Dealer has separately verified the information contained herein.
Accordingly, no representation, warranty or undertaking, express or implied, is made and no
responsibility is accepted by any Dealer or the Trustee as to the accuracy or completeness of the
information contained in this Offering Circular or any other information provided by BCP Finance or the
Bank in connection with the Programme. Neither the Trustee nor any Dealer accepts any liability in
relation to the information contained in this Offering Circular or any other information provided by BCP
Finance or the Bank in connection with the Programme.
No person is or has been authorised to give any information or to make any representation not
contained in or consistent with this Offering Circular or any other information supplied in connection
with the Programme or the Notes and, if given or made, such information or representation must not be
relied upon as having been authorised by BCP Finance, the Bank, any Dealer or the Trustee.
Neither this Offering Circular nor any other information supplied in connection with the
Programme or the Notes (i) is intended to provide the basis of any credit or other evaluation or (ii) should
be considered as a recommendation by BCP Finance, the Bank, any Dealer or the Trustee that any
recipient of this Offering Circular or any other information supplied in connection with the Programme
should purchase any Notes. Each investor contemplating purchasing any Notes should make its own
independent investigation of the financial condition and affairs, and its own appraisal of the
creditworthiness, of BCP Finance or the Bank. Neither this Offering Circular nor any other information
supplied in connection with the Programme constitutes an offer or invitation by or on behalf of BCP
Finance, the Bank, any Dealer or the Trustee to any person to subscribe for or to purchase any Notes.
Copies of each Final Terms (in the case of Notes to be admitted to the Official List and to trading
on the London Stock Exchange’s market for listed securities) will be available from FT Business Research
Centre, operated by FT Interactive Data at Fitzroy House, 13-17 Epworth Street, London EC2A 4DL and
(in the case of all the Notes) from the specified office set out below of the Trustee (as defined herein) and
(in the case of Bearer Notes) from the specified office set out below of each of the Paying Agents and (in
the case of Registered Notes) from the specified office set out below of each of the Registrar and the
Transfer Agents (each as defined below).
The Notes have not been, and will not be, registered under the United States Securities Act of
1933, as amended, (the ‘‘Securities Act’’) and may not be offered or sold in the United States or to, or for
the benefit of, U.S. persons unless the Notes are registered under the Securities Act or an exemption from
the registration requirements of the Securities Act is available. Unless otherwise provided with respect to a
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particular Series of Registered Notes, the Registered Notes of each Tranche of such Series sold outside
the United States in reliance on Regulation S under the Securities Act will be represented by a permanent
global Note in registered form, without interest coupons (a ‘‘Reg. S Global Note’’), deposited with a
common depositary for, and registered in the name of a common nominee of, Clearstream Banking,
société anonyme (‘‘Clearstream, Luxembourg’’) and Euroclear Bank S.A./N.V. as operator of the
Euroclear system (‘‘Euroclear’’). Prior to expiry of the period that ends 40 days after completion of the
distribution of each Tranche of such Notes, as certified by the relevant Dealer, in the case of a nonsyndicated issue, or the Lead Manager, in the case of a syndicated issue (the ‘‘Distribution Compliance
Period’’), beneficial interests in the Reg. S Global Note may not be offered or sold to, or for the account or
benefit of, a U.S. person and may not be held otherwise than through Clearstream, Luxembourg and
Euroclear. The Registered Notes of each Tranche of such Notes sold in private transactions to qualified
institutional buyers within the meaning of Rule 144A under the Securities Act (‘‘QIBs’’) will be
represented by a restricted permanent Global Note in registered form, without interest coupons (a
‘‘Restricted Global Note’’, and, together with a Reg. S Global Note, ‘‘Registered Global Notes’’), deposited
with a custodian for, and registered in the name of a nominee of, DTC. The Registered Notes of each
Tranche sold to ‘‘accredited investors’’ (as defined in Rule 501 (a) (1), (2) or (3) under the Securities Act)
that are institutions (‘‘Institutional Accredited Investors’’) will be in definitive form, registered in the name
of the holders thereof. Registered Notes in definitive form will, at the request of the holder (save to the
extent otherwise indicated in the applicable Final Terms), be issued in exchange for interests in the
Registered Global Notes upon compliance with the procedures for exchange as described in ‘‘Form of the
Notes’’ on page 24. Each Tranche of Bearer Notes will initially be represented by a temporary bearer
global Note (a ‘‘Temporary Bearer Global Note’’) which will be deposited on the issue date thereof with a
common depositary on behalf of Clearstream, Luxembourg and Euroclear and/or any other clearance
system. Beneficial interests in a Temporary Bearer Global Note will be exchangeable for either beneficial
interests in a permanent bearer global Note (a ‘‘Permanent Bearer Global Note’’) or definitive Bearer
Notes upon certification as to non-U.S. beneficial ownership as required by U.S. Treasury regulations and
thereafter any Permanent Bearer Global Note may be exchanged for definitive Bearer Notes (save to the
extent otherwise indicated in the applicable Final Terms) upon request, in each case in accordance with
the procedure described in ‘‘Form of the Notes’’ on page 24, for further details of clearing and settlement
of the Notes issued under the Programme see ‘‘Book-Entry Clearance Procedures’’ below.
Neither the delivery of this Offering Circular nor the offering, sale or delivery of any Notes shall in
any circumstances imply that the information contained herein concerning BCP Finance and the Bank is
correct at any time subsequent to the date hereof or that any other information supplied in connection
with the Programme is correct as of any time subsequent to the date indicated in the document containing
such information. The Dealers and the Trustee expressly do not undertake to review the financial
condition or affairs of BCP Finance or the Bank during the life of the Programme or to advise any investor
in the Notes of any information coming to their attention. To the extent that any information received
from BCP Finance or the Bank is material non-public information, each of the Dealers and the Trustee
have expressly agreed to maintain its confidentiality until the information is public. Investors should
review, amongst other things, the most recent financial statements, if any, of BCP Finance and the Bank
when deciding whether or not to purchase any Notes.
This Offering Circular does not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy any
Notes in any jurisdiction to any person to whom it is unlawful to make the offer or solicitation in such
jurisdiction.
The distribution of this Offering Circular and the offer or sale of Notes may be restricted by law in
certain jurisdictions. BCP Finance, the Bank, the Dealers and the Trustee do not represent that this
Offering Circular may be lawfully distributed, or that the Notes may be lawfully offered, in compliance
with any applicable registration or other requirements in any such jurisdiction, or pursuant to an
exemption available thereunder, nor assume any responsibility for facilitating any such distribution or
offering. In particular, no action has been taken by BCP Finance, the Bank, the Dealers or the Trustee
(save for the approval of this Offering Circular as a base prospectus for purposes of the Prospectus
Directive by the FSA) which would permit a public offering of the Notes or distribution of this Offering
Circular or any other offering material relating to the Programme or the Notes issued thereunder in any
jurisdiction where action for that purpose is required. Accordingly, the Notes may not be offered or sold,
directly or indirectly, and neither this Offering Circular nor any advertisement or other offering material
relating to the Programme or the Notes issued thereunder may be distributed or published in any
jurisdiction, except in circumstances that will result in compliance with any applicable laws and
regulations. Each Dealer has represented or, as the case may be, will be required to represent that all offers
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and sales by it will be made on the terms indicated above. Persons into whose possession this Offering
Circular or any Notes come must inform themselves about, and observe, any applicable restrictions on
the distribution of this Offering Circular and the offering and sale of the Notes. In particular, there are
restrictions on the distribution of this Offering Circular and the offer or sale of Notes in the United
States, the European Economic Area (including the United Kingdom, France and Portugal), Japan and the
Cayman Islands (see ‘‘Subscription and Sale and Transfer Restrictions’’ below).
All references in this Offering Circular to (i) ‘‘U.S. dollars’’, ‘‘dollars’’, ‘‘USD’’, ‘‘U.S.$’’, ‘‘$’’ and
‘‘U.S. cent’’ refer to the currency of the United States of America, (ii) ‘‘Sterling’’ and ‘‘£’’ refer to the
currency of the United Kingdom, and (iii) ‘‘euro’’ and ‘‘EUR’’ refer to the currency introduced at the start
of the third stage of European economic and monetary union pursuant to the Treaty establishing the
European Communities, as amended by the Treaty on European Union, the Treaty of Amsterdam and as
further amended from time to time. All references in this Offering Circular to the ‘‘United States’’ refer to
the United States of America, its territories and possessions.
In connection with the issue of any Tranche of Notes, the Dealer or Dealers (if any) named as the
Stabilising Manager(s) (or persons acting on behalf of any Stabilising Manager(s)) in the applicable Final
Terms may over-allot Notes (provided that, in the case of any Tranche of Notes to be admitted to trading
on a regulated market in the European Economic Area, the aggregate principal amount of Notes allotted
does not exceed 105 per cent. of the aggregate principal amount of the relevant Tranche) or effect
transactions with a view to supporting the market price of the Notes at a level higher than that which
might otherwise prevail. However, there is no assurance that the Stabilising Manager(s) (or persons acting
on behalf of a Stabilising Manager) will undertake stabilisation action. Any stabilisation action may begin
on or after the date on which adequate public disclosure of the terms of the offer of the relevant Tranche
of Notes is made and, if begun, will be in compliance with all relevant laws and regulations and may be
ended at any time, but it must end no later than the earlier of 30 days after the issue date of the relevant
Tranche of Notes and 60 days after the date of the allotment of the relevant Tranche of Notes.
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INFORMATION AS TO PLACEMENT OF NOTES WITHIN THE UNITED STATES
With respect to the offering and sale of Notes issued under the Programme within the United
States, this Offering Circular is highly confidential and has been prepared by the Issuers solely for use in
connection with the offering of the Notes issued under the Programme described herein. In the United
States, this Offering Circular is personal to each offeree to whom it has been delivered by the relevant
Issuer or a Dealer or an affiliate thereof and does not constitute an offer to any other person or to the
public generally to subscribe for or otherwise acquire the Notes. Distribution in the United States of this
Offering Circular to any person other than such offerees and those persons, if any, retained to advise such
offerees with respect thereto is unauthorised and any disclosure of any of its contents, without the prior
written consent of the relevant Issuer, is prohibited. Each prospective purchaser in the United States, by
accepting delivery of this Offering Circular, agrees to the foregoing and to make no photocopies of this
Offering Circular.
The offers of Notes issued under the Programme are being made on the basis of this Offering
Circular and the applicable Final Terms. Any decision to subscribe for any Notes must be based on the
information contained herein and therein, except that each person receiving this Offering Circular
acknowledges that such person has been afforded an opportunity to request and to review, and has
received, all additional information considered by it to be necessary to verify the accuracy of or to
supplement the information herein.
Any Notes offered and sold in the United States have not been and will not be registered under the
Securities Act and are subject to certain restrictions on transfer. Prospective purchasers are hereby
notified that the seller of any Note may be relying on the exemption from the provisions of Section 5 of
the Securities Act provided by Rule 144A under the Securities Act. For a description of certain further
restrictions on resale of the Notes, see ‘‘Book-Entry Clearance Procedures’’ and ‘‘Subscription and Sale and
Transfer Restrictions’’.

NOTICE TO NEW HAMPSHIRE RESIDENTS
NEITHER THE FACT THAT A REGISTRATION STATEMENT OR AN APPLICATION FOR
A LICENCE HAS BEEN FILED UNDER CHAPTER 421-B OF THE NEW HAMPSHIRE REVISED
STATUTE WITH THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE NOR THE FACT THAT A SECURITY IS
EFFECTIVELY REGISTERED OR A PERSON IS LICENSED IN THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
CONSTITUTES A FINDING BY THE SECRETARY OF STATE THAT ANY DOCUMENT FILED
UNDER RSA 421-B IS TRUE, COMPLETE AND NOT MISLEADING. NEITHER ANY SUCH FACT
NOR THE FACT THAT AN EXEMPTION OR EXCEPTION IS AVAILABLE FOR A SECURITY OR A
TRANSACTION MEANS THAT THE SECRETARY OF STATE HAS PASSED IN ANY WAY UPON
THE MERITS OR QUALIFICATIONS OF, OR RECOMMENDED OR GIVEN APPROVAL TO, ANY
PERSON, SECURITY OR TRANSACTION. IT IS UNLAWFUL TO MAKE, OR CAUSE TO BE
MADE, TO ANY PROSPECTIVE PURCHASER, CUSTOMER OR CLIENT ANY REPRESENTATION
INCONSISTENT WITH THE PROVISIONS OF THIS PARAGRAPH.
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DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE
The following documents, which have previously been published and have been filed with the Financial
Services Authority, shall be deemed to be incorporated in, and to form part of, this Offering Circular:
(a)

the published audited annual financial statements and audit reports of BCP Finance for the years ended
31 December, 2003 and 31 December, 2004; and

(b)

the published annual reports and audited consolidated annual financial statements and audit reports of
the Bank and its subsidiaries (the ‘‘Banco Comercial Português Group’’ or the ‘‘BCP Group’’) for the
years ended 31 December, 2003 and 31 December, 2004 and the unaudited consolidated interim
financial statements of the BCP Group for the six months ended 30th June, 2005.

Following the publication of this Offering Circular, a supplement may be prepared by the Issuers and approved
by the UK Listing Authority in accordance with Article 16 of the Prospectus Directive. Statements contained in
any such supplement (or contained in any document incorporated by reference therein) shall to the extent
applicable (whether expressly, by implication or otherwise) be deemed to modify or supersede statements
contained in this Offering Circular or in a document which is incorporated by reference in this Offering
Circular. Any statement so modified or superseded shall not, except as so modified or superseded, constitute a
part of this Offering Circular.
Copies of documents incorporated by reference in this Offering Circular can be obtained from the registered
offices of BCP Finance and the Bank and from the specified offices of the Paying Agents for the time being.
BCP Finance and the Bank will, in the event of any significant new factor, material mistake or inaccuracy
relating to information included in this Offering Circular which is capable of affecting the assessment of any
Notes, prepare a supplement to this Offering Circular or publish a new Offering Circular for use in connection
with any subsequent issue of Notes. Each of BCP Finance and the Bank have undertaken to the Dealers in the
Dealer Agreement to comply with sections 87G of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000.
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SUMMARY OF THE PROGRAMME
This summary must be read as an introduction to this Offering Circular and, any decision to invest in
any Notes should be based on a consideration of this Offering Circular as a whole, including the documents
incorporated by reference. Following the implementation of the relevant provisions of the Prospectus Directive
in each Member State of the European Economic Area, no civil liability will attach to the Responsible Persons
in any such Member State in respect of this Summary, including any translation hereof, unless it is misleading,
inaccurate or inconsistent when read together with the other parts of this Offering Circular. Where a claim
relating to information contained in this Offering Circular is brought before a court in a Member State of the
European Economic Area, the plaintiff may, under the national legislation of the Member State where the
claim is brought, be required to bear the costs of translating the Offering Circular before the legal proceedings
are initiated. Words and expressions defined in ‘‘Form of the Notes’’, ‘‘Applicable Final Terms’’ and ‘‘Terms and
Conditions of the Notes’’ shall have the same meanings in this summary. References in this summary to a
particular numbered Condition are to such Condition as set out in ‘‘Terms and Conditions of the Notes.’’
Issuers:

BCP Finance Bank, Ltd.
Banco Comercial Português, S.A., acting, subject as provided below, either
through its head office or through its international Madeira branch
‘‘Sucursal Financeira Internacional’’, as indicated in the applicable Final
Terms.

Guarantor:

Banco Comercial Português, S.A., acting, subject as provided below, either
through its head office or through its international Madeira branch
‘‘Sucursal Financeira Internacional’’ as indicated in the applicable Final Terms.
Notes issued by BCP Finance will be guaranteed by the Bank acting through
its international Madeira branch ‘‘Sucursal Financeira Internacional’’. In
certain limited circumstances (including but not limited to, relevant
Portuguese tax laws and other applicable laws and regulations) Notes issued
by BCP Finance may also be guaranteed by the Bank acting through its
head office.

Risk Factors:

There are certain factors that may affect the Issuer’s ability to fulfil its
obligations under Notes issued under the Programme and/or the Bank’s
ability to fulfil its obligations under the Guarantee. In addition, there are
certain factors which are material for the purpose of assessing the market
risks associated with the Notes issued under the Programme. See ‘‘Risk
Factors’’ below.

Description:

Euro Note Programme.

Arranger:

UBS Limited

Programme Dealers:

ABN AMRO Bank N.V.
Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A.
Banco Millennium bcp Investimento, S.A.
Bear, Stearns International Limited
BNP Paribas
Banco Caboto s.p.a
Citigroup Global Markets Limited
Deutsche Bank AG, London Branch
J.P. Morgan Securities Ltd.
Lehman Brothers International (Europe)
Merrill Lynch International
Morgan Stanley & Co. International Limited
UBS Limited
The Issuers may at any time appoint an additional dealer or dealers in
relation to the Programme (together with the Dealers named above, each a
‘‘Programme Dealer’’) or the relevant Issuer may at any time appoint a
dealer or dealers in connection with the issue of a Tranche of Notes issued
under the Programme (each an ‘‘Issue Dealer’’) and may issue Notes to
such Dealers in accordance with the provisions of the Dealer Agreement.

Trustee:

The Law Debenture Trust Corporation p.l.c.
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Issuing and Principal Paying
Agent and Agent Bank:

Citibank, N.A. (the ‘‘Agent’’)

Programme Size:

Up to U.S.$15,000,000,000 (or its equivalent in other currencies calculated
as described herein on page 23) outstanding at any time. The Issuers may
increase the amount of the Programme in accordance with the terms of the
Dealer Agreement.

Currencies:

Subject to any applicable legal or regulatory restrictions, any currency as
may be agreed between the relevant Issuer and the relevant Dealer.

Certain Restrictions:

Each issue of Notes denominated in a currency in respect of which
particular laws, guidelines, regulations, restrictions or reporting requirements apply will only be issued in circumstances which comply with such
laws, guidelines, regulations, restrictions or reporting requirements from
time to time (see ‘‘Subscription and Sale and Transfer Restrictions’’ below)
including, but not limited to the following restrictions applicable at the date
of this Offering Circular.
Notes issued by BCP Finance with a maturity of less than one year will, if
the proceeds of the issue are accepted in the United Kingdom, constitute
deposits for the purposes of the prohibition on accepting deposits
contained in section 19 of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000
unless they are issued to a limited class of professional investors and have a
denomination of at least £100,000 or its equivalent, see ‘‘Subscription and
Sale’’.

Maturities:

Such maturities as may be agreed between the relevant Issuer and the
relevant Dealer and as indicated in the applicable Final Terms, subject to
such minimum or maximum maturities as may be allowed or required from
time to time by the relevant central bank (or equivalent body) or any laws or
regulations applicable to the relevant Issuer and the Bank (where the Issuer
is BCP Finance) or the relevant Specified Currency.

Form of Notes:

Notes will be issued in bearer form and/or registered form as described in
‘‘Form of the Notes’’ below and as indicated in the applicable Final Terms.
Bearer Notes will be exchangeable for Registered Notes in accordance with
Condition 12(a). Registered Notes will not be exchangeable for Bearer
Notes.

Fixed Rate Notes:

Fixed interest will be payable on such date or dates as may be agreed
between the relevant Issuer and the relevant Dealer and on redemption, and
will be calculated on the basis of such Day Count Fraction as may be agreed
between the Issuer and the relevant Dealer.

Floating Rate Notes:

Floating Rate Notes will bear interest at a rate determined:
(i)

on the same basis as the floating rate under a notional interest-rate
swap transaction in the relevant Specified Currency governed by an
agreement incorporating the 2000 ISDA Definitions (as published
by the International Swaps and Derivatives Association, Inc., and as
amended and updated as at the Issue Date of the first Tranche of the
Notes of the relevant Series); or

(ii)

on the basis of a reference rate appearing on the agreed screen page
of a commercial quotation service; or

(iii)

on such other basis as may be agreed between the relevant Issuer and
the relevant Dealer (in each case as indicated in the applicable Final
Terms).

The Margin (if any) relating to such floating rate will be agreed between the
relevant Issuer and the relevant Dealer for each series of Floating Rate
Notes.
Floating Rate Notes and Index Linked Interest Notes may also have a
maximum interest rate, a minimum interest rate or both.
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Index Linked Notes:

Payments of principal in respect of Index Linked Redemption Notes or in
respect of interest in the case of Index Linked Interest Notes will be
calculated by reference to such index and/or formula or to changes in the
prices of securities or commodities or to such other factors as the relevant
Issuer and the relevant Dealer may agree (as indicated in the applicable Final
Terms).

Other provisions in relation
to Floating Rate Notes and
Index Linked Interest Notes:

Interest on Floating Rate Notes and Index Linked Interest Notes in respect
of each Interest Period, as agreed prior to issue by the Issuer and the relevant
Dealer, will be payable on such Interest Payment Dates, and will be
calculated on the basis of such Day Count Fraction, as may be agreed
between the Issuer and the relevant Dealer.

Dual Currency Notes:

Payments (whether in respect of principal or interest and whether at
maturity or otherwise) in respect of Dual Currency Notes will be made in
such currencies, and based on such rates of exchange, as the relevant Issuer
and the relevant Dealer may agree (as indicated in the applicable Final
Terms).

Zero Coupon Notes:

Zero Coupon Notes will be offered and sold at a discount to their nominal
amount and will not bear interest.

Redemption:

The Final Terms relating to each Tranche of Notes will indicate either that
the Notes cannot be redeemed prior to their stated maturity (other than in
specified instalments, if applicable, or for taxation reasons or following an
Event of Default) or that such Notes will be redeemable at the option of the
relevant Issuer and/or the Noteholders upon giving not less than 30 nor
more than 60 days’ irrevocable notice (or such other notice period (if any) as
is indicated in the applicable Final Terms) to the Noteholders or, as the case
may be, the relevant Issuer on a date or dates specified prior to such stated
maturity and at a price or prices and on such terms as are indicated in the
applicable Final Terms.
Any early redemption of a Subordinated Note (other than following an
Event of Default) will be subject to the prior consent of the Bank of
Portugal.

Substitution:

The Trustee, the relevant Issuer and the Bank (where the Issuer is BCP
Finance) are permitted to agree to the substitution in place of the relevant
Issuer (or any previous substitute) as principal debtor in respect of the Notes
of either the Bank (where the Issuer is BCP Finance) or any other whollyowned Subsidiary of the Bank, subject to the fulfilment of certain
conditions, as more fully set out in Condition 18 and the Trust Deed.

Denomination of Notes:

Notes will be issued in such denominations as may be agreed between the
relevant Issuer and the relevant Dealer and as indicated in the applicable
Final Terms save that: (i) the minimum denomination of each Note will be
such amount as may be allowed or required from time to time by the
relevant central bank (or equivalent body) or any laws or regulations
applicable to the relevant Specified Currency, see ‘‘Certain Restrictions’’ on
page 10; and (ii) the minimum denomination of each Note admitted to
trading on a regulated market within the European Economic Area or
offered to the public in a Member State of the European Economic Area in
circumstances which require the publication of a prospectus under the
Prospectus Directive will be E1,000 (or, if the Notes are denominated in a
currency other than euro, the equivalent amount in such currency).

Taxation:

All payments in respect of the Notes will be made without deduction for or
on account of any withholding taxes imposed by any Tax Jurisdiction,
subject as provided in Condition 8. In the event that any such deduction is
made, the Issuer will, save in certain circumstances provided in Condition
8, be required to pay additional amounts to cover the amounts so deducted.

11

Negative Pledge:

The terms of the Senior Notes will contain a negative pledge provision as
further described in Condition 3. The terms of the Subordinated Notes will
contain no negative pledge.

Cross Default:

The terms of the Senior Notes will contain a cross default provision as
further described in Condition 10(a). The terms of the Subordinated Notes
will contain no cross default provision.

Status of the Senior Notes:

The Senior Notes and the relative Receipts and Coupons will constitute
direct, unconditional, unsecured (subject to the provisions of Condition 3)
and unsubordinated obligations of the relevant Issuer and will rank pari
passu among themselves and with all present and future unsecured (subject
as aforesaid) and unsubordinated obligations of the relevant Issuer, save for
those that have been accorded by law preferential rights.

Subordination:

Payments in respect of the Subordinated Notes will be subordinated as
described in Condition 2(b) (in the case of Subordinated Notes issued by
BCP Finance) or Condition 2(c) (in the case of Subordinated Notes issued
by the Bank)

Status of the Guarantee:

The payment of the principal of, and interest on, the Notes issued by
BCP Finance will be unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed (the
‘‘Guarantee’’) by the Bank in the Trust Deed. The obligations of the Bank
under such guarantee will constitute:
(1)

in the case of Senior Notes, direct, unconditional, unsecured
(subject to the provisions of Condition 3) and unsubordinated
obligations of the Bank and will rank pari passu with all present and
future unsecured (subject as aforesaid) and unsubordinated obligations (including those arising under deposits received in its banking
business) of the Bank, save for those that have been accorded by law
preferential rights; and

(2)

in the case of Subordinated Notes, direct, unconditional and
unsecured obligations of the Bank but, in the event of the winding
up of the Bank, (to the extent permitted by Portuguese law)
subordinated in right of payment to the claims of all Senior
Creditors of the Bank.

Rating:

Tranches of notes issued under the Programme may be rated or unrated.
Any rating of Notes to be issued under the Programme will be specified in
the applicable Final Terms. Where a tranche of Notes is rated, such rating
will not necessarily be the same as the ratings assigned to the Programme. A
security rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities and
may be subject to suspension, reduction or withdrawal at any time by the
assigning rating agency.

Listing:

Application has been made to the UK Listing Authority for Notes issued
under the Programme to be admitted to the Official List and to the London
Stock Exchange for such Notes to be admitted to trading on the London
Stock Exchange’s Gilt Edged and Fixed Interest Market. The Notes may also
be listed or admitted to trading, as the case may be, on such other or further
stock exchange or stock exchanges as may be agreed between the relevant
Issuer and the relevant Dealer in relation to each Series. Unlisted Notes may
also be issued. The Final Terms relating to each issue will state whether or
not and, if so, on which stock exchange or stock exchanges the Notes are to
be listed.

Governing Law:

Subject as provided in Condition 21, the Trust Deed is, and the Notes will
be governed by, and construed in accordance with, English law except that
Conditions 2(c) and 4(b) will be governed by, and construed in accordance
with, Portuguese law.

Selling Restrictions:

There are selling restrictions in relation to the United States, the European
Economic Area (including the United Kingdom and France), Portugal,
Japan and the Cayman Islands. In connection with the offering and sale of a
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particular Tranche of Notes additional restrictions may be imposed which
will be set out in the applicable Final Terms. See ‘‘Subscription and Sale and
Transfer Restrictions’’ below.
For United States securities law and tax purposes only, the Issuer’s are
Category 2 issuers under Regulation S, and, in relation to Bearer Notes,
TEFRA D will apply.
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RISK FACTORS
Each of the Issuer and the Bank believes that the following factors may affect its ability to fulfil its obligations under
Notes issued under the Programme. Most of these factors are contingencies which may or may not occur and neither the
Issuer nor the Bank is in a position to express a view on the likelihood of any such contingency occurring.
Each of the Issuer and the Bank believes that the factors described below represent the principal risks inherent in
investing in Notes issued under the Programme, but the inability of the Issuer or the Bank to pay interest or other amounts
on or in connection with any Notes may occur for other reasons and neither the Issuer nor the Bank represents that the
statements below regarding the risks of holding any Notes are exhaustive. Prospective investors should also read the detailed
information set out elsewhere in this Offering Circular and reach their own views prior to making any investment decision.
Risk factors that may affect either Issuers’ ability to fulfil its obligations under the Notes and the Bank’s
ability to fulfil its obligations under the Subordinated Guarantee
The downturn in the Portuguese economy has adversely affected the Bank’s financial condition, and results of
operations and may continue to do so in the future if robust economic growth fails to resume.
The Bank is dependent on the state of the Portuguese economy. For the year ended 31 December, 2004,
approximately 93.5 per cent. of the Bank’s income was derived from activities in Portugal. Portuguese GDP
growth in 2004 was 1.1 per cent. (source: Bank of Portugal’s Economic Bulletin; Summer 2005), chiefly due to
the growth of private consumption and to the mild recovery of gross fixed capital formation, which more than
offset the negative contribution of net foreign demand. The process of gradual endogenous adjustment of the
financial situation of the private sector that marked the evolution of the Portuguese economy since 2001, and
had been reflected in declining corporate investment and stagnant private consumption, was interrupted in
2004. The economic upturn was driven by dynamic domestic demand, particularly by the recovery of private
consumption, and by the growth of investment, but attention is drawn to the importance of the extraordinary
factors that occurred during the first half of 2004. The Portuguese economy has been performing poorly since
the second half of 2004, due to the weakness of exports and a continued dynamism of imports, induced by the
growth of consumption, which in turn has been influenced by the persistence of supportive monetary
conditions, by the slight increase of disposable income, by the reduction of the savings rate and by the
purchase of durable goods in anticipation to the increase of the standard VAT rate in July 2005. Investment has
fallen in the first semester of 2005, namely in construction. Notwithstanding the deterioration of the economic
environment, the banking sector business volumes have performed favourably, benefiting from the
maintenance of interest rates at historical lows, from the diversity of financial needs of households and
companies, from the launch of innovative financial products and services and from the still low penetration
rate of some types of financial products and services in Portugal. Loans to individuals continued to grow by
about 9 per cent. and loans to companies slightly above 2 per cent. Forecasts for 2005 and 2006 Portuguese
GDP growth have been successively revised downwards. Nonetheless, while it is expected that economic
growth in the second half of 2005 will recover and be more balanced, the Bank notes that if economic growth
continually fails to resume, this may adversely affect the execution of the Bank’s growth strategy, its financial
condition and results of operations.
Portuguese GDP growth has been underperforming EU-15 growth for the past five years and the
domestic economy faces several structural challenges, namely the unsustainable imbalance of public finances,
the high indebtedness of the private sector, low factor productivity, the persistently high trade deficit, greater
competition induced by growing globalisation, the insufficient quality of public services such as justice,
education, public administration and health. The Portuguese economy is vulnerable to significant interest rates
increases by the European Central Bank, which could impact the capacity of households to meet their debt
obligations, as most loans are indexed to floating EURIBOR indexers, and hence influence loan impairment.
Moreover the persistency and possible further increase of the unusually high oil prices may negatively
influence the performance of the Portuguese economy. The direct effects of high oil prices would be the
reduction of confidence and real disposable income, increased operating costs, and increased inflation, termsof-trade deterioration and general economic deceleration.
Sharp declines in global equity markets may have a material adverse effect on the Bank’s business, results of
operations and the value of strategic investments.
Investment returns are an important part of the BCP Group’s overall profitability, in particular in
relation to the asset management business of Millennium bcp – Gestão de Fundos de Investimento, S.A. and
the investment banking business of Banco Millennium bcp Investimento, S.A. (‘‘BCP Investimento’’, with the
brand name Millennium bcp investimento). If sharp declines in the global equity markets occur, that may
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affect the sales of certain of the Bank’s products, such as unit linked products, participating life insurance and
pension products, mutual funds and asset management services, significantly decreasing its income from
commissions and adversely affecting the Bank’s financial condition and results of operations. In addition,
fluctuations in price levels in the securities markets could result in investors withdrawing capital from the
markets, decreasing their rate of investment or surrendering life insurance policies, any of which could
adversely affect sales of the Bank’s investment products, including certain life insurance products.
As of 31 December, 2004, the BCP Group’s strategic investments (being its equity stakes in nonconsolidated companies) amounted to E1,925,919,000, or 2.7 per cent of its total assets. The book value of
some of these investments in the BCP Group’s consolidated balance sheet is greater than their market value as
of 31 December, 2004. If declines in the value of the BCP Group’s strategic investments occur, that could have
an adverse effect on the BCP Group’s financial condition and results of operations.
The impact of possible recurrent terrorist attacks.
The terrorist attacks that have occurred to date have fostered a global fear of recurrent terrorist attacks
among western societies. Although this has started to be factored into economic agents’ risk premiums
assessments, an intensification of terrorist activities may adversely impact economic agents’ confidence and
bring additional uncertainty about the current global economic and political climate. This could have a
material adverse effect on the BCP Group’s financial condition and results of operations.
The Bank could be adversely affected by regulatory changes, which could affect, among other things, its capital
adequacy requirements.
The Bank operates in a highly regulated industry. The Bank could be adversely affected by regulatory
changes in Portugal, the EU or those foreign countries in which it operates, or by other political developments
in or affecting Portugal, the EU or such foreign countries. The Bank has no control over such regulatory
changes or political developments. The capital adequacy requirements currently applicable to Portuguese banks
are in many respects similar to the requirements imposed by the international framework for capital
measurement and capital standards of banking institutions of the Basel Committee on Banking Regulations
and Supervisory Practices. Recent changes have been proposed by the Basel Committee to capital
requirements. The implementation of the new capital adequacy accord (Basel II) is set to start in 2007 and
will increase the sensitivity of capital requirements to credit risk and establish operational risk cover
requirements.
The Bank could be adversely affected by increased taxes or decreased tax benefits.
The Bank could be adversely affected by tax changes in Portugal, the EU or those foreign countries in
which it operates. The Bank has no control over such tax changes.
Risk of the divesture of large shareholding positions.
The Bank’s share price and volatility could be affected if large shareholders reduce their stakes in the
Bank’s share capital.
The Bank may be object of an unsolicited acquisition bid.
In the context of the pan-European consolidation trend, the Bank could be the object of an unsolicited
acquisition bid. If such acquisition occurred there could be changes in current corporate strategy, main
businesses, operations and resources.
The Bank faces strong competition in its principal areas of operation.
Since 1996, there has been a significant expansion of personal financial services in the Portuguese
banking market, resulting in a sustained development of mortgage credit, consumer loans, investment funds
and unit linked products and increased use of credit cards. The Portuguese banking market is now well
developed, and includes strong and dynamic domestic and foreign competitors that incorporate a multiproduct, multi-channel and multi-client segmented approach. In addition, there has been significant
development of internet banking operations and the use of new techniques, such as customer relationship
management, which enable banks to accurately track customers’ requirements. Foreign banks have also entered
the Portuguese market, particularly in areas such as corporate banking, asset management, private banking and
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brokerage services. These factors have resulted in increased competition. Moreover, the trend of integration of
European financial markets is likely to intensify, which may contribute to increased competition, namely in the
areas of asset management, investment banking and online brokerage. Although the Bank believes that it is in a
strong position to continue to compete in the Portuguese market, the Bank cannot assure potential investors
that it will be able to compete effectively in the markets in which it operates, or that it will maintain or increase
the level of its results of operations.
The Bank may not be able to preserve its customer base.
The Bank’s success depends on its ability to maintain customer loyalty and to offer customers a wide
range of high quality, competitive products and consistently high levels of service. The Bank has sought to
achieve this objective by segmenting its customers’ basis to better serve the diverse needs of each customer
segment and by cross-selling the products and services of its subsidiaries through its marketing and distribution
network in Portugal under a single brand – ‘‘Millennium bcp’’. The Bank has also sought to maintain long term
customer financial relationships through the sale of anchor products and services, such as mortgage loans,
domiciliation of wages, permanent automatic payments, credit cards and saving products. Bancassurance
products are also part of the wide range of products sold by the Bank, which are managed by the insurance
company ‘‘Millennium bcp Fortis’’, which resulted from the agreement with the Belgian-Dutch group Fortis
involving the sale of 51 per cent. of the share capital and the transfer of management control of the insurers
Ocidental – Companhia Portuguesa de Seguros, S.A. (‘‘Ocidental’’), Ocidental – Companhia Portuguesa de
Seguros de Vida, S.A. (‘‘Ocidental Vida’’) and Médis – Companhia Portuguesa de Seguros de Saúde, S.A.
(‘‘Médis’’) and the Pension-fund manager Pensõesgere – Sociedade Gestora de Fundos de Pensões, S.A.
(‘‘Pensõesgere’’). Increased competition in the Portuguese and European banking markets via the offer of
significantly lower prices and a growing importance of category killers may impact customer behaviour patterns
and loyalty. Any failure to maintain customer loyalty or to offer customers a wide range of high quality,
competitive products or consistently high levels of service could have a material adverse effect on the Bank’s
financial condition and results of operations. As of 31 December, 2004, 4.9 per cent. of the Bank’s total
customer base were also holders of its ordinary shares. In addition, a substantial number of these and other
customers hold the Bank’s mandatorily convertible securities, which were issued in December 2002. If the price
of the Bank’s ordinary shares were to decline, this could lead to shareholder dissatisfaction and, to the extent
that such shareholders are also customers of the Group, this could result in broader customer dissatisfaction,
which could, in turn, adversely affect the Bank’s financial condition and results of operations.
The Bank may face difficulties with its international expansion.
The BCP Group continues to pursue its internationalisation strategy, with particular emphasis on the
Polish and Greek banking markets, which together with Portugal, are considered core markets. There is no
guarantee that the BCP Group will be successful in the Polish, Greek or other international markets in which it
operates. In addition, such international operations are exposed to the risk of possible adverse political,
governmental or economic developments in the countries in which they operate. These factors could have a
material adverse effect on the BCP Group’s financial condition and results of operations. Several BCP Group’s
international operations expose it to foreign currency risk. A decline in the value of the currencies in which
some of the BCP Group’s international subsidiaries receive their income relative to the value of the euro may
have an adverse effect on the BCP Group’s financial condition and results of operations.
The Bank’s liabilities to its customers exceed its liquid assets.
The Bank’s primary source of funds is its retail deposit base. In recent years, however, as interest rates
stood at historically low levels, customers have started to channel their individual savings away from traditional
bank products, such as deposits, and towards other instruments with higher expected returns. The Bank’s other
funding sources include medium and long-term bond issues, commercial paper and medium-term structured
products. In addition, the Bank has carried out various asset securitisation operations. The Bank also borrows
money in the money markets, and in recent years, the Bank has also increased own funds through share capital
increases (most recently in March 2003), and the issue of mandatorily convertible securities (December 2002),
convertible subordinated securities and subordinated bonds. While the Bank complies in full with the Bank of
Portugal’s regulations governing liquidity, the Bank’s liabilities to its customers exceed the amount of its liquid
assets. As of 31 December, 2002, 2003 and 2004, this shortfall amounted to approximately 14,800 million euro,
15,100 million euro and 14,100 million euro, respectively. If the Bank is unable to borrow sufficient funds to
meet its obligations to its customers and other investors, the Bank’s financial condition and results of
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operations will be materially adversely affected. In addition, due to the Bank’s net funding position, any rating
downgrade could adversely affect the Bank’s financial condition and results of operations.
There is a risk that the Bank’s pension fund is under-funded and that the Bank may be required to make additional
contributions to the fund in the future.
There is a risk that the Bank’s pension fund is under-funded. The sharp decline in the global financial
markets throughout 2001 and 2002 has caused investment returns and the value of the Bank’s pension fund to
decline. The unrecognised actuarial losses of the Bank’s pension fund increased from 898,679 thousand euros
as of 31 December, 2003 to 917,334 thousand euros as of 31 December, 2004. The reserves the Bank has made
in its consolidated financial statements for its pension liabilities are based on certain assumptions regarding
mortality and, accordingly, there is a risk that beneficiaries of the policy will live longer and draw more from
the pension fund than has been allowed for. Within the scope of IFRS and as defined in IFRS I, the BCP
Group decided to recalculate the actuarial calculations from the date of the set up of the Pension Fund. This
resulted in an increase of deferred actuarial differences and shareholders’ equity. In the future, all actuarial gains
and losses in excess of 10 per cent. of the value of liabilities (the corridor) will be amortised for the remaining
average working life of the employees of 20 years (previously: 10 years). On an ongoing basis, the extended
amortisation period of the actuarial losses will lead to a decrease in annual charges to the profit and loss
account. If the Bank’s pension fund is under-funded, the Bank will be required to make additional
contributions to the fund in the future, which could adversely affect the Bank’s financial condition and results
of operations. In addition, the Bank is required to deduct from its tier 1 capital the portion of unrecognised
actuarial losses exceeding 10 per cent. of the Bank’s pension liabilities or the value of the Bank’s pension fund
assets. As a result, any further declines in the value of the Bank’s pension fund assets could adversely affect its
capital position.
The Bank is exposed to credit risk.
The Bank is exposed to the creditworthiness of its customers and counterparties. If the value of the
collateral securing the Bank’s loan portfolio declines, the Bank will be exposed to a higher credit risk and
increased risk of non-recovery in the event that any loans failed to perform. The Bank cannot guarantee that it
would be able to realise adequate proceeds from collateral disposals to cover loan losses.
Despite the adverse economic environment, in recent years there has not been a deterioration of the
creditworthiness of its customers. However, if the economic growth trend below continues, if unemployment
continues to increase and if interest rates increase sharply, this may result in the deterioration of the
creditworthiness of customers.
Notwithstanding the BCP Group’s high coverage level of past due loans by provisions for impairment
losses, the Bank cannot assure potential investors that its level of provisions and other reserves will be adequate
or that the Bank will not have to take significant additional provisions for possible impairment losses in future
periods.
The Bank’s risk management policies may leave it exposed to unidentified risks or an unanticipated level of risk.
The Bank is exposed to a number of risks, including, among others, market risk, credit risk, liquidity risk
and operational risk. Although the Bank has implemented risk management policies for each of the risks to
which it is exposed, taking into account worst case scenarios, the policies and procedures that the Bank
employs to identify, monitor and manage these risks may not be fully effective. See ‘’Risk Management’’ in the
Bank’s 2004 Annual Report (volume I) for a more detailed description of the Bank’s risk management
procedures.
The Bank’s proprietary trading business involves a significant degree of risk.
The Bank currently engages in various treasury activities for its own account, including placing euro and
foreign currency-denominated deposits in the inter-bank market and trading in the primary and secondary
markets for government securities. Proprietary trading includes taking positions in the fixed income and equity
markets using both cash and derivative products and financial instruments. Although the Bank’s level of
engagement in such activities is limited, proprietary trading involves a degree of risk. Future proprietary trading
results will in part depend on market conditions and the Bank could incur significant losses, which could
adversely affect its financial condition and results of operations. See in this prospect the section ‘‘Selected
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Consolidated Financial Information in the Consolidated Balance Sheet – Assets – Securities’’ for information
on the Bank’s securities portfolio of trading and investment securities as of 31 December, 2003 and 2004.
The Bank is subject to operational risks.
In the ordinary course of the Bank’s business and as a result of the Bank’s organisational structure, the
Bank is subject to certain operational risks, including interruption of service, errors, fraud by third parties,
omissions, delays in providing services and risk management requirements. The Bank continually monitors
these risks by means of, among other things, advanced administrative and information systems and insurance
coverage in respect of certain operational risks, but the Bank cannot guarantee that it will be able at all times to
successfully monitor and prevent these risks in the future. Any failure to execute successfully the Bank’s risk
management and control policies could materially adversely affect the Bank’s financial condition and results of
operations.
The Bank faces technological risks.
The Bank’s consolidated operations are highly dependent on computerised record-keeping, financial
reporting and other systems, including point of sale monitoring and internal accounting systems, particularly
following the centralisation of the Bank’s information technology systems. Since 1996, the BCP Group has
integrated its back office operations in one company, Millennium bcp – Prestação de Serviços, ACE (formerly
known as ServiBanca). Millennium bcp – Prestação de Serviços is responsible for carrying out standardised
back office activities, management of information technology, accounting and audit, and the strategic
monitoring of the BCP Group. The BCP Group has also integrated the technological platforms of the different
businesses it has acquired. Although the Bank’s computer systems have been evaluated and the Bank believes
its back-up facilities to be adequate, the Bank cannot assure potential investors that it will be able to identify
and correct problems related to its information technology systems, or that it will be able to implement
technological improvements successfully.
Factors which are material for the purpose of assessing the market risks associated with Notes issued
under the Programme.
The Notes may not be a suitable investment for all prospective investors.
Each potential investor in the Notes must determine the suitability of that investment in light of its own
circumstances. In particular, each potential investor should:
(i)

have sufficient knowledge and experience to make a meaningful evaluation of the Notes, the merits and
risks of investing in the Notes and the information contained or incorporated by reference in this
Offering Circular or any applicable supplement;

(ii)

have access to, and knowledge of, appropriate analytical tools to evaluate, in the context of its particular
financial situation, an investment in the Notes and the impact the Notes Shares will have on its overall
investment portfolio;

(iii)

have sufficient financial resources and liquidity to bear all of the risks of an investment in the Notes,
including Notes with principal or interest payable in one or more currencies, or where the currency for
principal or interest payments is different from the potential investor’s currency; and

(iv)

understand thoroughly the terms of the Notes and be familiar with the behaviour of any relevant
indices and financial market.

(v)

be able to evaluate (either alone or with the help of a financial adviser) possible scenarios for economic,
interest rate and other factors that may affect its investment and its ability to bear the applicable risks.

Some Notes are complex financial instruments. Sophisticated institutional investors generally do not
purchase complex financial instruments as stand-alone investments. They purchase complex financial
instruments as a way to reduce risk or enhance yield with an understood, measured, appropriate addition of risk
to their overall portfolios. A potential investor should not invest in Notes which are complex financial
instruments unless it has the expertise (either alone or with a financial adviser) to evaluate how the Notes will
perform under changing conditions, the resulting effects on the value of the Notes and the impact this
investment will have on the potential investor’s overall investment portfolio.
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Risks related to the structure of a particular issue of Notes.
A wide range of Notes may be issued under the Programme. A number of these Notes may have features
which contain particular risks for potential investors. Set out below is a description of the most common such
features:
Notes subject to optional redemption by the Issuer
An optional redemption feature of Notes is likely to limit their market value. During any period when
the Issuer may elect to redeem Notes, the market value of those Notes generally will not rise substantially above
the price at which they can be redeemed. This also may be true prior to any redemption period.
The Issuer may be expected to redeem Notes when its cost of borrowing is lower than the interest rate
on the Notes. At those times, an investor generally would not be able to reinvest the redemption proceeds at an
effective interest rate as high as the interest rate on the Notes being redeemed and may only be able to do so at
a significantly lower rate. Potential investors should consider reinvestment risk in light of other investments
available at that time.
Index Linked Notes and Dual Currency Notes
The Issuer may issue Notes with principal or interest determined by reference to an index or formula, to
changes in the prices of securities or commodities, to movements in currency exchange rates or other factors
(each, a ‘‘Relevant Factor’’). In addition, the Issuer may issue Notes with principal or interest payable in one or
more currencies which may be different from the currency in which the Notes are denominated. Potential
investors should be aware that:
(i)

the market price of such Notes may be volatile;

(ii)

they may receive no interest;

(iii)

payment of principal or interest may occur at a different time or in a different currency than expected;

(iv)

they may lose all or a substantial portion of their principal;

(v)

a Relevant Factor may be subject to significant fluctuations that may not correlate with changes in
interest rates, currencies or other indices;

(vi)

if a Relevant Factor is applied to Notes in conjunction with a multiplier greater than one or contains
some other leverage factor, the effect of changes in the Relevant Factor on principal or interest payable
likely will be magnified; and

(vii)

the timing of changes in a Relevant Factor may affect the actual yield to investors, even if the average
level is consistent with their expectations. In general, the earlier the change in the Relevant Factor, the
greater the effect on yield.

Partly-paid Notes
The Issuer may issue Notes where the issue price is payable in more than one instalment. Failure to pay
any subsequent instalment could result in an investor losing all of his investment.
Variable rate Notes with a multiplier or other leverage factor
Notes with variable interest rates can be volatile investments. If they are structured to include
multipliers or other leverage factors, or caps or floors, or any combination of those features or other similar
related features, their market values may be even more volatile than those for securities that do not include
those features.
Inverse Floating Rate Notes
Inverse Floating Rate Notes have an interest rate equal to a fixed rate minus a rate based upon a
reference rate such as LIBOR. The market values of those Notes typically are more volatile than market values
of other conventional floating rate debt securities based on the same reference rate (and with otherwise
comparable terms). Inverse Floating Rate Notes are more volatile because an increase in the reference rate not
only decreases the interest rate of the Notes, but may also reflect an increase in prevailing interest rates, which
further adversely affects the market value of these Notes.
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Fixed/Floating Rate Notes
Fixed/Floating Rate Notes may bear interest at a rate that converts from a fixed rate to a floating rate, or
from a floating rate to a fixed rate. Where the Issuer has the right to effect such a conversion, this will affect the
secondary market and the market value of the Notes since the Issuer may be expected to convert the rate when
it is likely to produce a lower overall cost of borrowing. If the Issuer converts from a fixed rate to a floating rate
in such circumstances, the spread on the Fixed/Floating Rate Notes may be less favourable than then prevailing
spreads on comparable Floating Rate Notes tied to the same reference rate. In addition, the new floating rate at
any time may be lower than the rates on other Notes. If the Issuer converts from a floating rate to a fixed rate in
such circumstances, the fixed rate may be lower than then prevailing rates on its Notes.
Notes issued at a substantial discount or premium
The market values of securities issued at a substantial discount or premium from their principal amount
tend to fluctuate more in relation to general changes in interest rates than do prices for conventional interestbearing securities. Generally, the longer the remaining term of the securities, the greater the price volatility as
compared to conventional interest-bearing securities with comparable maturities.
The Issuer’s obligations under Subordinated Notes are subordinated
The Issuer’s obligations under Subordinated Notes will be unsecured and subordinated to the claims of
senior creditors. Although Subordinated Notes may pay a higher rate of interest than comparable Notes which
are not subordinated, there is a real risk that an investor in Subordinated Notes will lose all or some of his
investment should the Issuer become insolvent.
Risks related to Notes generally
Set out below is a brief description of certain risks relating to the Notes generally:
Modification, waivers and substitution
The conditions of the Notes contain provisions for calling meetings of Noteholders to consider matters
affecting their interests generally. These provisions permit defined majorities to bind all Noteholders including
Noteholders who did not attend and vote at the relevant meeting and Noteholders who voted in a manner
contrary to the majority.
EU Savings Directive
Under EC Council Directive 2003/48/EC on the taxation of savings income, Member States are
required, from 1st July, 2005, to provide to the tax authorities of another Member State details of payments of
interest (or similar income) paid by a person within its jurisdiction to an individual resident in that other
Member State. However, for a transitional period, Belgium, Luxembourg and Austria are instead required
(unless during that period they elect otherwise) to operate a withholding system in relation to such payments
(the ending of such transitional period being dependent upon the conclusion of certain other agreements
relating to information exchange with certain other countries). A number of non-EU countries and territories
including Switzerland have agreed to adopt similar measures (a withholding system in the case of Switzerland)
with effect from the same date.
If, following implementation of this Directive, a payment were to be made or collected through a
Member State which has opted for a withholding system and an amount of, or in respect of tax were to be
withheld from that payment, neither the Issuer nor any Paying Agent nor any other person would be obliged to
pay additional amounts with respect to any Note as a result of the imposition of such withholding tax. If a
withholding tax is imposed on payment made by a Paying Agent following implementation of this Directive,
the Issuer will be required to maintain a Paying Agent in a Member State that will not be obliged to withhold or
deduct tax pursuant to the Directive.
Change of law
The Trust Deed (except Clauses 2(H) and 7(H) insofar as they relate to Subordinated Notes), the
Agency Agreement, the Notes (except Conditions 2(c) and 4(b)), the Receipts and the Coupons are governed
by, and shall be construed in accordance with, English law. Clauses 2(H) and 7(H) of the Trust Deed (in so far
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as they relate to Subordinated Notes) and Conditions 2(c) and 4(b) are governed by, and shall be construed in
accordance with, Portuguese law.
The conditions of the Notes are based on relevant law in effect as at the date of this Offering Circular.
No assurance can be given as to the impact of any possible judicial decision or change to relevant law or
administrative practice after the date of this Offering Circular.
Trading in the clearing systems
In relation to any issue of Notes which have a minimum denomination and are tradeable in the clearing
systems in amounts above such minimum denomination which are smaller than it, should definitive Notes be
required to be issued, a holder who does not have an integral multiple of the minimum denomination in his
account with the relevant clearing system at the relevant time may not receive all of his entitlement in the form
of definitive Notes unless and until such time as his holding becomes an integral multiple of the multiple
denomination.
Risks related to the market generally.
Set out below is a brief description of the principal market risks, including liquidity risk, exchange rate
risk, interest rate risk and credit risk:
The secondary market generally
Notes may have no established trading market when issued, and one may never develop. If a market
does develop, it may not be very liquid. Therefore, investors may not be able to sell their Notes easily or at
prices that will provide them with a yield comparable to similar investments that have a developed secondary
market. This is particularly the case for Notes that are especially sensitive to interest rate, currency or market
risks, are designed for specific investment objectives or strategies or have been structured to meet the
investment requirements of limited categories of investors. These types of Notes generally would have a more
limited secondary market and more price volatility than conventional debt securities. Illiquidity may have a
severely adverse effect on the market value of Notes.
Exchange rate risks and exchange controls
The Issuer will pay principal and interest on the Notes and, in the case of Notes issued by BCP Finance,
the Guarantor will make any payments under the Guarantee in the Specified Currency. This presents certain
risks relating to currency conversions if an investor’s financial activities are denominated principally in a
currency or currency unit (the ‘‘Investor’s Currency’’) other than the Specified Currency. These include the
risk that exchange rates may significantly change (including changes due to devaluation of the Specified
Currency or revaluation of the Investor’s Currency) and the risk that authorities with jurisdiction over the
Investor’s Currency may impose or modify exchange controls. An appreciation in the value of the Investor’s
Currency relative to the Specified Currency would decrease (1) the Investor’s Currency-equivalent yield on the
Notes, (2) the Investor’s Currency-equivalent value of the principal payable on the Notes and (3) the Investor’s
Currency-equivalent market value of the Notes.
Government and monetary authorities may impose (as some have done in the past) exchange controls
that could adversely affect an applicable exchange rate. As a result, investors may receive less interest or
principal than expected, or no interest or principal.
Interest rate risks
Investment in Fixed Rate Notes involves the risk that subsequent changes in market interest rates may
adversely affect the value of the Fixed Rate Notes.
Credit ratings may not reflect all risks
One or more independent credit rating agencies may assign credit ratings to the Notes. The ratings may
not reflect the potential impact of all risks related to structure, market, additional factors discussed above, and
other factors that may affect the value of the Notes. A credit rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or
hold securities and may be revised or withdrawn by the rating agency at any time.
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Legal investment considerations may restrict certain investments
The investment activities of certain investors are subject to legal investment laws and regulations, or
review or regulation by certain authorities. Each potential investor should consult its legal advisers to determine
whether and to what extent (1) Notes are legal investments for it, (2) Notes can be used as collateral for various
types of borrowing and (3) other restrictions apply to its purchase or pledge of any Notes. Financial institutions
should consult their legal advisors or the appropriate regulators to determine the appropriate treatment of
Notes under any applicable risk-based capital or similar rules.
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GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAMME
Under the Programme, each Issuer may from time to time issue Notes denominated in any currency
subject as set out herein. A summary of the terms and conditions of the Programme and the Notes appears
below. The applicable terms of any Notes will be agreed between the relevant Issuer and the relevant Dealer
prior to the issue of the Notes and will be set out in the Terms and Conditions of the Notes incorporated in, or
incorporated by reference into, the Notes, as modified and supplemented by the applicable Final Terms
attached to, or incorporated in, such Notes, as more fully described under ‘‘Form of the Notes’’ below. Notes
issued by BCP Finance will be unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by the Bank, as described in the
Trust Deed.
This Offering Circular and any supplement will only be valid for listing Notes during the period of
twelve months from the date of this Offering Circular in an aggregate nominal amount which, when added to
the aggregate nominal amount of all Notes then outstanding or simultaneously issued under the Programme,
does not exceed U.S.$15,000,000,000 or its equivalent in other currencies. For the purpose of calculating the
U.S. dollar equivalent of the aggregate nominal amount of Notes issued under the Programme from time to
time:
(a)

the U.S. dollar equivalent of Notes denominated in another Specified Currency (as specified in the
applicable Final Terms in relation to the relevant Notes, as described under ‘‘Form of the Notes’’ shall be
determined, at the discretion of the relevant Issuer, as of the date of agreement to issue such Notes (the
‘‘Agreement Date’’) or on the preceding day on which commercial banks and foreign exchange markets
are open for business in London, in each case on the basis of the spot rate for the sale of the U.S. dollar
against the purchase of the relevant Specified Currency in the London foreign exchange market quoted
by any leading bank selected by the relevant Issuer on the relevant date of calculation;

(b)

the U.S. dollar equivalent of Dual Currency Notes, Indexed Notes and Partly Paid Notes (each as
specified in the applicable Final Terms in relation to the relevant Notes, as described under ‘‘Form of the
Notes’’) shall be calculated in the manner specified above by reference to the original nominal amount
on issue of such Notes (in the case of Partly Paid Notes regardless of the subscription price paid); and

(c)

the U.S. dollar equivalent of Zero Coupon Notes (as specified in the applicable Final Terms in relation
to the relevant Notes, as described under ‘‘Form of the Notes’’) and other Notes issued at a discount or
premium shall be calculated in the manner specified above by reference to the net proceeds received by
the relevant Issuer for the relevant issue.

23

FORM OF THE NOTES
The Notes of each Series will be in bearer and/or registered form, as indicated in the applicable Final
Terms.
Unless otherwise provided with respect to a particular Series of Registered Notes, the Registered Notes
of each Tranche of such Series offered and sold in reliance on Regulation S, which will be sold to non-U.S.
persons outside the United States, will initially be represented by a Reg. S Global Note which will be deposited
with, and registered in the name of a nominee of, a common depositary for Euroclear Bank S.A./N.V. as
operator of the Euroclear System (‘‘Euroclear’’) and Clearstream Banking, société anonyme (‘‘Clearstream,
Luxembourg’’). Prior to expiry of the Distribution Compliance Period (as defined in Regulation S) applicable
to each Tranche of Notes, beneficial interests in a Reg. S. Global Note may not be offered or sold to, or for the
account or benefit of, a U.S. person save as otherwise provided in Condition 13 and may not be held otherwise
than through Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg and such Reg. S Global Note will bear a legend regarding
such restrictions on transfer.
Registered Notes of each Tranche of a particular Series may only be offered and sold in the United
States or to, or for the account or benefit of, U.S. persons in private transactions: (i) to QIBs; or (ii) to
Institutional Accredited Investors who agree to purchase the Notes for their own account and not with a view
to the distribution thereof. The Registered Notes of each Tranche sold to QIBs will be represented by a
Restricted Global Note which will be deposited with a custodian for, and registered in the name of a nominee
of, DTC.
Persons holding beneficial interests in Registered Global Notes will be entitled or required, as the case
may be, under the circumstances described below, to receive physical delivery of definitive Notes in fully
registered form.
The Registered Notes of each Tranche sold to Institutional Accredited Investors will be in definitive
form, registered in the name of the holders thereof. The Restricted Global Note and the Registered Notes in
definitive form issued to Institutional Accredited Investors will be subject to certain restrictions on transfer set
forth therein and will bear a legend regarding such restrictions.
Payments of the principal of, and interest (if any) on, the Registered Global Notes will, in the absence of
provision to the contrary, be made to the person shown on the Register (as defined in Condition 6(b)) as the
registered holder of the Registered Global Notes. None of the Issuers, the Trustee, the Agent, any Paying Agent
or the Registrar will have any responsibility or liability for any aspect of the records relating to or payments or
deliveries made on account of beneficial ownership interests in the Registered Global Notes or for maintaining,
supervising or reviewing any records relating to such beneficial ownership interests.
Payments of principal on the Registered Notes will, in the absence of provision to the contrary, be made
to the persons shown on the Register at the close of business on the business day immediately prior to the
relevant payment or delivery date. Payments of interest on the Registered Notes will be made on the relevant
payment date to the person in whose name such Notes are registered on the Record Date (as defined in
Condition 6(b)) immediately preceding such payment date.
Interests in a Registered Global Note will be exchangeable (free of charge), in whole but not in part, for
definitive Registered Notes without receipts, interest coupons or talons attached only upon the occurrence of
an Exchange Event unless otherwise provided in the applicable Final Terms. For these purposes, ‘‘Exchange
Event’’ means that (i) an Event of Default (as defined in Condition 10) has occurred and is continuing, (ii)
Clearstream, Luxembourg and/or Euroclear or DTC, as the case may be, has notified the Issuer that it is
unwilling or unable to continue to act as depositary for the Notes and no alternative clearing system
satisfactory to the relevant Issuer, the Agent and the Trustee is available, (iii) DTC has ceased to constitute a
clearing agency registered under the United States Securities Exchange Act of 1934 or the relevant Issuer has
been notified that both Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg have been closed for business for a
continuous period of 14 days (other than by reason of holiday, statutory or otherwise) or have announced an
intention permanently to cease business or have in fact done so and, in any such case, no alternative clearing
system satisfactory to the relevant Issuer, the Agent and the Trustee is available, (iv) the relevant Issuer has or
will become obliged to pay additional amounts as provided for or referred to in Condition 8 which would not
be required were the Notes represented by the Registered Global Note in definitive form, (v) the holder of a
beneficial interest in the Restricted Global Note notifies the Registrar in writing that it is transferring such
beneficial interest to an Institutional Accredited Investor who is required to hold its beneficial interest in the
Registered Notes in definitive form, (vi) not less than 60 days’ written notice requesting exchange has been
given by Euroclear, Clearstream, Luxembourg and/or DTC, as the case may be, (acting on the instructions of
any holder of an interest in a Registered Global Note) to the Registrar; provided that in the case of (iv) a written
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notice or request, as the case may be, is submitted to the Registrar. The relevant Issuer will promptly give notice
to the Noteholders in accordance with Condition 16 if an Exchange Event occurs. In the event of the
occurrence of an Exchange Event referred to in (i) to (iv) above, Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg or
DTC, as the case may be, (acting on the instructions of any holder of an interest in such Registered Global
Note) or the Trustee may give notice to the Registrar requesting exchange and, in the event of the occurrence of
an Exchange Event as described in (iv) above, the relevant Issuer may also give notice to the Registrar
requesting exchange. Any such exchange (except in the case of (vi) above) shall occur not later than 30 days
after the date of receipt of the first relevant notice by the Registrar. Upon the occurrence of an Exchange Event,
the relevant Issuer will cause the appropriate Registered Notes in definitive form to be delivered, provided that,
notwithstanding the above, no Registered Notes in definitive form will be issued in exchange for a Registered
Global Note until the expiry of the applicable Distribution Compliance Period.
Each Tranche of Bearer Notes will initially be represented by a Temporary Bearer Global Note (without
receipts, interest coupons or talons) which, unless otherwise agreed between the relevant Issuer, the Bank
(where the Issuer is BCP Finance) and the relevant Dealer, will be delivered to a common depositary for
Clearstream, Luxembourg and Euroclear. Whilst any Bearer Note is represented by a Temporary Bearer Global
Note, payments of principal and interest (if any) due prior to the Exchange Date (as defined below) will be
made against presentation of the Temporary Bearer Global Note only to the extent that certification (in a form
to be provided) to the effect that the beneficial owner of such Note is not a U.S. person or a person who has
purchased for resale to any U.S. person, as required by U.S. Treasury regulations, has been received by
Clearstream, Luxembourg and/or Euroclear, as applicable, and Clearstream, Luxembourg and/or Euroclear, as
applicable, has given a like certification (based on the certifications it has received) to the Agent.
On and after the date (the ‘‘Exchange Date’’) which is 40 days after the date on which a Temporary
Bearer Global Note is issued, interests in the Temporary Bearer Global Note will be exchangeable (free of
charge) upon a request by Clearstream, Luxembourg and/or Euroclear acting on the instruction of the holders
of interests in the Temporary Bearer Global Note either for interests in a Permanent Bearer Global Note
(without receipts, interest coupons or talons) or for security printed definitive Bearer Notes (as indicated in the
applicable Final Terms and subject, in the case of definitive Bearer Notes, to such notice period as is specified
in the applicable Final Terms) in each case against certification of beneficial ownership as described above and
in accordance with the terms of the Temporary Bearer Global Note unless such certification has already been
given. Unless exchange for an interest in a Permanent Global Note or for definitive Notes is improperly
withheld or refused, the holder of a Temporary Bearer Global Note will not be entitled to collect any payment
of interest or principal due on or after the Exchange Date.
Payments of principal and interest (if any) on a Permanent Bearer Global Note will be made through
Clearstream, Luxembourg and/or Euroclear against presentation or (as the case may be) surrender of the
Permanent Bearer Global Note without any requirement for certification. The applicable Final Terms will
specify that a Permanent Bearer Global Note will be exchangeable (free of charge), in whole but not in part, for
definitive Bearer Notes with, where applicable, receipts, interest coupons and talons attached upon either (i)
not less than 60 days’ written notice from Clearstream, Luxembourg and/or Euroclear (acting on the
instructions of any holder of an interest in such Permanent Bearer Global Note) to the Agent as described
therein or (ii) only upon the occurrence of an Exchange Event.
For these purposes, ‘‘Exchange Event’’ means that (i) an Event of Default has occurred and is
continuing, (ii) the relevant Issuer has been notified that both Clearstream, Luxembourg and Euroclear have
been closed for business for a continuous period of 14 days (other than by reason of holiday, statutory or
otherwise) or have announced an intention permanently to cease business or have in fact done so and no
alternative clearing system satisfactory to the relevant Issuer, the Agent and the Trustee is available or (iii) the
relevant Issuer has or will become obliged to pay additional amounts as provided for or referred to in
Condition 8 which would not be required were the Notes represented by the Permanent Bearer Global Note in
definitive form. The relevant Issuer will promptly give notice to Noteholders in accordance with Condition 15
if an Exchange Event occurs. In the event of the occurrence of an Exchange Event, Clearstream, Luxembourg
and/or Euroclear (acting on the instructions of any holder of an interest in such Permanent Bearer Global
Note) may give notice to the Agent requesting exchange and, in the event of the occurrence of an Exchange
Event as described in (iii) above, the relevant Issuer may also give notice to the Agent requesting exchange. Any
such exchange shall occur not later than 60 days after the date of receipt of the first relevant notice by the
Agent.
Pursuant to the Agency Agreement (as defined under ‘‘Terms and Conditions of the Notes’’ below) the
Agent shall arrange that, where a further Tranche of Notes is issued, the Notes of such Tranche shall be
assigned (where applicable) a CUSIP number, and, in the case of Bearer Notes and Reg. S Notes (as defined in
the Conditions), a CINS number, common code and ISIN which are different from the CUSIP number, CINS
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number, common code and ISIN assigned to Notes of any other Tranche of the same Series until at least the
expiry of the Distribution Compliance Period applicable to such Tranche. The end of such period and, as the
case may be, the CUSIP number, CINS number, common code and ISIN thereafter applicable to the Notes of
the relevant Series will be notified by the Agent to the relevant Dealer.
All global Notes and definitive Notes will, subject to any mandatory provisions of law, be issued
pursuant to the Trust Deed (as defined under ‘‘Terms and Conditions of the Notes’’ below) and the Agency
Agreement.
For so long as any of the Notes is represented by a Global Note deposited with a common depositary
for Clearstream, Luxembourg and Euroclear or for so long as DTC or its nominee is the registered holder of a
Registered Global Note, each person who is for the time being shown in the records of Clearstream,
Luxembourg or of Euroclear or, as the case may be, DTC as entitled to a particular nominal amount of Notes
(in which regard any certificate or other document issued by Clearstream, Luxembourg, Euroclear or DTC or
its nominee as to the nominal amount of Notes standing to the account of any person shall be conclusive and
binding for all purposes save in the case of manifest error) shall be deemed to be the holder of such nominal
amount of such Notes for all purposes other than with respect to the payment of principal or interest on, or, in
the case of a Registered Global Note, voting, giving consents or making requests in respect of, such nominal
amount of such Notes, for which purpose such common depositary or, as the case may be, DTC or, in the case
of payment only, its nominee shall be deemed to be the holder of such nominal amount of such Notes in
accordance with and subject to the terms of the relevant global Note and the Trust Deed (and the expressions
‘‘Noteholder’’ and ‘‘holder of Notes’’ and related expressions shall be construed accordingly).
No beneficial owner of an interest in a Registered Global Note will be able to exchange or transfer that
interest, except in accordance with the applicable procedures of DTC, Clearstream, Luxembourg or Euroclear,
as the case may be, in each case to the extent applicable.
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FORM OF FINAL TERMS
Set out below is the form of Final Terms, which will be completed for each Tranche of Notes issued under the Programme.

FINAL TERMS
[Date]

[BCP Finance Bank, Ltd. (‘‘BCP Finance’’)/Banco Comercial Português, S.A. (the ‘‘Bank’’) acting
through its [head office/international Madeira branch ‘‘Sucursal Financeira Internacional’’]](1)
Issue of [Aggregate Nominal Amount of Tranche] [Title of Notes]
[Guaranteed by Banco Comercial Português, S.A. acting through its [head office/international Madeira
branch ‘‘Sucursal Financeira Internacional’’]](1)
under the U.S.$15,000,000,000
Euro Note Programme
PART A – CONTRACTUAL TERMS
This document constitutes the Final Terms relating to the issue of Notes described herein.
Terms used herein shall be deemed to be defined as such for the purposes of the Conditions set forth in the
Offering Circular dated 13th December, 2005 which constitutes a base prospectus for the purposes of the
Prospectus Directive (Directive 2003/71/EC) (the ‘‘Prospectus Directive’’). This document constitutes the
Final Terms of the Notes described herein for the purposes of Article 5.4 of the Prospectus Directive and must
be read in conjunction with the Offering Circular. Full information on the Issuer and the offer of the Notes is
only available on the basis of the combination of these Final Terms and the Offering Circular. The Offering
Circular is available for viewing at [address] and [website] and copies may be obtained from [address].
The following alternative language applies if the first tranche of an issue which is being increased was issued under an
Offering Circular with an earlier date.
Terms used herein shall be deemed to be defined as such for the purposes of the Conditions (the
‘‘Conditions’’) set forth in the Offering Circular dated [original date]. This document constitutes the Final
Terms of the Notes described herein for the purposes of Article 5.4 of the Prospectus Directive (Directive 2003/
71/EC) (the ‘‘Prospectus Directive’’) and must be read in conjunction with the Offering Circular dated [current
date] which constitutes a base prospectus for the purposes of the Prospectus Directive, save in respect of the
Conditions which are extracted from the Offering Circular dated [original date] and are attached hereto. Full
information on the Issuer and the offer of the Notes is only available on the basis of the combination of these
Final Terms and the Offering Circulars dated [current date] and [original date]. Copies of such Offering Circulars
are available for viewing at [address] [and] [website] and copies may be obtained from [address].
[Include whichever of the following apply or specify as Not Applicable (N/A). Note that the numbering should remain as
set out below, even if ‘‘Not Applicable’’ is indicated for individual paragraphs or subparagraphs. Italics denote directions
for completing the Final Terms.]
[If Notes issued by BCP Finance Bank, Ltd. have a maturity of less than one year, the minimum denomination may need
to be £100,000 or its equivalent in any other currency.]
[When adding any other final terms or information consideration should be given as to whether such terms or information
constitute ‘‘significant new factors’’ and consequently trigger the need for a supplement to the Offering Circular under
Article 16 of the Prospectus Directive.]

(1) Delete as appropriate
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1.

[(i)]

Issuer:

[(ii)

Guarantor:
Branch through which the Bank
is acting:

[BCP Finance Bank Ltd. /Banco Comercial
Português, S.A. acting through its [head office/
international Madeira branch ‘‘Sucursal
Financeira Internacional’’]]
[Banco Comercial Português, S.A.]
[head office/international Madeira branch
‘‘Sucursal Financeira Internacional’’]](2)

2.

[(i)]
[(ii)

3.

Specified Currency or (in the case of Dual
Currency Notes) Currencies:

[

]

Aggregate Nominal Amount:
–
Tranche:
–
Series:

[
[

]
]

4.

Series Number:
Tranche Number:

[
]
[
]
(If fungible with an existing Series, details of that
Series, including the date on which the Notes become
fungible)

5.

Issue Price of Tranche:

[
] per cent. (in the case of fungible issues only,
if applicable) of the Aggregate Nominal Amount
[plus accrued interest from [insert date]

6.

Specified Denominations:
(in the case of Registered Notes, this means the
minimum integral amount in which transfers can be
made)

[
]
[
] (N.B. If an issue of Notes is (i) NOT
admitted to trading on an European Economic
Area exchange; and (ii) only offered in the
European Economic Area in circumstances where a
prospectus is not required to be published under the
Prospectus Directive the E1,000 minimum
denomination is not required.)

7.

[(i)]
[(ii)

Issue Date [and Interest Commencement
Date]:
Interest Commencement Date (if different
from the Issue Date):

[

]

[

]]

8.

Maturity Date:

[Fixed rate — specify date/Floating rate — Interest
Payment Date falling in or nearest to [specify
month]]

9.

Interest Basis:

[[
] per cent. Fixed Rate]
[[LIBOR/EURIBOR] +/- [
] per cent.
Floating Rate]
[Zero Coupon]
[Index Linked Interest]
[Dual Currency Interest]
[specify other]
(further particulars specified below)

(2) It is intended that Notes issued by BCP Finance will be guaranteed by the Bank acting through its international Madeira branch
‘‘Sucursal Financeira Internacional’’. In certain circumstances (including but not limited to, relevant Portuguese tax laws and other
applicable laws and regulations) Notes issued by BCP Finance may also be guaranteed through the head office of the Bank. This will
only be the case (i) if and when the Board of Directors decides to that effect and an appropriate resolution has been passed by such
Board of Directors, and (ii) the Dealers have been provided with a legal opinion from the Bank’s external legal advisers in Portugal.
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10.

Redemption/Payment Basis:

[Redemption at par]
[Index Linked Redemption]
[Dual Currency Redemption]
[Partly Paid]
[Instalment]
[specify other]

11.

Change of Interest Basis or
Redemption/Payment Basis:

(N.B. If the Final Redemption Amount of each
Note is other than 100 per cent. of its nominal
value, then the Notes will be derivative securities for
the purposes of the Prospectus Directive and the
requirements of Annex XII to the Prospectus
Directive Regulation will apply.)
[Specify details of any provision for change of Notes
into another Interest Basis or Redemption/Payment
Basis]

12.

Put/Call Options:

[Investor Put]
[Issuer Call]
[(further particulars specified below)]

13.

[(i)]
[(ii)

[Senior/[Dated/Perpetual] Subordinated]
[Conditions attached/No]

14.

Method of distribution:
(a)
If syndicated, names of Managers and if
non-syndicated, names of Dealers:
(b)
Presumption that [Dealer(s)/Manager(s)]
[is/are] selling as principal on [its/their]
own account and not as agent is correct:

Status of the Notes:
If Perpetual:

[Syndicated/Non-syndicated]
[give details]

[Yes/No]

PROVISIONS RELATING TO INTEREST (IF ANY) PAYABLE
15.

[Applicable/Not Applicable]
(If not applicable, delete the remaining subparagraphs of this paragraph)
[
] per cent. per annum [payable [annually/
semi-annually/quarterly] in arrear]
(If payable other than annually, consider amending
Condition 5)
[[
] in each year up to and including the
Maturity Date]/[specify other]
(NB: This will need to be amended in the case of
long or short coupons)
[
] per [
] in nominal amount
[Insert particulars of any initial or final broken
interest amounts which do not correspond with the
Fixed Coupon Amount]
[30/360 or Actual/Actual (ICMA) or specify
other]
(NB: if interest is not payable on a regular basis
(for example, if there are Broken Amounts specified)
Actual/Actual (ICMA) may not be a suitable Day
Count Fraction)

Fixed Rate Note Provisions

(i)

Rate(s) of Interest:

(ii)

Interest Payment Date(s):

(iii)
(iv)

Fixed Coupon Amount(s):
Broken Amount(s):

(v)

Day Count Fraction:

29

16.

(vi)

Determination Date(s):

[
] in each year
[Insert regular interest payment dates, ignoring issue
date or maturity date in the case of a long or short
first or last coupon]
(NB: This will need to be amended in the case of
regular interest payment dates which are not of
equal duration)
(NB: Only relevant where Day Count Fraction is
Actual/Actual (ICMA))

(vii)

Other terms relating to the method of
calculating interest for Fixed Rate Notes:

[Applicable/Not Applicable]
(If not applicable, delete the remaining subparagraphs of this paragraph)

Floating Rate Note Provisions

(i)
(ii)

(iii)
(iv)
(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)
(ix)
(x)
(xi)

Specified Period(s)/Specified Interest
Payment Dates:
Business Day Convention:

Additional Business Centre(s):
Manner in which the Rate of Interest and
Interest Amount is to be determined:
Party responsible for calculating the Rate
of Interest and Interest Amount (if not the
Agent):
Screen Rate Determination:
– Reference Rate:

–

Interest Determination Date(s):

–

Relevant Screen Page:

[None/Give details]

ISDA Determination:
– Floating Rate Option:
– Designated Maturity:
Margin(s):
Minimum Rate of Interest:
Maximum Rate of Interest:
Day Count Fraction:

[
]
[Floating Rate Convention/Following Business
Day Convention/Modified Following Business
Day Convention/Preceding Business Day
Convention/[specify other]]
[
]
[Screen Rate Determination/ISDA
Determination/specify other]

[

]

[
]
(Either LIBOR, EURIBOR or other, although
additional information is required if other –
including fallback provisions in the Agency
Agreement)
[
]
(Second London business day prior to the start of
each Interest Period if LIBOR (other than Sterling
or euro LIBOR), first day of each Interest Period if
Sterling LIBOR and the second day on which the
TARGET System is open prior to the start of each
Interest Period if EURIBOR or euro LIBOR)
[
]
(In the case of EURIBOR, if not Telerate Page 248
ensure it is a page which shows a composite rate or
amend the fallback provisions appropriately)
[
]
[
]
[+/-] [
] per cent. per annum
[
] per cent. per annum
[
] per cent. per annum
[Actual/365
Actual/365 (Fixed)
Actual/365 (Sterling)
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Actual/360
30/360
30E/360
Other]
(See Condition 5 for alternatives)3
(xii)

17.

Zero Coupon Note Provisions

(i)
(ii)
(iii)
(iv)

18.

Accrual Yield:
Reference Price:
Any other formula/basis of determining
amount payable:
Day Count Fraction in relation to Early
Redemption Amounts and late payment:

Index Linked Interest Note Provisions

(i)
(ii)

(v)

Index/Formula:
Calculation Agent responsible for
calculating the principal and/or interest
due:
Provisions for determining coupon where
calculation by reference to Index and/or
Formula is impossible or impracticable:
Specified Period(s)/Specified Interest
Payment Dates:
Business Day Convention:

(vi)
(vii)
(viii)
(ix)

Additional Business Centre(s):
Minimum Rate of Interest:
Maximum Rate of Interest:
Day Count Fraction:

(iii)

(iv)

19.

Fall back provisions, rounding provisions
and any other terms relating to the
method of calculating interest on Floating
Rate Notes, if different from those set out
in the Conditions:

(ii)

(iii)

]

[Applicable/Not Applicable]
(If not applicable, delete the remaining subparagraphs of this paragraph)
[
] per cent. per annum
[
]
[
]
[Conditions 7(e) and 7(j)] apply/specify other]
(Consider applicable day count fraction if not U.S.
dollar denominated)
[Applicable/Not Applicable]
(If not applicable, delete the remaining
subparagraphs of this paragraph)
[give or annex details]

[
]
[Need to include a description of market disruption
or settlement disruption events and adjustment
provisions]
[
]
[Floating Rate Convention/Following Business
Day Convention/Modified Following Business
Day Convention/Preceding Business Day
Convention/specify other]
[
]
[
] per cent. per annum
[
] per cent. per annum
[
]
[Applicable/Not Applicable]
(If not applicable, delete the remaining subparagraphs of this paragraph)

Dual Currency Note Provisions

(i)

[

Rate of Exchange/ method of calculating
Rate of Exchange:
Calculation Agent, if any, responsible for
calculating the principal and/or interest
payable:
Provisions applicable where calculation by
reference to Rate of Exchange impossible
or impracticable:
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[give details]

[
]
[Need to include a description of market disruption
or settlement disruption events and adjustment
provisions]

(iv)

Person at whose option Specified
Currency(ies) is/are payable:

[

]

PROVISIONS RELATING TO REDEMPTION
20.

(i)
(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

21.

Optional Redemption Date(s):
Optional Redemption Amount(s) and
method, if any, of calculation of such
amount(s):
If redeemable in part:
(a) Minimum Redemption Amount:
(b) Higher Redemption Amount:
Notice period (if other than as set
out in the Conditions):

[
] per Note of [
Denomination
[
]
[
]
[
]

(iii)

] Specified

[
]
(N.B. If setting notice periods which are different to
those provided in the Conditions, the Issuer is
advised to consider the practicalities of distribution
of information through intermediaries, for example,
clearing systems and custodians, as well as any other
notice requirements which may apply, for example,
as between the Issuer and the Agent or Trustee)

Investor Put

(i)
(ii)

22.

[Applicable/Not Applicable]
(If not applicable, delete the remaining subparagraphs of this paragraph)
[
]

Issuer Call

Optional Redemption Date(s):
Optional Redemption Amount(s) and
method, if any, of calculation of such
amount(s):
Notice period (if other than as set out in
the Conditions):

Final Redemption Amount of each Note:

32

[Applicable/Not Applicable]
(If not applicable, delete the remaining subparagraphs of this paragraph)
[
]

[

]

[
]
(N.B. If setting notice periods which are different to
those provided in the Conditions, the Issuer is
advised to consider the practicalities of distribution
of information through intermediaries, for example,
clearing systems and custodians, as well as any other
notice requirements which may apply, for example,
as between the Issuer and the Agent or Trustee)
[[ ] per Note of [ ] Specified Denomination/
specify other/see Appendix]
(N.B. In relation to any issue of Notes which are
expressed at paragraph 6 above to have a minimum
denomination and tradeable amounts above such
minimum denomination which are smaller than it
the following wording should be added: ‘‘For the
avoidance of doubt, in the case of a holding of
Notes in an integral multiple of [ ] in excess of [ ]
as envisaged in paragraph 6 above, such holding
will be redeemed at its nominal amount.’’.)

(N.B. If the Final Redemption Amount of each
Note is other than 100 per cent. of its nominal
value, then the Notes will be derivative securities for
the purposes of the Prospectus Directive and the
requirements of Annex XII to the Prospectus
Directive Regulation will apply.)
23.

Early Redemption Amount(s) payable on
redemption for taxation reasons or on event of
default and/or the method of calculating the same
(if required or if different from that set out in
Condition 7(e)):

[

]

GENERAL PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO THE NOTES
24.

Form of Notes:

25.

Additional Financial Centre(s) or other special
provisions relating to Payment Dates:

26.

[Bearer Notes:
Temporary Bearer Global Note exchangeable
for a Permanent Bearer Global Note which is
exchangeable for Definitive Notes [on 60 days’
notice given at any time/only upon an
Exchange Event]
[Temporary Bearer Global Note exchangeable
for Definitive Notes on and after the Exchange
Date]
[Registered Notes:
Regulation S Global Note (U.S.$[
]
nominal amount)/Rule 144A Global Note
(U.S.$[
] nominal amount/Definitive IAI
Registered Notes (specify nominal amounts)]
[Not Applicable/give details]
(Note that this item relates to the place of payment
and not Interest Period end dates to which item
17(iii) relates)

Talons for future Coupons or Receipts to be
attached to Definitive Bearer Notes (and dates on
which such Talons mature):

[Yes/No. If yes, give details]

Details relating to Partly Paid Notes: amount of
each payment comprising the Issue Price and date
on which each payment is to be made and
consequences of failure to pay, including any right
of the issuer to forfeit the Notes and interest due
on late payment:

[Not Applicable/give details. NB: new forms of
Global Note may he required for Partly Paid
issues.]

28.

Details relating to Instalment Notes:
(i)
Instalment Amount(s):
(ii)
Instalment Date(s):

[Not Applicable/give details]
[Not Applicable/give details]
[Not Applicable/give details]

29.

Redenomination applicable:

Redenomination [not] applicable [(if
Redenomination is applicable, specify the terms of
Redenomination in an Annex to the Final Terms)]

30.

Other final terms:

[Not Applicable/give details]

27.
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(When adding any other final terms consideration
should be given as to whether such terms constitute
‘‘significant new factors’’ and consequently trigger
the need for a supplement to the Offering Circular
under Article 16 of the Prospectus Directive.)
DISTRIBUTION
31.

32.

(i)

If syndicated, names [and addresses]* of
Managers and underwriting commitments:

(ii)
(iii)

Date of Syndication Agreement*:
Stabilising Manager (if any):

If non-syndicated, name and address of
relevant Dealer:

[Not Applicable/give names [and addresses and
underwriting commitments]*]
(Include names and addresses of entities agreeing to
underwrite the issue on a firm commitment basis
and names and addresses of the entities agreeing to
place the issue without a firm commitment or on a
‘‘best efforts’’ basis if such entities are not the same
as the Managers.)*
[
]*
[Not Applicable/give name]
[Name [and address]*]

33.

Total commission and concession*:

[
] per cent. of the Aggregate Nominal
Amount*

34.

Whether TEFRA D or TEFRA C rules applicable
or TEFRA rules not applicable:

[TEFRA D/TEFRA rules not applicable]

35.

Additional selling restrictions:

[Not Applicable/give details]

[LISTING AND ADMISSION TO TRADING APPLICATION
These Final Terms comprise the final terms required to list and have admitted to trading the issue of Notes
described herein pursuant to the U.S.$15,000,000,000 Euro Note Programme of Banco Comercial Português,
S.A., acting either through its head office or through its international Madeira branch ‘‘Sucursal Financeira
Internacional’’ and BCP Finance Bank, Ltd.]
RESPONSIBILITY
The Issuer [and the Guarantor] accept[s] responsibility for the information contained in these Final Terms.
[[Information on underlying assets] has been extracted from [source]. The Issuer confirms that such information
has been accurately reproduced and that, so far as it is aware and is able to ascertain from information
published by [ ], no facts have been omitted which would render the reproduced information inaccurate or
misleading].
Signed on behalf of the Issuer:

[Signed on behalf of the Guarantor:

By:

By:

.............................
Duly authorised

............................
Duly authorised]

If the applicable Final Terms specifies any modification to the Terms and Conditions of the Notes as described
herein, it is envisaged that, to the extent that such modification relates only to Conditions [Form, Denomination
and Title, 5,6, 7 (except Condition 1(b)) 12, 13, 14, 15 (insofar as such Notes are not listed on any stock
exchange or any other relevant authority or authorities) or 17, they will not necessitate the preparation of a
supplement to this Offering Circular. If the Terms and Conditions of the Notes of any Series are to be
modified in any other respect, a supplement to this Offering Circular will be prepared, if appropriate.
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PART B – OTHER INFORMATION
1.

Listing
(i)

Listing:

[London/Luxembourg/other (specify)/None]

(ii)

Admission to trading:

[Application has been made for the Notes to be
admitted to trading on [ ] with effect from [ ].] [Not
Applicable.]
(Where documenting a fungible issue need to indicate that
original securities are already admitted to trading.*)

2.

Ratings

The Notes to be issued have been rated:
[S & P:
[Moody’s:

[ ]]
[ ]]

[[Other]:

[

]]

[Need to include a brief explanation of the meaning of the
ratings if this has previously been published by the rating
provider.]*
(The above disclosure should reflect the rating allocated to
Notes of the type being issued under the Programme generally
or, where the issue has been specifically rated, that rating.)
3.

Notification
The [name of competent authority in home Member State] [has been requested to provide/has provided —
include first alternative for an issue which is contemporaneous with the establishment or update of the Programme
and the second alternative for subsequent issues] the [names of competent authorities of host Member States] with
a certificate of approval attesting that the Prospectus has been drawn up in accordance with the
Prospectus Directive.]

4.

Interests of Natural and Legal Persons Involved In the Issue
[Save for any fees payable to the Dealers, so far as the Issuer is aware, no person involved in the issue of
the Notes has an interest material to the offer. – Amend as appropriate if there are other interests]

5.

Reasons for the Offer, Estimated Net Proceeds and Total Expenses
[(i)

Reasons for the offer

[

]

(See [‘‘Use of Proceeds’’] wording in Offering Circular – if
reasons for offer different from making profit and/or
hedging certain risks will need to include those reasons
here.)]*
[(ii)]

Estimated net proceeds:

[

]

(If proceeds are intended for more than one use will need
to split out and present in order of priority. If proceeds
insufficient to fund all proposed uses state amount and
sources of other funding.)*
[(iii)]

Estimated total expenses:

[ ]. [Expenses are required to be broken down into each
principal intended ‘‘use’’ and presented in order of priority
of such ‘‘uses’’.]*
(NB: for an issuance with a denomination of
EUR50,000 or more, include an estimate of total
expenses related to admission to trading)

35

(If the Notes are derivative securities to which Annex XII of
the Prospectus Directive Regulation applies (i) above is required
where the reasons for the offer are different from making profit
and/or hedging certain risks regardless of the minimum
denomination of the securities and where this is the case
disclosure of net proceeds and total expenses at (ii) and
(iii) above are also required)
6.

Yield (Fixed Rate Notes only)
Indication of yield:

[

]

[Calculated as [include details of method of calculation in
summary form] on the Issue Date.]*
The yield is calculated at the Issue Date on the basis of
the Issue Price. It is not an indication of future yield.
7.

Historic Interest Rates (Floating Rate Notes only)*
Details of historic [LIBOR/EURIBOR/other] rates can be obtained from [Telerate].]

8.

Performance of Index/Formula, [Explanation of Effect on Value of Investment and Associated Risks]*
and Other Information Concerning the Underlying (Index-Linked Notes only)
[Need to include details of where past and future performance and volatility of the index/formula can be obtained.]
[Need to include a clear and comprehensive explanation of how the value of the investment is affected by the
underlying and the circumstances when the risks are most evident.]*
[Where the underlying is an index need to include the name of the index and a description if composed by the Issuer
and if the index is not composed by the Issuer need to include details of where the information about the index can
be obtained. Where the underlying is not an index need to include equivalent information.]

9.

Performance of Rate[s] of Exchange [and Explanation of Effect on Value of Investment* (Dual Currency
Notes only)
[Need to include details of where past and future performance and volatility of the relevant rates can be obtained.]
[Need to include a clear and comprehensive explanation of how the value of the investment is affected by the
underlying and the circumstances when the risks are most evident.]*

10.

Operational Information
(i)

ISIN Code:

[

(ii)
(iii)

Common Code:
Any clearing system(s) other than Euroclear Bank S.A./N.V. and Clearstream
Banking, société anonyme and the relevant identification number(s):
Delivery:

[ ]
[Not Applicable/give name(s) and number(s)]

Names and addresses of additional Paying Agent(s) (if any):

[

(iv)
(v)

]

Delivery [against/free of] payment
]

Note: * There is no obligation to complete in the case of Notes with a minimum denomination of at least
EUR50,000 or its equivalent in any other currency or, as the case may be, in the case of Notes with a
minimum transfer amount of at least EUR50,000 or its equivalent in any other currency.
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TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE NOTES
The following are the Terms and Conditions of Notes which will be incorporated by reference into each global Note
and which will be endorsed on or attached to (or, if permitted by the relevant stock exchange or other relevant authority and
agreed between the relevant Issuer and the relevant Dealer, incorporated by reference into) each definitive Note. The
applicable Final Terms in relation to any Notes supplements the following Terms and Conditions and may specify other
terms and conditions which shall, to the extent so specified or to the extent inconsistent with the following Terms and
Conditions, replace or modify the following Terms and Conditions for the purpose of such Notes. The applicable Final
Terms will be incorporated into, or attached to, each Temporary Bearer Global Note, Permanent Bearer Global Note,
Registered Global Note and definitive Note. Reference should be made to ‘‘Form of the Notes’’ above for the form of Final
Terms which will specify which of such terms are to apply in relation to the relevant Notes.
This Note is one of a Series (as defined below) of Notes issued by Banco Comercial Português, S.A. (the
‘‘Bank’’), acting either through its head office or through its international Madeira branch ‘‘Sucursal Financeira
Internacional’’ as specified in the Final Terms relating to this Note (the ‘‘applicable Final Terms’’), or BCP
Finance Bank, Ltd. (‘‘BCP Finance’’ and, together with the Bank in its capacity as an issuer of Notes, the
‘‘Issuers’’ and each an ‘‘Issuer’’). References in these Terms and Conditions to the ‘‘Issuer’’ shall be references
to the party specified as the Issuer in the applicable Final Terms. This Note is constituted by a Trust Deed dated
8th October, 1998 (such Trust Deed as amended and/or restated and/or supplemented from time to time, the
‘‘Trust Deed’’) made between the Issuers and The Law Debenture Trust Corporation p.l.c. as trustee (the
‘‘Trustee’’, which expression shall include any successor trustee). References herein to the ‘‘Notes’’ shall be
references to the Notes of this Series and shall mean (i) in relation to any Notes represented by a global Note,
units of the lowest Specified Denomination in the Specified Currency (each as defined below), (ii) definitive
Bearer Notes issued in exchange (or part exchange) for a global Note, (iii) definitive Registered Notes and (iv)
any global Note. The Notes, the Receipts (as defined below) and the Coupons (as defined below) also have the
benefit of an Agency Agreement dated 8th October, 1998 (such Agency Agreement as amended and/or restated
and/or supplemented from time to time, the ‘‘Agency Agreement’’) and made between the Issuers, Citibank,
N.A., London office, as issuing and principal paying agent and agent bank (the ‘‘Agent’’, which expression shall
include any successor agent specified in the applicable Final Terms), the other paying agents named therein
(together with the Agent, the ‘‘Paying Agents’’, which expression shall include any additional or successor
paying agents), Citibank, N.A., New York office, as registrar (the ‘‘Registrar’’, which expression shall include
any successor registrar), the transfer agents named therein (the ‘‘Transfer Agents’’, which expression shall
include any additional or successor transfer agents), Citibank, N.A., New York office, as exchange agent (the
‘‘Exchange Agent’’, which expression shall include any successor exchange agent) and the Trustee.
Interest bearing definitive Bearer Notes have interest coupons (‘‘Coupons’’), unless otherwise indicated
in the applicable Final Terms and, if indicated in the applicable Final Terms, talons for further Coupons
(‘‘Talons’’) attached on issue. Any reference herein to Coupons or coupons shall, unless the context otherwise
requires, be deemed to include a reference to Talons or talons. Definitive Bearer Notes repayable in instalments
have receipts (‘‘Receipts’’) for the payment of the instalments of principal (other than the final instalment)
attached on issue. Registered Notes, in definitive or global form, do not have Receipts or Coupons attached on
issue.
The applicable Final Terms for this Note is attached hereto or (to the extent relevant) incorporated
herein and supplements these Terms and Conditions (the ‘‘Conditions’’) and may specify other terms and
conditions which shall, to the extent so specified or to the extent inconsistent with these Conditions, replace or
modify these Conditions for the purposes of this Note.
The applicable Final Terms will state in particular whether this Note is (i) a senior Note issued by BCP
Finance or the Bank and, where the Issuer is BCP Finance, guaranteed on an unsubordinated basis by the Bank
as described in Condition 4(a) (a ‘‘Senior Note’’) or (ii) a subordinated Note issued by BCP Finance or the
Bank and, where the Issuer is BCP Finance, guaranteed on a subordinated basis by the Bank as described in
Condition 4(b) (a ‘‘Subordinated Note’’).
The Trustee acts for the benefit of the holders of the Notes being in the case of Bearer Notes, the bearers
thereof and, in the case of Registered Notes, the persons in whose name the Notes are registered (the
‘‘Noteholders’’, which expression shall, in relation to any Notes represented by a global Note, be construed as
provided below), the holders of the Receipts (the ‘‘Receiptholders’’) and the holders of the Coupons (the
‘‘Couponholders’’, which expression shall, unless the context otherwise requires, include the holders of the
Talons), all in accordance with the provisions of the Trust Deed.
As used herein, ‘‘Tranche’’ means all Notes with the same Issue Date and which are the subject of the
same Final Terms and ‘‘Series’’ means a Tranche of Notes together with any further Tranche or Tranches of
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Notes which are (i) expressed to be consolidated and form a single series and (ii) are identical in all respects
(including as to listing) except for their respective Issue Dates, Interest Commencement Dates and/or Issue
Prices.
Copies of the Trust Deed, the Agency Agreement and the applicable Final Terms are available for
inspection at the registered office of the Trustee, being at 22nd November, 2004 at Fifth Floor, 100 Wood
Street, London EC2V 7EX and at the specified office of each of the Paying Agents, the Registrar and the
Transfer Agents save that a Final Terms relating to a Note not listed on any stock exchange will only be
available for inspection by the relevant Dealer specified in the applicable Final Terms and, upon proof
satisfactory to the Trustee, the Registrar or the relevant Paying Agent or Transfer Agent, as the case may be, as
to identity, by the holder of any Note to which such Final Terms relates. The Noteholders, the Receiptholders
and the Couponholders are deemed to have notice of, and are entitled to the benefit of, all the provisions of
the Trust Deed, the Agency Agreement and the applicable Final Terms which are binding on them. These
Terms and Conditions include summaries of, and are subject to, the detailed provisions of the Trust Deed.
Words and expressions defined in the Trust Deed or the Agency Agreement or used in the applicable
Final Terms shall have the same meanings where used in these Terms and Conditions unless the context
otherwise requires or unless otherwise stated and provided that, in the event of inconsistency between the
Agency Agreement and the Trust Deed, the Trust Deed will prevail and that, in the event of inconsistency
between the Agency Agreement or the Trust Deed and the applicable Final Terms, the applicable Final Terms
will prevail.
1.

Form, Denomination and Title

The Notes may be in bearer form (‘‘Bearer Notes’’) and/or in registered form (‘‘Registered Notes’’), as
specified in the applicable Final Terms, and, in the case of definitive Notes, will be serially numbered, in the
Specified Currency and the Specified Denomination(s). Save as provided below in Condition 13, Notes of one
Specified Denomination may not be exchanged for Notes of another Specified Denomination.
This Note is a Senior Note or a Subordinated Note, as indicated in the applicable Final Terms.
This Note is a Fixed Rate Note, a Floating Rate Note, a Zero Coupon Note, an Index Linked Interest
Note (where payment in respect of interest is linked to an index and/or a formula), a Dual Currency Interest
Note, an Indexed Redemption Amount Note (where payment in respect of principal is linked to an index and/
or a formula), a Dual Currency Redemption Note or a Partly Paid Note or any appropriate combination of any
of the foregoing, depending upon the Interest Basis shown in the applicable Final Terms. It is also a Dual
Currency Note, a Partly Paid Note, an Index Linked Interest Note and an Indexed Redemption Amount Note
if, in each case, the applicable Final Terms so indicates and, in such case, the appropriate provisions of these
Terms and Conditions will apply accordingly.
Bearer Notes in definitive form are issued with Coupons and (if applicable) Receipts and Talons
attached, unless they are Zero Coupon Notes in which case references to interest and Coupons and
Couponholders in these Terms and Conditions are not applicable.
Subject as set out below, title to Bearer Notes, Receipts and Coupons will pass by delivery. Title to
Registered Notes will pass upon registration of transfers in the books of the Registrar in New York City.
Subject as set out below, the Issuer, the Bank (where the Issuer is BCP Finance), the Trustee, any Paying
Agent, the Registrar, the Exchange Agent and any Transfer Agent will (except as otherwise required by law)
deem and treat the bearer of any Bearer Note, Receipt or Coupon and any person in whose name a Registered
Note is registered as the absolute owner thereof (whether or not overdue and notwithstanding any notice of
ownership or writing thereon or notice of any previous loss or theft thereof) for all purposes but, in the case of
any global Note, without prejudice to the provisions set out in the next paragraph.
For so long as any of the Notes is represented by a Global Note held by a common depositary on behalf
of Clearstream, Luxembourg and/or Euroclear as defined above, each person who is for the time being shown
in the records of Clearstream, Luxembourg or Euroclear as entitled to a particular nominal amount of such
Notes (in which regard any certificate or other document issued by Clearstream, Luxembourg or Euroclear as to
the nominal amount of Notes standing to the account of any person shall be conclusive and binding for all
purposes save in the case of manifest error) shall be treated by the Issuer, the Bank (where the Issuer is BCP
Finance), the Trustee and the Paying Agents as the holder of such nominal amount of such Notes for all
purposes other than with respect to the payment of principal or interest on such nominal amount of such
Notes, for which purpose such common depositary shall be treated by the Issuer, the Bank (where the Issuer is
BCP Finance), the Trustee and the Paying Agents as the holder of such nominal amount of such Notes in
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accordance with and subject to the terms of the relevant Global Note and the expressions ‘‘Noteholder’’ and
‘‘holder of Notes’’ and related expressions shall be construed accordingly.
For so long as any of the Notes is represented by a Registered Global Note registered in the name of The
Depository Trust Company (‘‘DTC’’) or its nominee, each person who is for the time being shown in the
records of DTC or such nominee as the holder of a particular nominal amount of such Notes shall be treated
by the Issuer, the Bank (where the Issuer is BCP Finance), the Trustee, the Paying Agents and the Registrar as
the holder of such nominal amount of such Notes for all purposes other than with respect to the payment of
principal or interest on, or voting, giving consents or making requests in respect of, such nominal amount of
such Notes for which purpose DTC or, in the case of payments only, its nominee shall be treated by the Issuer,
the Bank (where the Issuer is BCP Finance), the Trustee, the Paying Agents and the Registrar as the holder of
such nominal amount of such Notes in accordance with and subject to the terms of such Registered Global
Note; and the expressions ‘‘Noteholder’’ and ‘‘holder of Notes’’ and related expressions shall be construed
accordingly. In determining whether a particular person is entitled to a particular nominal amount of Notes as
aforesaid, the Trustee may rely on such evidence and/or information and/or certification as it shall, in its
absolute discretion, think fit and, if it does so rely, such evidence and/or information and/or certification shall,
in the absence of manifest error, be conclusive and binding on all concerned.
References herein to DTC, Clearstream, Luxembourg and/or Euroclear shall, whenever the context so
permits, be deemed to include a reference to any additional or alternative clearing system approved by the
Issuer, the Bank (where the Issuer is BCP Finance), the Agent and the Trustee and specified in the applicable
Final Terms.
Notes which are represented by a global Note will be transferable only in accordance with the rules and
procedures for the time being of Clearstream, Luxembourg, Euroclear or DTC, as the case may be.
2.

Status of the Notes

(a)

In the case of Senior Notes

If the Notes are specified as Senior Notes in the applicable Final Terms, the Notes and the relative
Receipts and Coupons are direct, unconditional, unsecured (subject to the provisions of Condition 3) and
unsubordinated obligations of the Issuer and rank and will rank pari passu among themselves and with all
present and future unsecured (subject as aforesaid) and unsubordinated obligations of the Issuer, save for those
that have been accorded by law preferential rights.
(b)

In the case of Subordinated Notes of BCP Finance

If the Notes are specified as Subordinated Notes and the Issuer is specified as BCP Finance in the
applicable Final Terms, the Notes and the relative Receipts and Coupons are direct, unconditional and
unsecured obligations of BCP Finance subordinated as provided below and rank and will rank pari passu among
themselves.
The claims of the holders of the Notes and the relative Receipts and Coupons against BCP Finance in
respect of payments pursuant to the Notes and the relative Receipts and Coupons will, in the event of the
winding up of BCP Finance, be subordinated to the claims of all Senior Creditors of BCP Finance in
accordance with the provisions of the Trust Deed. ‘‘Senior Creditors of BCP Finance’’ means all secured
creditors of BCP Finance and all other creditors of BCP Finance except those whose claims are or are expressed
to be subordinated, in the event of the winding up of BCP Finance, to the right to payment of all
unsubordinated creditors of BCP Finance.
(c)

In the case of Subordinated Notes of the Bank

If the Notes are specified as Subordinated Notes and the Issuer is specified as the Bank in the applicable
Final Terms, the Notes and the relative Receipts and Coupons are direct, unconditional and unsecured
obligations of the Bank, save that the claims of the holders of the Notes and the relative Receipts and Coupons
in respect of payments pursuant thereto will, in the event of the winding up of the Bank, (to the extent
permitted by Portuguese law) be subordinated to the claims of all Senior Creditors of the Bank. The
subordination of the Notes is for the benefit of the Bank and all Senior Creditors of the Bank. ‘‘Senior
Creditors of the Bank’’ means all secured creditors of the Bank and all other creditors of the Bank except those
whose claims rank or are expressed to rank pari passu with or junior to the claims of the holders of the Notes
and the relative Receipts and Coupons.
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3.

Negative Pledge

This Condition 3 shall apply only to Senior Notes and references to ‘‘Notes’’, ‘‘Noteholders’’,
‘‘Receiptholders’’ and ‘‘Couponholders’’ shall be construed accordingly.
So long as any of the Notes remains outstanding (as defined in the Trust Deed), neither the Issuer nor
the Bank (where the Issuer is BCP Finance) shall create or permit to be outstanding any mortgage, charge, lien,
pledge or other similar encumbrance or security interest (each a ‘‘security interest’’) upon the whole or any part
of its undertaking or assets, present or future (including any uncalled capital if applicable), to secure any
Indebtedness (as defined below) or to secure any guarantee or indemnity given in respect of any Indebtedness,
without, in the case of the creation of a security interest, at the same time and, in any other case, promptly
according to the Noteholders, the Receiptholders and the Couponholders an equal and rateable interest in the
same or, at the option of the relevant Issuer, providing to the Noteholders, the Receiptholders and the
Couponholders such other security as the Trustee shall, in its absolute discretion, deem to be not materially
less beneficial to the Noteholders or as shall be approved by an Extraordinary Resolution (as defined in the
Trust Deed) of the Noteholders save that the Issuer or the Bank (where the Issuer is BCP Finance) may create or
permit to subsist a security interest to secure Indebtedness and/or any guarantee or indemnity given in respect
of Indebtedness of any person, in each case as aforesaid, (but without the obligation to accord or provide to the
Noteholders, the Receiptholders and the Couponholders either, an equal and rateable interest in the same or
such other security as aforesaid) where such security interest:
(a)

is only over such part of the undertaking or assets, present or future, of the Issuer or the Bank (where the
Issuer is BCP Finance) that belonged to a company whose assets or undertaking have become part of the
assets or undertaking of the Issuer or the Bank (where the Issuer is BCP Finance) pursuant to an
amalgamation or merger of such company with the Issuer or the Bank (where the Issuer is BCP
Finance), which security interest exists at the time of such amalgamation or merger and was not created
in contemplation thereof or in connection therewith and the principal, nominal or capital amount
secured at the time of such amalgamation or merger is not thereafter increased; or

(b)

is created pursuant to any securitisation, asset-backed financing or like arrangement in accordance with
normal market practice and whereby the amount of Indebtedness secured by such security interest or in
respect of which any guarantee or indemnity is secured by such security interest is limited to the value
of the assets secured; or

(c)

is granted in relation to mortgage-backed bonds (‘‘Obrigações hipoteca´rias’’) issued by the Bank under
Portuguese law and ‘‘covered bonds’’.

‘‘Indebtedness’’ means any borrowings having an original maturity of more than one year in the form
of or represented by bonds, notes, debentures or other securities (not comprising, for the avoidance of doubt,
preference shares or other equity securities) which with the consent of the Issuer or the Bank (where the Issuer
is BCP Finance), as the case may be, are, or are intended to be, listed or traded on any stock exchange or other
organised market for securities (whether or not initially distributed by way of private placing) other than a
borrowing which is entirely or substantially placed in Portugal.
4.

Status of the Guarantee

The Bank, acting through its international Madeira branch ‘‘Sucursal Financeira Internacional’’, except
where otherwise stated in the applicable Final Terms, has in the Trust Deed unconditionally and irrevocably
guaranteed the due and punctual payment of the principal of, and interest on, all Notes issued by BCP Finance
and all other amounts payable by BCP Finance under or pursuant to the Trust Deed (the ‘‘Guarantee’’).
The obligations of the Bank under the Guarantee constitute:
(a)

in the case of Senior Notes, direct, unconditional, unsecured (subject to the provisions of Condition 3)
and unsubordinated obligations of the Bank and rank and will rank pari passu with all present and future
unsecured (subject as aforesaid) and unsubordinated obligations (including those arising under deposits
received in its banking business) of the Bank, save for those that have been accorded by law preferential
rights; and

(b)

in the case of Subordinated Notes, direct, unconditional and unsecured obligations of the Bank, save
that the claims of the holders of the Notes and the relative Receipts and Coupons in respect of
payments pursuant thereto will, in the event of the winding up of the Bank, (to the extent permitted by
Portuguese law) be subordinated to the claims of all Senior Creditors of the Bank (as defined in
Condition 2(c)). The subordination of the Guarantee is for the benefit of the Bank and all Senior
Creditors of the Bank.
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5.

Interest

(a)

Interest on Fixed Rate Notes

Each Fixed Rate Note bears interest on its nominal amount (or, if it is a Partly Paid Note, the amount
paid up) from (and including) the Interest Commencement Date at the rate(s) per annum equal to the Rate(s)
of Interest payable in arrear on the Interest Payment Date(s) in each year up to the Maturity Date.
Except as provided in the applicable Final Terms, the amount of interest payable on each Interest
Payment Date in respect of the Fixed Interest Period ending on (but excluding) such date will amount to the
Fixed Coupon Amount. Payments of interest on any Interest Payment Date will, if so specified in the
applicable Final Terms, amount to the Broken Amount so specified.
If interest is required to be calculated for a period ending other than on an Interest Payment Date, such
interest shall be calculated by applying the Rate of Interest to each Specified Denomination, multiplying such
sum by the applicable Day Count Fraction, and rounding the resultant figure to the nearest sub-unit of the
relevant Specified Currency, half of any such sub-unit being rounded upwards or otherwise in accordance with
applicable market convention.
In these Conditions:
‘‘Day Count Fraction’’ means, in respect of the calculation of an amount of interest in accordance with
this Condition 5:
(i)

(ii)

if ‘‘Actual/Actual (ISMA)’’ is specified in the applicable Final Terms:
(a)

in the case of Notes where the number of days in the relevant period from (and
including) the most recent Interest Payment Date (or, if none, the Interest
Commencement Date) to (but excluding) the relevant payment date (the ‘‘Accrual
Period’’) is equal to or shorter than the Determination Period during which the Accrual
Period ends, the number of days in such Accrual Period divided by the product of (1) the
number of days in such Determination Period and (2) the number of Determination
Dates (as specified in the applicable Final Terms) that would occur in one calendar year;
or

(b)

in the case of Notes where the Accrual Period is longer than the Determination Period
during which the Accrual Period ends, the sum of:
(1)

the number of days in such Accrual Period falling in the Determination Period in
which the Accrual Period begins divided by the product of (x) the number of days
in such Determination Period and (y) the number of Determination Dates (as
specified in the applicable Final Terms) that would occur in one calendar year;
and

(2)

the number of days in such Accrual Period falling in the next Determination
Period divided by the product of (x) the number of days in such Determination
Period and (y) the number of Determination Dates that would occur in one
calendar year; and

if ‘‘30/360’’ is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the number of days in the period from
(and including) the most recent Interest Payment Date (or, if none, the Interest Commencement
Date) to (but excluding) the relevant payment date (such number of days being calculated on the
basis of 12 30-day months) divided by 360;

‘‘Determination Period’’ means the period from (and including) a Determination Date to (but
excluding) the next Determination Date (including, where either the Interest Commencement Date or
the final Interest Payment Date is not a Determination Date, the period commencing on the first
Determination Date prior to, and ending on the first Determination Date falling after, such date); and
‘‘sub-unit’’ means with respect to any currency other than euro, the lowest amount of such currency
that is available as legal tender in the country of such currency and, with respect to euro, means one
cent.
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(b)

Interest on Floating Rate Notes and Index Linked interest Notes
(i)

Interest Payment Dates
Each Floating Rate Note or Index Linked Interest Note bears interest on its outstanding nominal
amount (or, if it is a Partly Paid Note, the amount paid up) from (and including) the Interest
Commencement Date and such interest will be payable in arrear on either:
(A)

the Specified Interest Payment Date(s) in each year specified in the applicable Final
Terms; or

(B)

if no Specified Interest Payment Date(s) is/are specified in the applicable Final Terms,
each date (each such date, together with each Specified Interest Payment Date, an
‘‘Interest Payment Date’’) which falls the number of months or other period specified as
the Calculation Period in the applicable Final Terms after the preceding Specified
Interest Payment Date or, in the case of the first Interest Payment Date, after the Interest
Commencement Date.

Such interest will be payable in respect of each Interest Period (which expression shall, in these
Terms and Conditions, mean the period from (and including) an Interest Payment Date (or the
Interest Commencement Date) to (but excluding) the next (or first) Interest Payment Date).
If a business day convention is specified in the applicable Final Terms and (x) if there is no
numerically corresponding day in the calendar month in which an Interest Payment Date should
occur or (y) if any Interest Payment Date (or any other date) would otherwise fall on a day which
is not a Business Day, then, if the business day convention specified is:
(1)

in any case where Specified Periods are specified in accordance with Condition 5(b)(i)(B)
above, the Floating Rate Convention, such Interest Payment Date (i) in the case of (x)
above, shall be the last day that is a Business Day in the relevant month and the
provisions of (B) below shall apply mutatis mutandis or (ii) in the case of (y) above, shall
be postponed to the next day which is a Business Day unless it would thereby fall into
the next calendar month, in which event (A) such Interest Payment Date shall be brought
forward to the immediately preceding Business Day and (B) each subsequent Interest
Payment Date shall be the last Business Day in the month which falls the Specified
Period after the preceding applicable Interest Payment Date occurred; or

(2)

the Following Business Day Convention, such Interest Payment Date (or other date) shall
be postponed to the next day which is a Business Day; or

(3)

the Modified Following Business Day Convention, such Interest Payment Date (or other
date) shall be postponed to the next day which is a Business Day unless it would thereby
fall into the next calendar month, in which event such Interest Payment Date (or other
date) shall be brought forward to the immediately preceding Business Day; or

(4)

the Preceding Business Day Convention, such Interest Payment Date (or other date) shall
be brought forward to the immediately preceding Business Day.

In these Conditions, ‘‘Business Day’’ means a day which is both:
(I)

a day on which commercial banks and foreign exchange markets settle payments and are
open for general business (including dealing in foreign exchange and foreign currency
deposits) in London and any Additional Business Centre specified in the applicable Final
Terms; and

(II)

either (1) in relation to any sum payable in a Specified Currency other than euro, a day
on which commercial banks and foreign exchange markets settle payments and are open
for general business (including dealing in foreign exchange and foreign currency deposits)
in the principal financial centre of the country of the relevant Specified Currency (if
other than London and any Additional Business Centre and which, if the Specified
Currency is Australian dollars or New Zealand dollars, shall be Sydney or Auckland,
respectively) or (2) in relation to any sum payable in euro, a day on which the TransEuropean Automated Real-Time Gross Settlement Express Transfer (TARGET) System
(the ‘‘TARGET System’’) is open.
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(ii)

Rate of Interest
The Rate of Interest payable from time to time in respect of Floating Rate Notes and Index
Linked Interest Notes will be determined in the manner specified in the applicable Final Terms.

(iii)

ISDA Determination for Floating Rate Notes
Where ISDA Determination is specified in the applicable Final Terms as the manner in which
the Rate of Interest is to be determined, the Rate of Interest for each Interest Period will be the
relevant ISDA Rate plus or minus (as indicated in the applicable Final Terms) the Margin (if
any). For the purposes of this sub-paragraph (iii), ‘‘ISDA Rate’’ for an Interest Period means a
rate equal to the Floating Rate that would be determined by the Agent or other person specified
in the applicable Final Terms under an interest rate swap transaction if the Agent or that other
person were acting as Calculation Agent for that swap transaction under the terms of an
agreement incorporating the 2000 ISDA Definitions, as published by the International Swaps
and Derivatives Association, Inc. and as amended and updated as at the Issue Date of the first
Tranche of the Notes (the ‘‘ISDA Definitions’’) and under which:
(A)

the Floating Rate Option is as specified in the applicable Final Terms;

(B)

the Designated Maturity is a period specified in the applicable Final Terms; and

(C)

the relevant Reset Date is either (i) if the applicable Floating Rate Option is based on the
London inter-bank offered rate (‘‘LIBOR’’) or on the Euro-zone inter-bank offered rate
(‘‘EURIBOR’’) the first day of that Interest Period or (ii) in any other case, as specified in
the applicable Final Terms.

Unless otherwise specified in the applicable Final Terms, the Minimum Rate of Interest shall be
deemed to be zero.
For the purposes of this Condition 5(b)(iii), ‘‘Floating Rate’’, ‘‘Calculation Agent’’, ‘‘Floating
Rate Option’’, ‘‘Designated Maturity’’ and ‘‘Reset Date’’ have the meanings given to those terms
in the ISDA Definitions.
(iv)

Screen Rate Determination for Floating Rate Notes
Where Screen Rate Determination is specified in the applicable Final Terms as the manner in
which the Rate of Interest is to be determined, the Rate of Interest for each Interest Period will,
subject as provided below, be either:
(A)

the offered quotation (if there is only one quotation on the Relevant Screen Page); or

(B)

the arithmetic mean (rounded if necessary to the fifth decimal place, with 0.000005 being
rounded upwards) of the offered quotations,

(expressed as a percentage rate per annum) for the Reference Rate(s) which appears or appear, as
the case may be, on the Relevant Screen Page as at 11.00 a.m. (London time) in the case of
LIBOR, or Brussels time, in the case of EURIBOR on the Interest Determination Date in
question plus or minus (as indicated in the applicable Final Terms) the Margin (if any), all as
determined by the Agent. If five or more such offered quotations are available on the Relevant
Screen Page, the highest (or, if there is more than one such highest quotation, one only of such
quotations) and the lowest (or, if there is more than one such lowest quotation, one only of such
quotations) shall be disregarded by the Agent for the purpose of determining the arithmetic
mean (rounded as provided above) of such offered quotations.
The Agency Agreement contains provisions for determining the Rate of Interest in the event that
the Relevant Screen Page is not available or if, in the case of (A) above, no such quotation
appears or, in the case of (B) above, fewer than three such offered quotations appear, in each case
as at the time specified in the preceding paragraph. Alternatively, provisions dealing with this
may be included in the applicable Final Terms.
If the Reference Rate from time to time in respect of Floating Rate Notes is specified in the
applicable Final Terms as being based on a rate other than LIBOR or EURIBOR, the Rate of
Interest in respect of such Notes will be determined as provided in the applicable Final Terms.
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(v)

Minimum Rate of Interest and/or Maximum Rate of Interest
If the applicable Final Terms specifies a Minimum Rate of Interest for any Interest Period, then,
in the event that the Rate of Interest in respect of such Interest Period determined in accordance
with the above provisions is less than such Minimum Rate of Interest, the Rate of Interest for
such Interest Period shall be such Minimum Rate of Interest. If the applicable Final Terms
specifies a Maximum Rate of Interest for any Interest Period, then, in the event that the Rate of
Interest in respect of such Interest Period determined in accordance with the above provisions is
greater than such Maximum Rate of Interest, the Rate of Interest for such Interest Period shall be
such Maximum Rate of Interest.

(vi)

Determination of Rate of Interest and Calculation of Interest Amounts
The Agent or, where the Final Terms specifies another person to act as calculation agent, such
person (the ‘‘Calculation Agent’’), in the case of Floating Rate Notes and Index Linked Interest
Notes will, at or as soon as practicable after each time at which the Rate of Interest is to be
determined, determine the Rate of Interest and calculate the amount of interest (the ‘‘Interest
Amount’’) payable on the Floating Rate Notes or, as the case may be, Index Linked Interest
Notes in respect of each Specified Denomination for the relevant Interest Period. In the case of
Index Linked Interest Notes, the Calculation Agent will notify the Agent of the Rate of Interest
and the Interest Amount for the relevant Interest Period as soon as practicable after determining
and calculating the same. Each Interest Amount shall be calculated by applying the Rate of
Interest to the Specified Denomination, multiplying such sum by the applicable Day Count
Fraction, and rounding the resultant figure to the nearest sub-unit of the relevant Specified
Currency, half of any such sub-unit being rounded upwards or otherwise in accordance with
applicable market convention.
‘‘Day Count Fraction’’ means, in respect of the calculation of an amount of interest for any
Interest Period:
(a)

if ‘‘Actual/365’’ or ‘‘Actual/Actual’’ is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the actual
number of days in the Interest Period divided by 365 (or, if any portion of that Interest
Period falls in a leap year, the sum of (A) the actual number of days in that portion of the
Interest Period falling in a leap year divided by 366 and (B) the actual number of days in
that portion of the Interest Period falling in a non-leap year divided by 365);

(b)

if ‘‘Actual/365 (Fixed)’’ is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the actual number of
days in the Interest Period divided by 365;

(c)

if ‘‘Actual/365 (Sterling)’’ is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the actual number
of days in the Interest Period divided by 365 or, in the case of an Interest Payment Date
falling in a leap year, 366;

(d)

if ‘‘Actual/360’’ is specified in the applicable Final Terms the actual number of days in
the Interest Period divided by 360;

(e)

if ‘‘30/360’’, ‘‘360/36’’ or ‘‘Bond Basis’’ is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the
number of days in the Interest Period divided by 360 (the number of days to be
calculated on the basis of a year of 360 days with 12 30-day months (unless (a) the last day
of the Interest Period is the 31st day of a month but the first day of the Interest Period is a
day other than the 30th or 31st day of a month, in which case the month that includes
that last day shall not be considered to be shortened to a 30-day month, or (b) the last
day of the Interest Period is the last day of the month of February, in which case the
month of February shall not be considered to be lengthened to a 30-day month)); and

(f)

if ‘‘30E/360’’ or ‘‘Eurobond Basis’’ is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the number
of days in the Interest Period divided by 360 (the number of days to be calculated on the
basis of a year of 360 days with 12 30-day months, without regard to the date of the first
day or last day of the Interest Period unless, in the case of an Interest Period ending on
but excluding the Maturity Date, the Maturity Date is the last day of the month of
February, in which case the month of February shall not be considered to be lengthened
to a 30-day month).
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(vii)

Notification of Rate of Interest and Interest Amount
The Agent will cause the Rate of Interest and each Interest Amount for each Interest Period and
the relevant Interest Payment Date to be notified to the Issuer, the Bank (where the Issuer is BCP
Finance), the Trustee and any stock exchange on which the relevant Floating Rate Notes or
Index Linked Interest Notes are for the time being listed and notice thereof to be published in
accordance with Condition 15 as soon as possible after their determination but in no event later
than the fourth London Business Day (as defined below) thereafter. Each Interest Amount and
Interest Payment Date so notified may subsequently be amended (or appropriate alternative
arrangements made by way of adjustment) in the event of an extension or shortening of the
Interest Period. Any such amendment will be promptly notified to each stock exchange on
which the relevant Floating Rate Notes or Index Linked Interest Notes are for the time being
listed and to the Noteholders in accordance with Condition 15. For the purposes of this
paragraph, the expression ‘‘London Business Day’’ means a day (other than a Saturday or a
Sunday) on which banks and foreign exchange markets are open for general business in London.

(viii)

Determination or Calculation by Trustee
If for any reason the Agent or, as the case may be, the Calculation Agent at any time after the
Issue Date defaults in its obligation to determine the Rate of Interest or calculate any Interest
Amount in accordance with sub-paragraph (ii), (iii) or (iv) above, as the case may be, and, in each
case, (vii) above, the Trustee shall determine the Rate of Interest at such rate as, in its absolute
discretion (having such regard as it shall think fit to the foregoing provisions of this Condition,
but subject always to any Minimum or Maximum Interest Rate specified in the applicable Final
Terms), it shall deem fair and reasonable in all the circumstances or, as the case may be, the
Trustee shall calculate the Interest Amount(s) in such manner as it shall deem fair and reasonable
in all the circumstances and each such determination or calculation shall be deemed to have
been made by the Agent.

(ix)

Certificates to be Final
All certificates, communications, opinions, determinations, calculations, quotations and
decisions given, expressed, made or obtained for the purposes of the provisions of this
Condition 5(b), whether by the Agent, the Calculation Agent or the Trustee, shall (in the
absence of wilful default, bad faith or manifest error) be binding on the Issuer, the Bank (where
the Issuer is BCP Finance), the Agent, the Calculation Agent, the Trustee, the other Paying
Agents, the Transfer Agents, the Exchange Agent, the Registrar and all Noteholders,
Receiptholders and Couponholders and (in the absence as aforesaid) no liability to the Issuer,
the Bank (where the Issuer is BCP Finance), the Noteholders, the Receiptholders or the
Couponholders shall attach to either the Agent, the Calculation Agent or the Trustee in
connection with the exercise or non-exercise by it of its powers, duties and discretions pursuant
to such provisions.

(c)

Interest on Dual Currency Interest Notes

The rate or amount of interest payable in respect of Dual Currency Interest Notes shall be determined
in the manner specified in the applicable Final Terms.
(d)

Interest on Partly Paid Notes

In the case of Partly Paid Notes (other than Partly Paid Notes which are Zero Coupon Notes), interest
will accrue as aforesaid on the paid-up nominal amount of such Notes and otherwise as specified in the
applicable Final Terms.
(e)

Accrual of Interest

Each Note (or, in the case of the redemption of part only of a Note, that part only of such Note) will
cease to bear interest (if any) from the due date for its redemption unless, upon due presentation thereof,
payment of principal is improperly withheld or refused. In such event, interest will continue to accrue as
provided in the Trust Deed or in the applicable Final Terms.
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6.

Payments

(a)

Method of Payment
Subject as provided below:
(i)

payments in a Specified Currency other than euro will be made by credit or transfer to an
account in the relevant Specified Currency (which, in the case of a payment in Japanese Yen to a
non-resident of Japan, shall be a non-resident account) maintained by the payee with, or by a
cheque in such Specified Currency drawn on, a bank in the principal financial centre of the
country of such Specified Currency (which, if the Specified Currency is Australian dollars or
New Zealand dollars, shall be Sydney or Auckland, respectively); and

(ii)

payments in euro will be made by credit or transfer to a euro account (or any other account to
which euro may be credited or transferred) specified by the payee or, at the option of the payee,
by a euro cheque.

Payments will be subject in all cases to any fiscal or other laws and regulations applicable thereto in the
place of payment, but without prejudice to the provisions of Condition 8.
(b)

Presentation of Notes, Receipts and Coupons

Payments of principal in respect of definitive Bearer Notes will (subject as provided below) be made in
the manner provided in paragraph (a) above only against presentation and surrender (or, in the case of part
payment only of any sum due, endorsement) of definitive Bearer Notes, and payments of interest in respect of
definitive Bearer Notes will (subject as provided below) be made as aforesaid only against presentation and
surrender (or, in the case of part payment of any sum due only, endorsement) of Coupons, in each case at the
specified office of any Paying Agent outside the United States (which expression, as used herein, means the
United States of America (including the States and the District of Columbia, its territories, its possessions and
other areas subject to its jurisdiction)).
In respect of Bearer Notes in definitive form, payments of instalments of principal (if any), other than
the final instalment, will (subject as provided below) be made in the manner provided in paragraph (a) above
against presentation and surrender (or, in the case of part payment of any sum due only, endorsement) of the
relevant Receipt in accordance with the preceding paragraph. Payment of the final instalment will be made in
the manner provided in paragraph (a) above against presentation and surrender (or, in the case of part payment
of any sum due only, endorsement) of the relevant Note in accordance with the preceding paragraph. Each
Receipt must be presented for payment of the relevant instalment together with the definitive Bearer Note to
which it appertains. Receipts presented without the definitive Bearer Notes to which they appertain do not
constitute valid obligations of the Issuer. Upon the date on which any definitive Bearer Note becomes due and
repayable, unmatured Receipts (if any) relating thereto (whether or not attached) shall become void and no
payment shall be made in respect thereof.
Fixed Rate Notes in definitive bearer form (other than Dual Currency Notes or Index Linked or Long
Maturity Notes (as defined below)) should be presented for payment together with all unmatured Coupons
appertaining thereto (which expression shall for this purpose include Coupons falling to be issued on exchange
of matured Talons), failing which the amount of any missing unmatured Coupon (or, in the case of payment
not being made in full, the same proportion of the amount of such missing unmatured Coupon as the sum so
paid bears to the sum due) will be deducted from the sum due for payment. Each amount of principal so
deducted will be paid in the manner mentioned above against surrender of the relative missing Coupon at any
time before the expiry of ten years after the Relevant Date (as defined in Condition 8) in respect of such
principal (whether or not such Coupon would otherwise have become void under Condition 9) or, if later, five
years from the date on which such Coupon would otherwise have become due, but in no event thereafter.
Upon any Fixed Rate Note in definitive bearer form becoming due and repayable prior to its Maturity
Date, all unmatured Talons (if any) appertaining thereto will become void and no further Coupons will be
issued in respect thereof.
Upon the date on which any Floating Rate Note, Dual Currency Note, Index Linked Note or Long
Maturity Note in definitive bearer form becomes due and repayable, all unmatured Coupons and Talons (if
any) relating thereto (whether or not attached) shall become void and no payment or, as the case may be,
exchange for further Coupons shall be made in respect thereof. A ‘‘Long Maturity Note’’ is a Fixed Rate Note
(other than a Fixed Rate Note which on issue had a Talon attached) whose nominal amount on issue is
less than the aggregate interest payable thereon provided that such Note shall cease to be a Long Maturity
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Note on the Interest Payment Date on which the aggregate amount of interest remaining to be paid after
that date is less than the nominal amount of such Note.
If the due date for redemption of any definitive Bearer Note is not an Interest Payment Date, interest (if
any) accrued in respect of such Note from (and including) the preceding Interest Payment Date or, as the case
may be, the Interest Commencement Date shall be payable only against surrender of the relevant definitive
Bearer Note.
Payments of principal and interest (if any) in respect of Notes represented by any bearer global Note will
(subject as provided below) be made in the manner specified in paragraph (a) above and otherwise in the
manner specified in the relevant bearer global Note against presentation or surrender, as the case may be, of
such bearer global Note at the specified office of any Paying Agent outside the United States. A record of each
payment made against presentation or surrender of such bearer global Note, distinguishing between any
payment of principal and any payment of interest, will be made on such bearer global Note by such Paying
Agent and such record shall be prima facie evidence that the payment in question has been made.
Payments of principal (other than instalments of principal prior to the final instalment) in respect of
Registered Notes (whether or not in global form) will be made in the manner specified in paragraph (a) above
to the persons in whose name such Notes are registered at the close of business on the business day (being for
this purpose a day on which banks are open for business in the city where the Registrar is located) immediately
prior to the relevant payment date against presentation and surrender (or, in the case of part payment only of
any sum due, endorsement) of such Notes at the specified office of the Registrar.
Payments of interest due on a Registered Note (whether in definitive or global form) and payments of
instalments of principal (if any) due on a Registered Note (other than the final instalment) will be made in the
manner specified in paragraph (a) above to the person in whose name such Note is registered at the close of
business on the fifteenth day (whether or not such fifteenth day is a business day (being for this purpose a day
on which banks are open for business in the city where the Registrar is located) (the ‘‘Record Date’’)) prior to
such due date. In the case of payments by cheque, cheques will be mailed to the holder (or the first named of
joint holders) at such holder’s registered address on the business day (as described above) immediately
preceding the due date.
If payment in respect of any Registered Notes is required by credit or transfer as referred to in paragraph
(a) above application for such payment must be made by the holder to the Registrar not later than the relevant
Record Date.
Unless otherwise specified, the holder of a global Note (or, as provided in the Trust Deed, the Trustee)
shall be the only person entitled to receive payments in respect of Notes represented by such global Note and
the Issuer and the Bank (where the Issuer is BCP Finance) will be discharged by payment to, or to the order of,
the holder of such global Note (or the Trustee, as the case may be) in respect of each amount so paid. Each of
the persons shown in the records of DTC, Clearstream, Luxembourg or Euroclear as the beneficial holder of a
particular nominal amount of Notes represented by such global Note must, unless the applicable Final Terms
states otherwise, look solely to DTC, Clearstream, Luxembourg or Euroclear, as the case may be, for his share
of each payment so made by the Issuer or the Bank (where the Issuer is BCP Finance) to, or to the order of, the
holder of such global Note (or the Trustee, as the case may be). Unless otherwise specified or in the
circumstances specified in the second paragraph of Condition 11, no person other than the holder of such
global Note (or the Trustee, as the case may be) shall have any claim against the Issuer or the Bank (where the
Issuer is BCP Finance) in respect of any payments due on that global Note.
All amounts payable to DTC or its nominee as registered holder of a Registered Global Note in respect
of Notes denominated in a Specified Currency other than U.S. dollars shall be paid by transfer by the Registrar
to an account in the relevant Specified Currency of the Exchange Agent on behalf of DTC or its nominee for
payment in such Specified Currency or conversion into U.S. dollars in accordance with the provisions of the
Agency Agreement.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, U.S. dollar payments of principal and interest in respect of Bearer Notes
will be made at the specified office of a Paying Agent in the United States (which expression, as used in this
Condition 6 and in Conditions 7, 8 and 12, means the United States of America (including the States and the
District of Columbia, its territories, its possessions and other areas subject to its jurisdiction)) if:
(A)

the Issuer and the Bank (where the Issuer is BCP Finance) have appointed Paying Agents with
specified offices outside the United States with the reasonable expectation that such Paying
Agents would be able to make payment in U.S. dollars at such specified offices outside the
United States of the full amount of principal and interest on the Bearer Notes in the manner
provided above when due;
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(c)

(B)

payment of the full amount of such principal and interest at all such specified offices outside the
United States is illegal or effectively precluded by exchange controls or other similar restrictions;
and

(C)

such payment is then permitted under United States law without involving, in the opinion of
the Issuer or the Bank (where the Issuer is BCP Finance), adverse tax consequences to the Issuer
or the Bank (where the Issuer is BCP Finance).

Payment Day

If the date for payment of any amount in respect of any Note, Receipt or Coupon is not a Payment Day,
the holder thereof shall not be entitled to payment until the next following Payment Day in the relevant place
and shall not be entitled to further interest or other payment in respect of such delay. For these purposes,
unless otherwise specified in the applicable Final Terms, ‘‘Payment Day’’ means any day which (subject to
Condition 9) is:
(i)

(d)

a day on which commercial banks and foreign exchange markets settle payments and are open
for general business (including dealing in foreign exchange and foreign currency deposits) in:
(A)

the relevant place of presentation;

(B)

London;

(C)

any Additional Financial Centre specified in the applicable Final Terms; and

(ii)

either (1) in relation to any sum payable in a Specified Currency other than euro, a day on which
commercial banks and foreign exchange markets settle payments and are open for general
business (including dealing in foreign exchange and foreign currency deposits) in the principal
financial centre of the country of the relevant Specified Currency (if other than the place of
presentation, London and any Additional Financial Centre and which, if the Specified Currency
is Australian dollars or New Zealand dollars, shall be Sydney or Auckland, respectively) or (2) in
relation to any sum payable in euro, a day on which the TARGET System is open; and

(iii)

in the case of any payment in respect of a Registered Global Note denominated in a Specified
Currency other than U.S. dollars and registered in the name of DTC or its nominee and, in
respect of which an accountholder of DTC (with an interest in such Registered Global Note) has
elected to receive any part of such payment in U.S. dollars, not a day on which banking
institutions are authorised or required by law or regulation to be closed in New York City.

Interpretation of Principal and Interest

Any reference in these Terms and Conditions to principal in respect of the Notes shall be deemed to
include, as applicable:
(i)

any additional amounts which may be payable with respect to principal under Condition 8 or
pursuant to any undertakings given in addition thereto or in substitution therefor pursuant to
the Trust Deed;

(ii)

the Final Redemption Amount of the Notes;

(iii)

the Early Redemption Amount of the Notes;

(iv)

the Optional Redemption Amounts) (if any) of the Notes;

(v)

in relation to Notes redeemable in instalments, the Instalment Amounts;

(vi)

in relation to Zero Coupon Notes, the Amortised Face Amount (as defined in Condition 7(e);
and

(vii)

any premium and any other amounts (other than interest) which may be payable by the Issuer or
the Bank (where the Issuer is BCP Finance) under or in respect of the Notes.

Any reference in these Terms and Conditions to interest in respect of the Notes shall be deemed to
include, as applicable, any additional amounts which may be payable with respect to interest under Condition
8 or pursuant to any undertakings given in addition thereto or in substitution therefor pursuant to the Trust
Deed.
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7.

Redemption and Purchase

(a)

Redemption at Maturity

Unless previously redeemed or purchased and cancelled as specified below, each Note (including each
Index Linked Redemption Note and Dual Currency Redemption Note) will be redeemed by the Issuer at its
Final Redemption Amount specified in, or determined in the manner specified in, the applicable Final Terms
in the relevant Specified Currency on the Maturity Date.
(b)

Redemption for Tax Reasons

The Notes may be redeemed at the option of the Issuer (after obtaining the consent of the Bank of
Portugal whenever it is required in the case of Subordinated Notes) in whole, but not in part, at any time (if this
Note is neither a Floating Rate Note nor an Index Linked Interest Note) or on any Interest Payment Date (if
this Note is either a Floating Rate Note or an Index Linked Interest Note), on giving not less than 30 nor more
than 60 days’ notice to the Agent and the Trustee and, in accordance with Condition 15, the Noteholders
(which notice shall be irrevocable), if:
(i)

the Issuer satisfies the Trustee immediately prior to the giving of such notice that, on the
occasion of the next payment due under the Notes, the Issuer has or will become obliged to pay
additional amounts as provided or referred to in Condition 8 or (where the Issuer is BCP
Finance) the Bank would be unable for reasons outside its control to procure payment by the
Issuer and in making payment itself would be required to pay such additional amounts, in each
case as a result of any change in, or amendment to, the laws or regulations of a Tax Jurisdiction
(as defined in Condition 8) or any change in the application or official interpretation of such
laws or regulations, which change or amendment becomes effective on or after the Issue Date of
the first Tranche of the Notes; and

(ii)

such obligation cannot be avoided by the Issuer or, as the case may be, the Bank (where the
Issuer is BCP Finance) taking reasonable measures available to it,

provided that no such notice of redemption shall be given earlier than 90 days prior to the earliest date on
which the Issuer or, as the case may be, the Bank (where the Issuer is BCP Finance) would be obliged to pay
such additional amounts were a payment in respect of the Notes then due.
Prior to the publication of any notice of redemption pursuant to this Condition, the Issuer shall deliver
to the Trustee a certificate signed by two Directors of the Issuer or, as the case may be, two Directors of the
Bank (where the Issuer is BCP Finance) stating that the Issuer is entitled to effect such redemption and setting
forth a statement of facts showing that the conditions precedent to the right of the Issuer so to redeem have
occurred, and an opinion of independent legal advisers of recognised standing to the effect that the Issuer or, as
the case may be, the Bank (where the Issuer is BCP Finance) has or will become obliged to pay such additional
amounts as a result of such change or amendment. The Trustee shall be entitled to accept such certificate and
opinion as sufficient evidence of the satisfaction of such conditions precedent in which event they shall be
conclusive and binding on the Noteholders, the Receiptholders and the Couponholders.
Notes redeemed pursuant to this Condition 7(b) will be redeemed at their Early Redemption Amount
referred to in paragraph (e) below together (if appropriate) with interest accrued to (but excluding) the date of
redemption.
(c)

Redemption at the Option of the Issuer (Issuer Call)
If Issuer Call is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the Issuer may, having given:
(i)

not less than 30 nor more than 60 days’ notice (or such period as specified in the applicable Final
Terms) to the Noteholders in accordance with Condition 15; and

(ii)

not less than 30 days before the giving of the notice (or such period as specified in the applicable
Final Terms) referred to in (i), notice to the Trustee and (in the case of a redemption of
Registered Notes), the Registrar,

(which notices shall be irrevocable and shall specify the date fixed for redemption), redeem all or some only of
the Notes then outstanding on the Optional Redemption Date(s) and at the Optional Redemption Amount(s)
specified in, or determined in the manner specified in, the applicable Final Terms together, if appropriate, with
interest accrued to (but excluding) the Optional Redemption Date(s). Any such redemption must be of a
nominal amount not less than the Minimum Redemption Amount and not more than the Higher Redemption
Amount in each case as may be specified in the applicable Final Terms. In the case of a partial redemption of
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Notes (or, as the case may be, parts of Registered Notes), the Notes to be redeemed (‘‘Redeemed Notes’’) will
be selected individually by lot without involving any part only of a Bearer Note, in the case of Redeemed Notes
represented by definitive Notes, and in accordance with the rules of Clearstream, Luxembourg and/or
Euroclear or, as the case may be, DTC, in the case of Redeemed Notes represented by a global Note, not more
than 30 days prior to the date fixed for redemption (such date of selection being hereinafter called the
‘‘Selection Date’’). In the case of Redeemed Notes represented by definitive Notes, a list of the serial numbers
of such Redeemed Notes will be published in accordance with Condition 15 not less than 15 days prior to the
date fixed for redemption. The aggregate nominal amount of Redeemed Notes represented by definitive Notes
shall bear the same proportion to the aggregate nominal amount of all Redeemed Notes as the aggregate
nominal amount of definitive Notes outstanding bears to the aggregate nominal amount of the Notes
outstanding, in each case on the Selection Date, provided that such first mentioned nominal amount shall, if
necessary, be rounded downwards to the nearest integral multiple of the Specified Denomination, and the
aggregate nominal amount of Redeemed Notes represented by a global Note shall be equal to the balance of
the Redeemed Notes. No exchange of the relevant global Note will be permitted during the period from (and
including) the Selection Date to (and including) the date fixed for redemption pursuant to this paragraph (c)
and notice to that effect shall be given by the Issuer to the Noteholders in accordance with Condition 15 at
least five days prior to the Selection Date.
(d)

Redemption at the Option of the Noteholders (Investor Put)

If Investor Put is specified in the applicable Final Terms, upon the holder of any Note giving to the
Issuer in accordance with Condition 15 not less than 30 nor more than 60 days’ notice or such other period of
notice as is specified in the applicable Final Terms (which notice shall be irrevocable), the Issuer will, upon the
expiry of such notice, redeem, subject to, and in accordance with, the terms specified in the applicable Final
Terms, such Note on the Optional Redemption Date and at the Optional Redemption Amount specified in, or
determined in the manner specified in, the applicable Final Terms together, if appropriate, with interest
accrued to (but excluding) the Optional Redemption Date.
To exercise the right to require redemption of this Note the holder of this Note must deliver a duly
signed and completed notice of exercise in the form (for the time being current) obtainable from any specified
office of any Paying Agent or Transfer Agent or the Registrar (a ‘‘Put Notice’’) accompanied by, if the Note is in
definitive form, the Note itself, to the specified office of any Paying Agent, in the case of Bearer Notes, or of
any Transfer Agent or the Registrar, in the case of Registered Notes, at any time within the notice period during
normal business hours of such Paying Agent, Transfer Agent or the Registrar, as the case may be. In the Put
Notice the holder must specify a bank account (or, if payment is by cheque, an address) to which payment is to
be made under this Condition.
Any Put Notice given by a holder of any Note pursuant to this paragraph shall be irrevocable except
where prior to the due date of redemption an Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing in which
event such holder, at its option, may elect by notice to the Issuer to withdraw the notice given pursuant to this
paragraph and instead to declare such Note forthwith due and repayable pursuant to Condition 10.
(e)

Early Redemption Amounts

For the purpose of paragraph (b) above and Condition 10, the Notes will be redeemed at the Early
Redemption Amount calculated as follows:
(i)

in the case of Notes with a Final Redemption Amount equal to the Issue Price, at the Final
Redemption Amount thereof; or

(ii)

in the case of Notes (other than Zero Coupon Notes but including instalment Notes and a Partly
Paid Notes) with a Final Redemption Amount which is or may be less or greater than the Issue
Price or which is payable in a Specified Currency other than that in which the Notes are
denominated, at the amount specified in, or determined in the manner specified in, the
applicable Final Terms or, if no such amount or manner is so specified in the Final Terms, at
their nominal amount; or

(iii)

in the case of Zero Coupon Notes, at an amount (the ‘‘Amortised Face Amount’’) calculated in
accordance with the following formula:
Early Redemption Amount = RP x (1 + AY)y where:
‘‘RP’’ means the Reference Price;
‘‘AY’’ means the Accrual Yield expressed as a decimal; and
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‘‘y’’
is a fraction the numerator of which is equal to the number of days (calculated on
the basis of a 360-day year consisting of 12 months of 30 days each) from (and including)
the Issue Date of the first Tranche of the Notes to (but excluding) the date fixed for
redemption or (as the case may be) the date upon which such Note becomes due and
repayable and the denominator of which is 360,
or on such other calculation basis as may be specified in the applicable Final Terms.
(f)

Instalments

If the Notes are repayable in instalments, they will be redeemed in the Instalment Amounts and on the
Instalment Dates specified in the applicable Final Terms. In the case of early redemption, the Early
Redemption Amount will be determined pursuant to paragraph (e) above.
(g)

Partly Paid Notes

If the Notes are Partly Paid Notes, they will be redeemed, whether at maturity, early redemption or
otherwise, in accordance with the provisions of this Condition as amended by the applicable Final Terms.
(h)

Purchases

The Issuer, the Bank (where the Issuer is BCP Finance) or any other Subsidiary (as defined in the Trust
Deed) of the Bank may at any time purchase Notes (provided that, in the case of definitive Bearer Notes, all
unmatured Receipts, Coupons and Talons appertaining thereto are purchased therewith) at any price in the
open market or otherwise. If purchases are made by tender, such tenders will be available to all Noteholders
alike. Such Notes may be held, reissued, resold or, at the option of the Issuer, the Bank (where the Issuer is BCP
Finance) or the relevant Subsidiary, surrendered to any Paying Agent or the Registrar for cancellation.
(i)

Cancellation

All Notes which are redeemed will forthwith be cancelled (together, in the case of definitive Bearer
Notes, with all unmatured Receipts, Coupons and Talons attached thereto or surrendered therewith at the time
of redemption). All Notes so cancelled and any Notes purchased and cancelled pursuant to paragraph (b)above
(together, in the case of definitive Bearer Notes, with all unmatured Receipts, Coupons and Talons cancelled
therewith) shall be forwarded to the Agent and shall not be capable of being reissued or resold.
(j)

Late Payment on Zero Coupon Notes

If the amount payable in respect of any Zero Coupon Note upon redemption of such Zero Coupon
Note pursuant to paragraph (a), (b), (c) or (d) above or upon its becoming due and repayable as provided in
Condition 10 is improperly withheld or refused, the amount due and repayable in respect of such Zero
Coupon Note shall be the amount calculated as provided in paragraph (e)(iii) above as though the references
therein to the date fixed for the redemption or the date upon which such Zero Coupon Note becomes due and
repayable were replaced by references to the date which is the earlier of:

8.

(i)

the date on which all amounts due in respect of such Zero Coupon Note have been paid; and

(ii)

the fifth day after the date on which the full amount of the moneys payable has been received by
the Agent or the Trustee and notice to that effect has been given to the Noteholder either in
accordance with Condition 15 or individually.

Taxation

All payments of principal and interest in respect of the Notes, Receipts and Coupons by the Issuer or
the Bank (where the Issuer is BCP Finance) will be made without withholding or deduction for or on account
of any present or future taxes or duties of whatever nature imposed or levied by or on behalf of any Tax
Jurisdiction unless such withholding or deduction is required by law. In such event, the Issuer or, as the case
may be, the Bank (where the Issuer is BCP Finance) will pay such additional amounts as shall be necessary in
order that the net amounts received by the holders of the Notes, Receipts or Coupons after such withholding
or deduction shall equal the respective amounts of principal and interest which would otherwise have been
receivable in respect of the Notes, Receipts or Coupons, as the case may be, in the absence of such withholding
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or deduction; except that no such additional amounts shall be payable with respect to any Note, Receipt or
Coupon:
(i)

presented for payment by or on behalf of, a Noteholder, Receiptholder or Couponholder who is
liable for such taxes or duties in respect of such Note, Receipt or Coupon by reason of his
having some connection with a Tax Jurisdiction other than the mere holding of such Note,
Receipt or Coupon; and/or

(ii)

presented for payment by or on behalf of, a Noteholder, Receiptholder or Couponholder who is
able to avoid such withholding or deduction by making a declaration of non-residence or other
claim for exemption to the relevant tax authority; and/or

(iii)

presented for payment more than 30 days after the Relevant Date (as defined below) except to
the extent that the holder thereof would have been entitled to an additional amount on
presenting the same for payment on such thirtieth day assuming that day to have been a
Payment Day (as defined in Condition 6(c)); and/or

(iv)

where such withholding or deduction is imposed on a payment to an individual and is required
to be made pursuant to European Council Directive 2003/48/EC or any law implementing or
complying with, or introduced in order to conform to, such Directive; and/or

(v)

presented for payment by or on behalf of a Noteholder, Receiptholder or Couponholder who
would have been able to avoid such withholding or deduction by presenting the relevant Note,
Receipt or Coupon to another Paying Agent in a Member State of the European Union.

As used herein:

9.

(i)

‘‘Tax Jurisdiction’’ means the Cayman Islands or any political subdivision or any authority
thereof or therein having power to tax (in the case of payments by BCP Finance) or Portugal or
any political subdivision or any authority thereof or therein having power to tax (in the case of
payments by the Bank) or, in either case, any other jurisdiction or any political subdivision or
any authority thereof or therein having power to tax to which BCP Finance or the Bank become
subject in respect of payments made by it of principal and interest on the Notes, Receipts and
Coupons, and

(ii)

the ‘‘Relevant Date’’ means the date on which such payment first becomes due, except that, if
the full amount of the moneys payable has not been duly received by the Agent, the Registrar or
the Trustee on or prior to such due date, it means the date on which, the full amount of such
moneys having been so received, notice to that effect is duly given to the Noteholders in
accordance with Condition 15.

Prescription

The Notes, Receipts and Coupons will become void unless presented for payment within a period of
ten years (in the case of principal) and five years (in the case of interest) after the Relevant Date (as defined in
Condition 8) therefor.
There shall not be included in any Coupon sheet issued on exchange of a Talon any Coupon the claim
for payment in respect of which would be void pursuant to this Condition or Condition 6(b) or any Talon
which would be void pursuant to Condition 6(b).
10.

Events of Default

(a)

Events of Default relating to Senior Notes

If the Notes are specified as Senior Notes in the applicable Final Terms and if any one or more of the
following events (each an ‘‘Event of Default’’) shall occur:
(i)

default is made for a period of 14 days or more in the payment of any principal or interest due in
respect of the Notes or any of them after the due date therefor; or

(ii)

the Issuer or the Bank (where the Issuer is BCP Finance) fails to perform or observe any of its
other obligations in respect of the Notes or under the Trust Deed and (except where, in the
opinion of the Trustee, such default is not capable of remedy where no such continuation or
notice as is hereinafter referred to will be required) such failure continues for the period of 30
days (or such longer period as the Trustee may permit) after notice has been given to the Issuer
or, as the case may be, the Bank requiring the same to be remedied; or
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(iii)

the repayment of any indebtedness owing by the Issuer or by the Bank (where the Issuer is BCP
Finance) is accelerated by reason of default and such acceleration has not been rescinded or
annulled, or the Issuer or the Bank (where the Issuer is BCP Finance) defaults (after whichever is
the longer of any originally applicable period of grace and 14 days after the due date) in any
payment of any indebtedness or in the honouring of any guarantee or indemnity in respect of
any indebtedness provided that no such event referred to in this sub-paragraph (iii) shall
constitute an Event of Default unless the indebtedness whether alone or when aggregated with
other indebtedness relating to all (if any) other such events which shall have occurred shall
exceed U.S.$20,000,000 (or its equivalent in any other currency or currencies) or, if greater, an
amount equal to one per cent. of the Bank’s Shareholders’ Funds (as defined below); or

(iv)

any order shall be made by any competent court or an effective resolution passed for the
winding up or dissolution of the Issuer or the Bank (where the Issuer is BCP Finance) (other than
for the purpose of an amalgamation, merger or reconstruction previously approved in writing by
the Trustee or by an Extraordinary Resolution of the Noteholders); or

(v)

the Issuer or the Bank (where the Issuer is BCP Finance) shall cease to carry on the whole or
substantially the whole of its business (other than for the purpose of an amalgamation, merger or
reconstruction previously approved in writing by the Trustee or by an Extraordinary Resolution
of the Noteholders); or

(vi)

the Issuer or the Bank (where the Issuer is BCP Finance) shall stop payment or shall be unable to,
or shall admit inability to, pay its debts as they fall due, or shall be adjudicated or found
bankrupt or insolvent by a court of competent jurisdiction or shall make a conveyance or
assignment for the benefit of, or shall enter into any composition or other arrangement with, its
creditors generally; or

(vii)

a receiver, trustee or other similar official shall be appointed in relation to the Issuer or the Bank
(where the Issuer is BCP Finance) or in relation to the whole or a substantial part of the assets of
either of them or a temporary manager of the Bank is appointed by the Bank of Portugal or an
encumbrancer shall take possession of the whole or a substantial part of the assets of the Issuer or
the Bank (where the Issuer is BCP Finance), or a distress or execution or other process shall be
levied or enforced upon or sued out against the whole or a substantial part of the assets of either
of them and in any of the foregoing cases it or he shall not be discharged within 60 days; or

(viii)

the Bank sells, transfers, lends or otherwise disposes of the whole or a substantial part of its
undertaking or assets (including shareholdings in its Subsidiaries or associated companies) and
such disposal is substantial in relation to the assets of the Bank and its Subsidiaries as a whole,
other than selling, transferring, lending or otherwise disposing on an arm’s length basis; or

(ix)

except where the Issuer has been substituted as principal debtor pursuant to Condition 18, the
Issuer (where the Issuer is BCP Finance) ceases to be a Subsidiary wholly owned and controlled,
directly or indirectly, by the Bank; or

(x)

(where the Issuer is BCP Finance) the Guarantee is terminated or shall cease to be in full force
and effect,

then the Trustee at its discretion may, and if so requested in writing by the holders of not less than one-quarter
of the nominal amount of the Notes then outstanding or if so directed by an Extraordinary Resolution of the
Noteholders shall (subject in each case to being indemnified to its satisfaction), give notice to the Issuer that
the Notes are, and they shall accordingly thereby forthwith become, immediately due and repayable at their
Early Redemption Amount (as described in Condition 7(e)) together with accrued interest (as provided in the
Trust Deed) provided that, in the case of any such Events of Default other than those described in subparagraphs (i) and (iv) above, the Trustee shall have certified in writing to the Issuer that such Event of Default
is, in its opinion, materially prejudicial to the interests of the Noteholders.
As used above, ‘‘Bank’s Shareholders’ Funds’’ means, at any relevant time, a sum equal to the aggregate
of the Bank’s shareholders’ equity as certified by the Directors of the Bank or in certain circumstances provided
in the Trust Deed by the Auditors of the Bank by reference to the latest audited consolidated financial
statements of the Bank.
(b)

Events of Default relating to Subordinated Notes

If the Notes are specified as Subordinated Notes in the applicable Final Terms and if any one or more of
the following events (each an ‘‘Event of Default’’) shall occur:

53

(i)

default is made for a period of 14 days or more in the payment of any principal or interest due in
respect of the Notes or any of them after the due date therefor; or

(ii)

any order shall be made by any competent court or an effective resolution passed for the
winding up or dissolution of the Issuer or the Bank (where the Issuer is BCP Finance) (other than
for the purposes of an amalgamation, merger or reconstruction on terms previously approved in
writing by the Trustee or by an Extraordinary Resolution of the Noteholders),

then the Trustee at its discretion may, and if so requested in writing by the holders of not less than one-quarter
of the nominal amount of the Notes then outstanding or if so directed by an Extraordinary Resolution of the
Noteholders shall (subject in each case to being indemnified to its satisfaction), give notice to the Issuer that
the Notes are, and they shall accordingly thereby forthwith become, immediately due and repayable at their
Early Redemption Amount (as described in Condition 7(e)) together with accrued interest (as provided in the
Trust Deed).
11.

Enforcement

The Trustee shall not be bound to take any action or proceedings to enforce the obligations of the
Issuer or the Bank (where the Issuer is BCP Finance), as the case may be, in respect of the Notes, Receipts or
Coupons unless (i) it shall have been so directed by an Extraordinary Resolution of the Noteholders or
requested in writing by the holders of at least one-quarter in nominal amount of the Notes then outstanding
and (ii) it shall have been indemnified to its satisfaction.
No Noteholder, Receiptholder or Couponholder shall be entitled to proceed directly against the Issuer
or the Bank (where the Issuer is BCP Finance) unless the Trustee, having become bound so to proceed, fails to
do so within a reasonable period and such failure is continuing.
12.

Exchange of Notes, transfer of Registered Notes and replacement of Notes, Receipts, Coupons and
Talons

(a)

Exchange of Bearer Notes for Registered Notes

If so specified in the applicable Final Terms, a Bearer Note in definitive form may be exchanged for
Registered Notes of like aggregate nominal amount (in global or definitive form) by submission of a duly
completed request for exchange substantially in the form provided in the Agency Agreement (an ‘‘Exchange
Request’’), copies of which are available from the specified office of the Registrar or any Transfer Agent,
together with the Bearer Note and (subject as provided below) all unmatured Coupons, Talons and Receipts
appertaining thereto, to a Transfer Agent at its specified office. Within three business days of the request, if the
Registered Notes for which the Bearer Note is to be exchanged are in definitive form, the relevant Transfer
Agent will authenticate and deliver, or procure the authentication and delivery of, at its specified office to the
holder or (at the risk of the holder) send by mail to such address as may be specified by the holder in the
Exchange Request, a definitive Registered Note of a like aggregate nominal amount to the Bearer Note
exchanged and will enter the exchange of the Bearer Note in the Register maintained by the Registrar as of the
exchange date. If the Registered Note(s) for which such Bearer Note is to be exchanged is/are in global form,
the amount of the applicable Registered Global Note(s) will be increased accordingly.
A Bearer Note surrendered in exchange for a Registered Note after a Record Date (as defined in
Condition 6(b)) and on or before the next following Fixed Interest Date or Interest Payment Date (each as
defined in Condition 5) is not required to be surrendered with the Coupon maturing on that payment date.
Interest on a Registered Note issued on exchange will accrue as from the immediately preceding Fixed Interest
Date or Interest Payment Date, as the case may be, except where issued in respect of a Bearer Note surrendered
after a Record Date and on or before the next following Fixed Interest Date or Interest Payment Date, in which
event interest shall accrue as from that date.
No exchanges of Bearer Notes for Registered Notes or interests in Registered Global Notes (as defined
below) will be permitted for so long as the Bearer Notes are represented by a temporary bearer global Note.
(b)

Form of Registered Notes

Registered Notes of each Tranche sold outside the United States in reliance on Regulation S under the
United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended, (the ‘‘Securities Act’’) will initially be represented by a
permanent global Note in registered form, without interest coupons, (the ‘‘Reg. S Global Note’’), deposited
with a common depositary for, and registered in the name of a common nominee of, Euroclear and
Clearsteam, Luxembourg. Notes in definitive form issued in exchange for Reg. S Global Notes or otherwise
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sold or transferred in reliance on Regulation S under the Securities Act, together with the Reg. S Global Notes,
are referred to herein as ‘‘Reg. S Notes’’. Prior to expiry of the period that ends 40 days after completion of the
distribution of each Tranche of Notes, as certified by the relevant Dealer, in the case of a non-syndicate d issue,
or by the Lead Manager, in the case of a syndicated issue (the ‘‘Distribution Compliance Period’’), beneficial
interests in a Reg. S Global Note may be held only through Clearstream, Luxembourg or Euroclear. After the
expiry of the Distribution Compliance Period, beneficial interests in a Reg. S Note may be held through DTC
directly, by a participant in DTC, or indirectly, through a participant in DTC.
Registered Notes of each Tranche sold in private transactions to qualified institutional buyers within the
meaning of Rule 144A under the Securities Act (‘‘QIBs’’) will initially be represented by a permanent global
Note in registered form, without interest coupons, (the ‘‘Restricted Global Note’’) deposited with a custodian
for, and registered in the name of a nominee of, DTC. Notes in definitive form issued in exchange for
Restricted Global Notes or otherwise sold or transferred in accordance with the requirements of Rule 144A
under the Securities Act, together with the Restricted Global Notes, are referred to herein as ‘‘Restricted
Notes’’.
Registered Notes of each Tranche sold to accredited investors (as defined in Rule 501(a) (1), (2) or (3)
under the Securities Act) (‘‘Institutional Accredited Investors’’) who agree to purchase the Notes for their own
account and not with a view to the distribution thereof will be in definitive form, registered in the name of the
holder thereof.
Registered Notes in definitive form issued to Institutional Accredited Investors and Restricted Notes
shall bear the legend set forth in the Restricted Global Note (the ‘‘Legend’’), such Notes being referred to
herein as ‘‘Legended Notes’’. Upon the transfer, exchange or replacement of Legended Notes, or upon specific
request for removal of the Legend, the Registrar shall (save as provided in Condition 12(f)) deliver only
Legended Notes or refuse to remove such Legend, as the case may be, unless there is delivered to the Issuer
such satisfactory evidence as may reasonably be required by the Issuer, which may include an opinion of U.S.
counsel, that neither the Legend nor the restrictions on transfer set forth therein are required to ensure
compliance with the provisions of the Securities Act.
Subject as otherwise provided in this Condition 12, Registered Notes in definitive form may be
exchanged or transferred in whole or in part in the authorised denominations for one or more definitive
Registered Notes of like aggregate nominal amount.
(c)

Transfers of Registered Global Notes

Transfers of beneficial interests in Restricted Global Notes and, Reg. S Global Notes (together the
‘‘Registered Global Notes’’) will be effected by DTC, Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg, as the case may
be, and, in turn, by other participants and, if appropriate, indirect participants in such clearing systems acting
on behalf of beneficial transferors and transferees of such interests. A beneficial interest in a Registered Global
Note will, subject to compliance with all applicable legal and regulatory restrictions, be transferable for Notes
in definitive form or for a beneficial interest in another Registered Global Note only in the authorised
denominations set out in the applicable Final Terms and only in accordance with the rules and operating
procedures for the time being of DTC, Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg, as the case may be, and in
accordance with the terms and conditions specified in the Agency Agreement. Transfers of a Registered Global
Note registered in the name of a nominee for DTC shall be limited to transfers of such Registered Global Note,
in whole but not in part, to another nominee of DTC or to a successor of DTC or such successor’s nominee.
(d)

Transfers of interests in Reg. S Notes

Prior to the expiry of the applicable Distribution Compliance Period, transfers by the holder of, or of a
beneficial interest in, a Reg. S Note to a transferee in the United States will only be made:
(i)

upon receipt by the Registrar of a written certification substantially in the form set out in the
Agency Agreement, amended as appropriate, (a ‘‘Transfer Certificate’’), copies of which are
available from the specified office of the Registrar or any Transfer Agent, from the transferor of
the Note or beneficial interest therein to the effect that such transfer is being made:
(A)

to a person whom the transferor reasonably believes is a QIB in a transaction meeting the
requirements of Rule 144A; or

(B)

to a person who is an Institutional Accredited Investor, together with a duly executed
investment letter from the relevant transferee substantially in the form set out in the
Agency Agreement (an ‘‘IAI Investment Letter’’); or
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(ii)

otherwise pursuant to the Securities Act or an exemption therefrom, subject to receipt by the
Issuer of such satisfactory evidence as the Issuer may reasonably require, which may include an
opinion of U.S. counsel, that such transfer is in compliance with any applicable securities laws of
any state of the United States, and, in each case, in accordance with any applicable securities
laws of any state of the United States or any other jurisdiction.

In the case of (A) above, such transferee may take delivery through a Legended Note in global or
definitive form and, in the case of (B) above, such transferee may take delivery only through a Legended Note
in definitive form. After the expiry of the applicable Distribution Compliance Period (i) beneficial interests in
Reg. S Notes may be held through DTC directly, by a participant in DTC, or indirectly, through a participant
in DTC and (ii) such certification requirements will no longer apply to such transfers.
(e)

Transfers of interests in Legended Notes
Transfers of Legended Notes or beneficial interests therein may be made:
(i)

to a transferee who takes delivery of such interest through a Reg. S Global Note, upon receipt by
the Registrar of a duly completed Transfer Certificate from the transferor to the effect that such
transfer is being made in accordance with Regulation S and that, in the case of a Reg. S Global
Note registered in the name of a nominee of DTC, if such transfer is being made prior to the
expiry of the applicable Distribution Compliance Period, the interests in the Notes being
transferred will be held immediately thereafter through Euroclear and/or Clearstream,
Luxembourg; or

(ii)

to a transferee who takes delivery of such interest through a Legended Note:

(iii)

(A)

where the transferee is a person whom the transferor reasonably believes is a QIB in a
transaction meeting the requirements of Rule 144A, without certification; or

(B)

where the transferee is an Institutional Accredited Investor, subject to delivery to the
Registrar of a Transfer Certificate from the transferor to the effect that such transfer is
being made to an Institutional Accredited Investor, together with a duly executed IAI
Investment Letter from the relevant transferee; or

otherwise pursuant to the Securities Act or an exemption therefrom, subject to receipt by the
Issuer of such satisfactory evidence as the Issuer may reasonably require, which may include an
opinion of U.S. counsel, that such transfer is in compliance with any applicable securities laws of
any state of the United States, in each case, in accordance with any applicable securities laws of
any state of the United States or any other jurisdiction.

Notes transferred by Institutional Accredited Investors to QIBs pursuant to Rule 144A or outside the
United States pursuant to Regulation S will be eligible to be held by such QIBs or non-U.S. investors through
DTC and the Registrar will arrange for any Notes which are the subject of such a transfer to be represented by
the appropriate Registered Global Note, where applicable.
(f)

Exchanges and transfers of Registered Notes generally
Registered Notes may not be exchanged for Bearer Notes.

Holders of Registered Notes in definitive form, other than Institutional Accredited Investors, may
exchange such Notes for interests in a Registered Global Note of the same type at any time.
Transfers of beneficial interests in Registered Global Notes will be effected by DTC, Clearstream,
Luxembourg or Euroclear, as the case may be, and, in turn, by participants and, if appropriate, indirect
participants in such clearing systems acting on behalf of beneficial transferors and transferees of such interests.
A beneficial interest in a Registered Global Note will be transferable and exchangeable for Notes in definitive
form or for a beneficial interest in another Registered Global Note only in accordance with the rules and
operating procedures for the time being of DTC, Clearstream, Luxembourg or Euroclear, as the case may be
(the ‘‘Applicable Procedures’’).
Upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in the Agency Agreement, a Registered Note in
definitive form may be transferred in whole or in part (in the authorised denominations set out in the
applicable Final Terms) by the holder or holders surrendering the Registered Note for registration of the
transfer of the Registered Note (or the relevant part of the Registered Note) at the specified office of the
Registrar or any Transfer Agent, with the form of transfer thereon duly executed by the holder or holders
thereof or his or their attorney or attorneys duly authorised in writing and upon the Registrar or, as the case
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may be, the relevant Transfer Agent, after due and careful enquiry, being satisfied with the documents of title
and the identity of the person making the request and subject to such reasonable regulations as the Issuer and
the Registrar, or as the case may be, the relevant Transfer Agent may with the prior written approval of the
Trustee prescribe, including any restrictions imposed by the Issuer on transfers of Registered Notes originally
sold to a U.S. person. Subject as provided above, the Registrar or, as the case may be, the relevant Transfer
Agent will, within three business days (being for this purpose a day on which banks are open for business in the
city where the specified office of the Registrar or, as the case may be, the relevant Transfer Agent is located) of
the request (or such longer period as may be required to comply with any applicable fiscal or other laws or
regulations) authenticate and deliver, or procure the authentication and delivery of, at its specified office to the
transferee or (at the risk of the transferee) send by mail to such address as the transferee may request, a new
Registered Note in definitive form of a like aggregate nominal amount to the Registered Note (or the relevant
part of the Registered Note) transferred. In the case of the transfer of part only of a Registered Note in definitive
form, a new Registered Note in definitive form in respect of the balance of the Registered Note not transferred
will be so authenticated and delivered or (at the risk of the transferor) sent to the transferor.
Exchanges or transfers by a holder of a Registered Note in definitive form for an interest in, or to a
person who takes delivery of such Note through, a Registered Global Note will be made no later than 60 days
after the receipt by the Registrar or, as the case may be, the relevant Transfer Agent of the Registered Note in
definitive form to be so exchanged or transferred and, if applicable, upon receipt by the Registrar of a written
certification from the transferor.
(g)

Registration of transfer upon partial redemption
In the event of a partial redemption of Notes under Condition 7(c), the Issuer shall not be required:

(h)

(a)

to register the transfer of Registered Notes (or parts of Registered Notes) during the period
beginning on the sixty-fifth day before the date of the partial redemption and ending on the date
on which notice is given specifying the serial numbers of Notes called (in whole or in part) for
redemption (both inclusive); or

(b)

to register the transfer of any Registered Note, or part of a Registered Note, called for partial
redemption.

Closed Periods

No Noteholder may require the transfer of a Registered Note to be registered or a Bearer Note to be
exchanged for a Registered Note during the period of 30 days ending on the due date for any payment of
principal or interest on that Note.
(i)

Costs of exchange or registration

The costs and expenses of effecting any exchange or registration of transfer pursuant to the foregoing
provisions (except for the expenses of delivery by other than regular mail (if any) and, if the Issuer shall so
require, for the payment of a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other governmental charge or insurance charges
that may be imposed in relation thereto which will be borne by the Noteholder) will be borne by the Issuer or
the Bank (where the Issuer is BCP Finance), as the case may be.
(j)

Replacement of Notes, Receipts, Coupons and Talons

If any Note, Receipt, Coupon or Talon shall become mutilated, defaced, destroyed, lost or stolen, it
may be replaced at the specified office of the Agent outside the United States and its possessions in the case of
Bearer Notes, Receipts, Coupons or Talons, or the Registrar in New York City, in the case of Registered Notes,
upon payment by the claimant of the expenses incurred in connection with the replacement and on such terms
as to evidence and indemnity and/or security as the Issuer may reasonably require. Mutilated or defaced Notes,
Receipts, Coupons or Talons must be surrendered before replacements will be issued.
13.

Agent, Paying Agents, Transfer Agents, Exchange Agents and Registrar

The names of the initial Agent, the initial Registrar, the other initial Paying Agents, the initial Exchange
Agent and the initial Transfer Agents and their initial specified offices are set out below.
The Issuer and the Bank (where the Issuer is BCP Finance) are, with the prior written approval of the
Trustee, entitled to vary or terminate the appointment of any Paying Agent or the Registrar or the Exchange
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Agent or any Transfer Agent and/or appoint additional or other Paying Agents or additional or other
Registrars, Exchange Agents or Transfer Agents and/or approve any change in the specified office through
which any Paying Agent, Registrar, Exchange Agent or Transfer Agent acts, provided that:
(i)

so long as the Notes are listed on any stock exchange (or any other relevant authority), there will
at all times be a Paying Agent (which may be the Agent), in the case of Bearer Notes, and a
Transfer Agent (which may be the Registrar), in the case of Registered Notes, with a specified
office in such place as may be required by the rules and regulations of the relevant stock
exchange (or any other relevant authority);

(ii)

there will at all times be a Paying Agent with a specified office in a principal financial centre
approved by the Trustee in continental Europe;

(iii)

in the case of Bearer Notes, there will at all times be an Agent;

(iv)

in the case of Registered Notes, there will at all times be a Registrar with a specified office in New
York City and, so long as the Notes are listed on any stock exchange (or any other relevant
authority), in such place as may be required by the rules and regulations of the relevant stock
exchange (or any other relevant authority);

(v)

in the case of Registered Notes, there will at all times be a Transfer Agent having a specified
office in a place approved by the Trustee;

(vi)

so long as any of the Registered Global Notes payable in a Specified Currency other than U.S.
dollars are held through DTC or its nominee, there will at all times be an Exchange Agent with a
specified office in New York City; and

(vii)

the Issuer undertakes that it will maintain a Paying Agent in a Member State of the European
Union that is not obliged to withhold or deduct tax pursuant to European Council Directive
2003/48/EC or any law implementing or complying with, or introduced in order to conform to,
such Directive.

In addition, the Issuer and the Bank (where the Issuer is BCP Finance) shall, with the prior written
approval of the Trustee, forthwith appoint a Paying Agent having a specified office in New York City in the
circumstances described in the final paragraph of Condition 6(b). Any variation, termination, appointment or
change shall only take effect (other than in the case of insolvency, when it shall be of immediate effect) after
not less than 30 nor more than 45 days’ prior notice thereof shall have been given to the Noteholders in
accordance with Condition 15 provided that no such variation, termination, appointment or change shall take
effect (except in the case of insolvency) within 30 days before or after any Fixed Interest Date or Interest
Payment Date, as the case may be.
In acting under the Agency Agreement, the Exchange Agent, the Registrar, the Agent, the Paying Agents
and the Transfer Agents act solely as agents of the Issuer and the Bank (where the Issuer is BCP Finance) and, in
certain circumstances specified therein, of the Trustee, and do not assume any obligation or relationship of
agency or trust to or with the Noteholders, Receiptholders or Couponholders, except that (without affecting
the obligations of the issuer and the Bank (where the Issuer is BCP Finance) to the Noteholders, Receiptholders
and Couponholders to repay Notes and pay interest thereon) any funds received by the Agent for the payment
of the principal of or interest on the Notes shall be held by it on trust for the Noteholders and/or
Receiptholders and/or Couponholders until the expiry of the period of prescription specified in Condition 9.
Each of the Issuer and the Bank (where the Issuer is BCP Finance) has covenanted with the Trustee in the Trust
Deed to perform and observe the obligations imposed upon it under the Agency Agreement. The Agency
Agreement contains provisions for the indemnification of the Paying Agents, the Registrar, the Exchange Agent
and the Transfer Agents and for their relief from responsibility in certain circumstances and entitles any of
them to enter into business transactions with either the Issuer or the Bank (where the Issuer is BCP Finance)
and any of their Subsidiaries without being liable to account to the Noteholders, Receiptholders or
Couponholders for any resulting profit.
14.

Exchange of Talons

On and after the Interest Payment Date, as appropriate, on which the final Coupon comprised in any
Coupon sheet matures, the Talon (if any) forming part of such Coupon sheet may be surrendered at the
specified office of the Agent or any other Paying Agent in exchange for a further Coupon sheet including (if
such further Coupon sheet does not include Coupons to (and including) the final date for the payment of
interest due in respect of the Note to which it appertains) a further Talon, subject to the provisions of
Condition 9. Each Talon shall, for the purposes of these Terms and Conditions, be deemed to mature on the
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Fixed Interest Date or the Interest Payment Date (as the case may be) on which the final Coupon comprised in
the relative Coupon sheet matures.
15.

Notices

All notices regarding the Notes shall be valid if published in a leading English language daily newspaper
of general circulation in the United Kingdom. It is expected that such publication will be made in the Financial
Times or another daily newspaper in the United Kingdom approved by the Trustee. The Issuer and the Bank
(where the Issuer is BCP Finance) shall also ensure that notices are duly published in a manner which complies
with the rules and regulations of any other stock exchange (or any other relevant authority) on which the Notes
are for the time being listed. Any such notice will be deemed to have been given on the date of the first
publication in all the relevant newspapers.
Until such time as any definitive Notes are issued, there may, so long as the global Note(s) is or are held
in its or their entirety on behalf of Clearstream, Luxembourg and/or Euroclear or DTC, be substituted for such
publication in such newspaper(s) the delivery of the relevant notice to Clearstream, Luxembourg and/or
Euroclear or DTC for communication by them to the holders of the Notes and, in addition, for so long as any
Notes are listed on a stock exchange and the rules of that stock exchange (or any other relevant authority) so
require, such notice will be published in a daily newspaper of general circulation in the place or places required
by that stock exchange (or any other relevant authority). Any such notice shall be deemed to have been given
to the holders of the Notes on the seventh day after the day on which the said notice was given to Clearstream,
Luxembourg and/or Euroclear or DTC, unless otherwise specified in the applicable Final Terms.
Notices to be given by any Noteholder shall be in writing and given by lodging the same, together with
the relative Note or Notes, with the Agent. Whilst any of the Notes is represented by a global Note, such notice
may be given by any Noteholder to the Agent via Clearstream, Luxembourg and/or Euroclear or DTC, as the
case may be, in such manner as the Agent and Clearstream, Luxembourg and/or Euroclear or DTC, as the case
may be, may approve for this purpose.
16.

Meetings of Noteholders, Modification and Waiver

The Trust Deed contains provisions for convening meetings of the Noteholders to consider any matter
affecting their interests, including the sanctioning by Extraordinary Resolution of a modification of any of the
provisions of the Notes, the Receipts, the Coupons or the Trust Deed. Such a meeting may be convened by the
Issuer or the Bank (where the Issuer is BCP Finance) and shall be convened by the Issuer upon a requisition by
Noteholders holding not less than one-tenth in nominal amount of the Notes for the time being remaining
outstanding. The quorum at any such meeting for passing an Extraordinary Resolution will be one or more
persons holding or representing not less than a clear majority in nominal amount of the Notes for the time
being outstanding, or at any adjourned meeting one or more persons being or representing Noteholders
whatever the nominal amount of the Notes so held or represented, except that at any meeting the business of
which includes the modification of certain provisions of the Notes, Receipts or Coupons (including, amongst
other things, modifying the date of maturity of the Notes or any date for payment of interest thereon, reducing
or cancelling the amount of principal or the rate of interest payable in respect of the Notes or altering the
currency of payment of the Notes, Receipts or Coupons) or certain provisions of the Trust Deed, the necessary
quorum for passing an Extraordinary Resolution will be one or more persons holding or representing not less
than two-thirds, or at any adjourned such meeting not less than one-third, in nominal amount of the Notes for
the time being outstanding. An Extraordinary Resolution passed at any meeting of the Noteholders shall be
binding on all the Noteholders, whether or not they are present at the meeting, and on all Receiptholders and
Couponholders.
The Trust Deed provides that the Trustee may, without the consent of the Noteholders, Receiptholders
or Couponholders, agree to any modification (subject as provided above) of, or to any waiver or authorisation
of any breach or proposed breach by the Issuer or the Bank (where the Issuer is BCP Finance) of, any of the
provisions of these Terms and Conditions or of any of the provisions of the Trust Deed or may determine that
any act, omission, event or condition which, but for such determination, would or might otherwise on its own
or together with another act, omission, event or condition constitute an Event of Default (without prejudice to
the rights of the Trustee in respect of any subsequent breach of any of the provisions of these Terms and
Conditions or any of the provisions of the Trust Deed or any subsequent act, omission, event or condition)
shall not be treated as such, which, in the opinion of the Trustee, is not materially prejudicial to the interests of
the Noteholders or to any modification of any of these Terms and Conditions or any of the provisions of the
Trust Deed which is of a formal, minor or technical nature or which is made to correct a manifest error. Any
such modification, waiver, authorisation or determination shall be binding on the Noteholders, Receiptholders
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and Couponholders and, unless the Trustee agrees otherwise, any such modification shall be notified to the
Noteholders as soon as practicable thereafter in accordance with Condition 15.
In connection with the exercise by it of any of its trusts, powers, authorities or discretions (including,
but without limitation, any modification, waiver, authorisation, determination or substitution), the Trustee
shall have regard to the general interests of the Noteholders as a class but shall not have regard to any interests
arising from circumstances particular to individual Noteholders, Receiptholders or Couponholders (whatever
their number) and, in particular, but without limitation, shall not have regard to the consequences of any such
exercise for individual Noteholders, Receiptholders and Couponholders (whatever their number) resulting
from their being for any purpose domiciled or resident in, or otherwise connected with, or subject to the
jurisdiction of, any particular territory and the Trustee shall not be entitled to require, nor shall any
Noteholder, Receiptholder or Couponholder be entitled to claim, from the Issuer, the Bank (where the Issuer is
BCP Finance) or any other person any indemnification or payment in respect of any tax consequence of any
such exercise upon individual Noteholders, Receiptholders or Couponholders except to the extent already
provided for in Condition 9 and/or any undertaking given in addition to, or in substitution for, Condition 8
pursuant to the Trust Deed.
17.

Further Issues

The Issuer shall be at liberty from time to time without the consent of the Noteholders, the
Receiptholders or the Couponholders to create and issue further notes having terms and conditions the same as
the Notes or the same in all respects save for the amount and date of the first payment of interest thereon and
so that the same shall be consolidated and form a single Series with the outstanding Notes. The Trust Deed
contains provisions for convening a single meeting of the Noteholders and the holders of notes of other Series
in certain circumstances where the Trustee so decides.
18.

Substitution

The Trustee may, without the consent of the Noteholders, the Receiptholders or the Couponholders
but (in the case of Subordinated Notes) only with the prior consent of the Bank of Portugal, agree with the
Issuer and the Bank (where the Issuer is BCP Finance) to the substitution in place of the Issuer (or of any
previous substitute under this Condition) as the principal debtor in respect of the Notes of either the Bank
(where the Issuer is BCP Finance or another wholly-owned Subsidiary of the Bank) or a wholly-owned
Subsidiary of the Bank, subject to:

19.

(a)

where the new principal debtor is a wholly-owned Subsidiary of the Bank, the Notes being
unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by the Bank either on the same basis as that on
which they were guaranteed immediately prior to the substitution (where, immediately prior to
the substitution, the Issuer is BCP Finance or (being a previous substitute under this Condition)
another wholly-owned Subsidiary of the Bank) or on an equivalent basis to that on which they
would have been guaranteed immediately prior to the substitution had the Issuer been BCP
Finance (where, immediately prior to the substitution, the Issuer is the Bank);

(b)

the Trustee being satisfied that the interests of the Noteholders will not be materially prejudiced
by the substitution; and

(c)

certain other conditions set out in the Trust Deed being complied with.

Indemnification of Trustee

The Trust Deed contains provisions for the indemnification of the Trustee and for its relief from
responsibility in certain circumstances including provisions relieving it from instituting proceedings to enforce
repayment unless indemnified to its satisfaction. The Trustee is entitled to enter into business transactions with
the Issuer and/or the Bank (where the Issuer is BCP Finance) or any of their Subsidiaries without accounting for
any profit resulting therefrom and to act as trustee for the holders of any other securities issued by the Issuer or
the Bank (where the Issuer is BCP Finance) or any Subsidiaries of the Bank.
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20.

Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999

No rights are conferred on any person under the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999 to enforce
any term of this Note, but this does not affect any right or remedy of any person which exists or is available
apart from that Act.
21.

Governing law and submission to jurisdiction
(a)

The Trust Deed (except Clauses 2(H) and 7(H) insofar as they relate to Subordinated Notes), the
Agency Agreement, the Notes (except Conditions 2(c)and 4(b)), the Receipts and the Coupons
are governed by, and shall be construed in accordance with, English law. Clauses 2(H) and 7(H)
of the Trust Deed (in so far as they relate to Subordinated Notes) and Conditions 2(c)and 4(b)are
governed by, and shall be construed in accordance with, Portuguese law. In each case, the
application of such governing law shall be without prejudice to the applicability, under the
conflicts rules applicable in the relevant forum, in the light of such submission, of Cayman
Islands law (in relation to matters concerning BCP Finance) or Portuguese law (in relation to
matters concerning the Bank as an Issuer or as guarantor, as the case may be).

(b)

Each of BCP Finance and the Bank has in the Trust Deed irrevocably agreed, for the exclusive
benefit of the Trustee, the Noteholders, the Receiptholders and the Couponholders that the
courts of England are to have jurisdiction to settle any disputes which may arise out of or in
connection with the Trust Deed, the Notes, the Receipts and/or the Coupons and that
accordingly any suit, action or proceedings (together referred to as ‘‘Proceedings’’) arising out of
or in connection with the Trust Deed, the Notes, the Receipts and/or the Coupons may be
brought in such courts.

(c)

Each of BCP Finance and the Bank has in the Trust Deed irrevocably waived any objection
which it may have now or hereafter to the laying of the venue of any such Proceedings in any
such court and any claim that any such Proceedings have been brought in an inconvenient
forum and has further irrevocably agreed that a judgement in any such Proceedings brought in
the English courts shall be conclusive and binding upon it and may be enforced in the courts of
any other competent jurisdiction. Nothing in this Condition shall limit any right to take
Proceedings in any other court of competent jurisdiction, nor shall the taking of Proceedings in
one or more jurisdictions preclude the taking of Proceedings in any other jurisdiction, whether
concurrently or not.

(d)

Each of BCP Finance and the Bank has in the Trust Deed appointed the London Representative
Office of Banco Comercial Português, S.A. at 3rd Floor, 63 Queen Victoria Street, London
EC4V 4UA for the time being as its agent for service of process in England in respect of any
Proceedings and has undertaken that in the event of it ceasing so to act it will appoint such other
person as the Trustee may approve as its agent for that purpose.
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USE OF PROCEEDS
The net proceeds from each issue of Notes will be applied by the relevant Issuer for the general
corporate purposes, which include making a profit, of the Banco Comercial Português Group.
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BCP FINANCE BANK, LTD.
Introduction
BCP Finance Bank, Ltd. (‘‘BCP Finance’’) was incorporated as an exempted company for an unlimited
duration with limited liability under the laws of the Cayman Islands, on 27th March, 1998 with registered
number 80648.
The Registered Office of BCP Finance is Banco Comercial Português, Cayman Islands Branch, 3rd floor
Strathvale House, 90 North Church Street, P.O. Box 30124 SMB, George Town, Grand Cayman, Cayman
Islands, B.W.I. with telephone number: +001 3459498322. BCP Finance is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Guarantor.
Board of Directors
(a)

The Directors of BCP Finance are as follows:
Name
Function in the Issuer
Luı́s Manuel Neto Gomes
António Fernando Nogueira Chaves
Helena Soares Carneiro

Chairman and Director
Vice-Chairman and
Director
Director

José Carlos de Castro Monteiro

Director

Alex António Urtubia

Director

Principal activity outside
Issuer
General Manager of BCP
General Manager of BCP
General Manager of BCP
– Cayman Islands Branch
Deputy General Manager
– Cayman Islands Branch
EDP Manager of BCP
– Cayman Islands Branch

Mr. António Nogueira Chaves is the Secretary of BCP Finance and Mr. Alex António Urtubia is the
Assistant Secretary.
The business addresses of each of the Directors of BCP Finance is (i) in the case of Luı́s Manuel Neto
Gomes and António Fernando Nogueira Chaves Banco Comercial Português S.A., Rua Augusta, 62-84,
1149-023, Lisbon, Portugal, and (ii) in the case of Helena Soares Carneiro, José Carlos de Castro
Monteiro and Alex Antonio Urtubia, 3rd Floor Strathvale House, 90 North Church Street, George
Town, P.O. Box 30124 SMB, Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands, B.W.I.
(b)

The Directors do not, and it is not proposed that they will, have service contracts with BCP Finance. No
Director has entered into any transaction which is or was unusual in its nature or conditions or was
significant to the business of BCP Finance since its incorporation. No Director or any connected person
has any interests, whether or not held by a third party, in the share capital of BCP Finance. At the date
of this document there were no loans granted or guarantees provided by BCP Finance to any Director of
BCP Finance.
As at the date of this Offering Circular, the Directors have not received, nor it is intended that they
should in the future receive, any remuneration for the provision of their services to BCP Finance.
Other than as disclosed above, no Director has any activities outside BCP Finance which are significant
with respect to BCP Finance.
There are no potential conflicts of interest between the duties to BCP Finance of the persons listed
above and their private interests or duties.
BCP Finance complies with all applicable provisions of Cayman Islands law on corporate governance.

Audit Committee
The Audit functions of BCP Finance are centralised in the structures of the Banco Comercial Português
Group specialised in these activities.
Activities
BCP Finance is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Banco Comercial Português, S.A. (the ‘‘Bank’’), acting as
an overseas finance vehicle of the Bank and the Banco Comercial Português Group. The objects for which BCP
Finance was established are, pursuant to Clause 3 of its Memorandum of Association:
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(1)

to carry on, in any part of the world, business as bankers, capitalists, financiers, promoters,
concessionaires and merchants, and to undertake, carry on and execute all kinds of financial,
commercial, manufacturing, trading and other operation, and to carry on any business which
may seem to be capable of being conveniently carried on in connection with any of these
objects, or calculated directly or indirectly, to enhance the value of, or facilitate the realisation
of, or render profitable, any of the property or rights of the Company;

(2)

to advance, deposit or lend money, securities and property, to or with such persons and on such
terms as may seem expedient, to discount, buy, sell and deal in bills, notes, warrants, coupons,
and other negotiable or transferable securities or documents; to issue, confirm, notify and advise
letters of credit of any kind, whether revocable or irrevocable; to guarantee or become liable for
the payment of money or for the performance of any obligations; to engage in exchange of
foreign currencies;

(3)

to carry on the business of a trust company or corporation in all its branches, and, without
limiting the generality of the foregoing words, to undertake and execute trusts of all kinds,
whether private or public, and to undertake the office of and act as trustee, executor,
administrator, manager, agent, attorney, nominee, delegate, substitute director, secretary,
treasurer, registrar, paying agent, receiver, liquidator, or for any person or persons, company,
corporation, government, state, colony, province, dominion, sovereign or authority, supreme,
municipal, local or otherwise, and generally to undertake, perform and discharge any trusts or
trust agency business, and any office of confidence, either solely or jointly with others.

Share Capital
The existing issued ordinary shares of BCP Finance are fully paid up, are not listed on any stock
exchange and are not dealt in any recognised market.
The authorised share capital of BCP Finance is U.S.$226,000,000.
The issued share capital of BCP Finance is U.S.$218,000,000 divided into:
186,500,000 Ordinary Shares with a nominal or par value of U.S.$1.00 each, issued to BCP
Internacional II, Sociedade Unipessoal, SGPS, Lda, a fully owned Subsidiary of Banco Comercial Português,
S.A.; and
31,500,000 Series A Floating Rate Non-Cumulative Non-Voting Preference Shares with a nominal or
par value of U.S.$1.00 each (‘‘Series A Preference Shares’’), issued to BCP Internacional II, Sociedade
Unipessoal, SGPS, Lda.
There are no arrangements in place the operation of which may result in a change of control of the BCP
Finance.
General
KPMG with its address at Century Yard Cricket Square, PO Box 493, George Town, Grand Cayman,
Cayman Islands are the auditors of BCP Finance (having been appointed by the Board of Directors on 31
March, 1998 and have audited the Issuer’s annual reports for the years ended 31 December, 2003 and 2004).
BCP Finance has made no investments since the date of the last published financial statements and has
made no firm commitments on future investments.
There have been no recent events particular to BCP Finance which are to a material extent relevant to
the evaluation of BCP Finance’s solvency.
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Balance sheet as at 31 December, 2004 and 2003
(Amount expressed in thousands of USD)

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents ;
;
Financial assets held for trading
;
Loans and advances to credit institutions
Investments ;
;
;
;
Other assets ;
;
;
;

2004

2003

;
;
;
;
;

;
;
;
;
;

;
;
;
;
;

;
;
;
;
;

;
;
;
;
;

45
166,433
14,471,486
2,752,423
142,973

9
190,384
10,167,244
3,015,254
116,960

;

;

;

;

;

;

17,533,360

13,489,851

Liabilities
Financial liabilities held for trading ;
Amounts owed to credit institutions ;
Debt securities ;
;
;
;
Other liabilities
;
;
;
Subordinated debt
;
;
;

;
;
;
;
;

;
;
;
;
;

;
;
;
;
;

;
;
;
;
;

;
;
;
;
;

3,432
108,261
14,421,041
476,881
1,940,993

5,503
120,616
10,576,382
436,746
1,799,775

;

;

;

;

;

;

16,950,608

12,939,022

;
;
;
;
;
;
earnings;

;
;
;
;

;
;
;
;

;
;
;
;

;
;
;
;

;
;
;
;

186,500
31,500
364,752

179,500
31,500
339,829

;

;

;

;

;

582,752

550,829

17,533,360

13,489,851

Total Assets ;

Total Liabilities

;

;

Shareholder’s Equity
Share capital ;
;
Ordinary shares
;
Preference shares ;
Other reserves and retained

;

;

Total Shareholder’s Equity ;

;
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A4.3.1

Statements of Income and Retained Earnings
for the years ended 31 December, 2004 and 2003
(Amounts expressed in thousands of USD)

Interest income
Interest expense

2004

2003

;
;

;
;

;
;

;
;

;
;

;
;

;
;

;
;

440,928
432,656

331,925
332,840

Net interest income;

;

;

;

;

;

;

;

8,272

(915)

;

;

;

;

;

2,244

14,782

2,244

14,782

45,605
2,937
96

1,972
2,345
76

48,638

4,393

Other operating income
Profits arising from trading activity

Other operating expenses
Losses arising from trading activity ;
Other administrative costs ;
;
Other expenses
;
;
;

Net (loss)/income for the year

;
;
;

;
;
;

;
;
;

;
;
;

;
;
;

;

;

(38,122)

9,474

Retained earnings at the beginning of the year
;
;
;
Exchange differences arising on translation of retained earnings ;
Dividends on preference shares
;
;
;
;
;
Dividends on ordinary shares;
;
;
;
;
;

;
;
;
;

136,702
7,077
(429)
(7,608)

109,086
23,236
(569)
(4,525)

Retained earnings at the end of the year

;

97,620

136,702

;

;

;

;

;
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BCP FINANCE BANK, LTD.

A4.3.1

Statements of Cash Flows
for the years ended 31 December, 2004 and 2003
(Amounts expressed in thousands of USD)
2004

2003

Cash flows from operating activities
Interest income and other income received ;
;
;
;
Interest expense and other expense paid
;
;
;
;
Net cash flows from trading activities
;
;
;
;
Operating fees and other payments ;
;
;
;
;
Exchange differences arising on translation of subordinated loans
at year-end rates
;
;
;
;
;
;
;

;
;
;
;

417,767
(433,253)
(21,481)
(2,937)

323,516
(328,702)
(31,069)
(2,421)

;

(241,146)

(449,116)

(Increase) / Decrease in operating assets
Loans and advances to credit institutions
Other assets ;
;
;
;

;
;

;
;

;
;

;
;

;
;

(4,304,242)
12,880

(3,909,338)
45,814

Increase / (Decrease) in operating liabilities
Amounts owed to credit institutions ;
;
Others Liabilities ;
;
;
;

;
;

;
;

;
;

;
;

(12,355)
40,636

75,996
—

(4,544,131)

(4,275,320)

503,250

(505,200)

503,250

(505,200)

3,844,659
141,218
7,000
49,000
(8,037)

3,905,135
724,857
65,000
70,000
(7,928)

4,033,840

4,757,064

7,077

23,236

7,077

23,236

Cash flows from investing activities
Subordinated loans matured/(subscribed)

;

;

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of debt securities ;
;
Proceeds from issuance of subordinated debt
;
Proceeds from issuance of share capital
;
;
Share premium proceeds from issuance of share capital
Dividends paid
;
;
;
;
;

;

;
;
;
;
;

;

;
;
;
;
;

Exchange differences arising on translation of retained earnings
and income for the period at year-end rates
;
;
;

;

;
;
;
;
;

;

Net decrease in cash and equivalents
;
;
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

;
;

;
;

;
;

36
9

(220)
229

Cash and equivalents at the end of the year

;

;

;

45

9

;
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Set out below are the unaudited financial statements of BCP Finance as at, and for the nine months ended,
30th September, 2005 and 30th September, 2004, prepared in accordance with IFRS.
Unaudited Balance Sheet
as at 30 September, 2005 and 2004
(Amounts expressed in thousands of USD)

Assets
Loans and advances to Credit Institutions
Repayable on demand
;
;
Other loans and advances ;
;
Financial assets held for trading
;
Hedging derivatives ;
;
;
Other debtors ;
;
;
;

;
;
;
;
;

Liabilities
Amounts owed to others credit institutions ;
Debt securities ;
;
;
;
;
Financial liabilities held for trading ;
;
Hedging derivatives ;
;
;
;
Subordinated debt
;
;
;
;
Other liabilities
;
;
;
;

;
;
;
;
;

;
;
;
;
;

;
;
;
;
;

;
;
;
;
;

2005

2004

2,523
16,491,691
11,521
185,070
78,326

19
12,335,159
–
–
2,455,551

16,769,131

14,790,729

;
;
;
;
;
;

;
;
;
;
;
;

;
;
;
;
;
;

;
;
;
;
;
;

589,761
13,521,491
25,634
15,848
2,166,818
1,006

97,627
12,349,158
–
–
1,801,670
221,657

;

;

;

;

;

16,320,558

14,470,112

Shareholders’ Equity
Share capital ;
;
;
;
;
Share premium
;
;
;
;
Preference shares
;
;
;
;
Reserves and retained earnings
;
;
Net attributable income to Bank Shareholders

;
;
;
;
;

;
;
;
;
;

;
;
;
;
;

;
;
;
;
;

186,500
119,000
31,500
78,736
32,837

179,500
70,000
31,500
–
35,617

;

;

;

;

448,573

316,617

16,769,131

14,786,729

Total Liabilities

Total Equity;

;

;

;

;

;

;

;
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Unaudited Statement of income
for the nine months ended 30 September, 2005 and 2004
(Amounts expressed in thousands of USD)

Interest income
Interest expense

2005

2004

;
;

;
;

;
;

;
;

;
;

;
;

;
;

;
;

356,229
(321,914)

324,943
(345,096)

Net interest income;

;

;

;

;

;

;

;

34,315

(20,153)

Net Commission Income
;
;
Other Net Operating Income
;
Net Income from Trading Activity ;

;
;
;

;
;
;

;
;
;

;
;
;

;
;
;

(5)
(65)
577

–
(96)
58,059

Operating income from banking activity ;

;

;

;

;

34,822

37,810

Other administrative costs
Net income ;

;

;

;

;

;

;

;

;

1,985

2,193

;

;

;

;

;

;

;

32,837

35,617
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Unaudited Statement of Cash Flows
for the months ended 30 September, 2005 and 2004
(Amounts expressed in thousands of USD)

Cash flows arising from operating activities
Interest and commission income received
Interest and commissions expense paid ;
Payments to suppliers and employees
;

Decrease/(increase) in operating assets:
Loans and advances to credit institutions ;

;
;
;

;
;
;

;
;
;

;
;
;

2005

2004

366,410
(344,899)
(719)

330,296
(354,119)
(1,682)

20,792

(25,505)

;

;

(3,628,300)

(2,300,777)

Increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities:
Amounts owed to credit institutions with agreed maturity date;

;

494,015

(21,247)

(3,113,493)

(2,347,529)

2,321,961

569,567

2,321,961

569,567

361,260
1,895,290
(1,561,184)
8,775,989
(8,459,723)
(217,622)

–
2,519,371
(864,890)
8,810,601
(8,555,599)
(131,511)

794,010

1,777,972

Cash flows arising from investing activities
Increase/(decrease) in other sundry assets ;

Cash flows arising from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of subordinated debt
Proceeds from issuance of debt securities ;
Repayment of debt securities
;
;
Proceeds from issuance of commercial paper
Repayment of commercial paper ;
;
Increase/(decrease) in other sundry liabilities

;

;

;
;
;
;
;
;

;

;

;
;
;
;
;
;

;

;
;
;
;
;
;

;

;
;
;
;
;
;

Net changes in cash and equivalents
;
;
;
Cash and equivalents balance at the beginning of the year

;

;

2,478
45

10
9

Cash ;
;
;
;
Other short term investments

;
;

;
;

;
;

2,523
–

19
–

Cash and equivalents balance at the end of the period ;

;

;

2,523

19

;
;

;
;

;
;
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DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS OF THE BANCO COMERCIAL PORTUGUÊS GROUP
A.

History and Development of the Bank

Overview
Millennium bcp is the principal bank within the BCP group of companies (the ‘‘BCP Group’’), the
largest banking group in Portugal in terms of total assets, loans to customers and number of branches and the
second largest in terms of customer deposits, on 31 December, 2004 (based on data from the Portuguese
Banking Association). The BCP Group is engaged in a wide variety of banking and related financial services
activities, in Portugal and internationally. In Portugal, the BCP Group’s operations are primarily retail banking,
but it offers a range of additional financial services, including investment banking, mortgage lending, consumer
credit, specialised credit, asset management and insurance. Internationally, the BCP Group operates in a small
number of countries with high growth potential, targeting in particular Poland and Greece, and in a number of
other countries that have a close historical connection with Portugal or large communities of Portuguese origin.
On 30 September, 2005, the BCP Group had total assets of euro 75,788 million and total customers’
funds (consisting of amounts due to customers including securities, assets under management and
capitalisation insurance) of euro 54,611 million. Net loans amounted to euro 51,534 million. The BCP
Group’s capital ratio stood at 13.0 per cent. on 30 September, 2005 according to Bank of Portugal rules (tier
one: 7.4 per cent.).
Based on the latest available data from the Portuguese Banking Association, the Bank accounted for
22 per cent. of total assets, 27 per cent. of loans to customers and 23 per cent. of customers’ deposits in the
Portuguese banking sector on 31 December, 2004. In addition, on 30 September, 2005, the Bank was one of the
largest companies listed on Euronext Lisbon in terms of market capitalisation (euro 7525 million).
The Bank’s registered offices are located at Praça Dom João I, 28, 4000– 434 Porto, with telephone
number +351 213 211 000.
Bank History
The Bank was incorporated on 25 June, 1985 as a limited liability company (‘‘sociedade anónima’’) with
registered number 40043 organised under the laws of the Portuguese Republic, following the deregulation of
the Portuguese banking industry that permitted the formation of privately owned commercial banks. The Bank
was founded with the support of a group of over 200 founding shareholders and a team of experienced banking
professionals who sought to capitalise upon the opportunity to form an independent financial institution,
operating primarily in Portugal, that would serve the underdeveloped domestic financial market in areas and in
a manner previously unexplored by the state-owned banks. The Bank implemented a clearly defined strategy,
based upon intensive market research, which was focused on:
–

segmentation of the markets and quality of service directed to the specific needs of each such market;

–

integrated delivery and cross-selling of financial services;

–

modern bank operating systems;

–

innovative marketing;

–

experienced management; and

–

ensuring adequate capital resources in anticipation of investments and asset expansion.

In pursuit of the Bank’s strategy of market segmentation, key market segments have been identified over
time. Until 2003, these segments were served through autonomous distribution networks. These networks
operated under different brands: were Individuals & Businesses, Private Banking, Corporate Retail, Corporate
Banking, NovaRede, Atlântico and SottoMayor. In October 2003, the Bank replaced these various brands by
‘‘Millennium bcp’’, a single brand name.
The first stage of the BCP Group development was characterised primarily by organic growth and, until
1994, the Bank was able to increase significantly its share of the Portuguese financial services market by
exploiting the market opportunities presented by deregulation. After 1994, competition in the domestic
banking market intensified following the modernisation of existing financial institutions and the entry of new
foreign and domestic deposit taking banks and non-deposit taking financial institutions. The Bank acquired a
domestic bank with a complementary business focus to secure additional market share in domestic banking,
insurance and other related financial services sectors.
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In March 1995, the Bank acquired control of Banco Português do Atlântico, S.A. (‘‘BPA’’ or
‘‘Atlântico’’), which was then the largest private sector bank in Portugal. This followed a joint take-over bid for
the whole share capital of Atlântico, launched together with Companhia de Seguros Império (‘‘Império’’), a
Portuguese insurance company. In June 2000, Atlântico was merged into the Bank.
Império’s largest shareholder was the José de Mello Group. The joint take-over bid for the whole share
capital of Atlântico led to further cooperation between this group and the Bank, which culminated in the
merger of the Bank’s financial services business with that of the José de Mello Group in January 2000. The
merger included the purchase from the José de Mello Group of its subsidiaries Uniparticipa and Finimper that,
in turn, controlled 51 per cent. of the share capital of each of Banco Mello and Império, respectively.
Subsequently, the Bank launched public offers for the minority interests in Banco Mello and Império. In June
2000, Banco Mello was merged into the Bank.
In March 2000, the Bank reached an agreement with Caixa Geral de Depósitos (‘‘CGD’’), a large
Portuguese banking group, for the purchase of a controlling stake in Banco Pinto & SottoMayor
(‘‘SottoMayor’’), held by CGD. In April 2000, the Bank purchased, in a public tender offer, a majority
interest in SottoMayor from CGD and the remaining shares in SottoMayor from its minority shareholders. In
December 2000, SottoMayor was merged into the Bank.
With a view to strengthening the focus on the core business of distribution of financial products,
including bancassurance, and to optimising capital consumption, important agreements were established in
2004 with the Caixa Geral de Depósitos Group relating to non-bancassurance insurance and with the BelgianDutch group Fortis involving the bancassurance business. In the former case, the agreement involved the sale
of the whole of the share capital of insurers Império Bonança and Seguro Directo, and of Impergesto and
Servicomercial. The agreement with Fortis involved the sale of 51 per cent. of the share capital and the transfer
of management control of the insurers Ocidental – Companhia Portuguesa de Seguros, S.A. (‘‘Ocidental’’),
Ocidental – Companhia Portuguesa de Seguros de Vida, S.A. (‘‘Ocidental Vida’’) and Médis – Companhia
Portuguesa de Seguros de Saúde, S.A. (‘‘Médis’’), and of the pension-fund manager Pensõesgere – Sociedade
Gestora de Fundos de Pensões, S.A. (‘‘Pensõesgere’’). Following the approval of the relevant authorities, these
operations took place in the first half of 2005. In the scope of this partnership, Fortis increased its shareholding
in the Bank to 4.99 per cent. in September 2005.
The Bank has actively pursued a strategy of focused international expansion. Since 2000, the Bank has
targeted those markets that present strong business growth prospects and where there is a strong commercial
rationale for establishing banking operations following a similar business model to the one the Bank has
adopted in its Portuguese market. In Poland, the Bank operates through Bank Millennium, formerly named Big
Bank Gdanski (‘‘BBG’’). In Greece, the Bank’s NovaBank operations target the Greek retail banking sector. The
Polish and Greek Markets are considered a priority for the Bank. In addition, the Bank has for a number of
years established banking operations in a number of countries that have a close historical connection with
Portugal or have large communities of Portuguese origin. These include Mozambique, China (Macao),
Luxembourg, France, the United States and Canada.
In the context of the strategic guidelines announced in 2003 (see ‘‘Strategy’’), namely with the view of
focusing on core banking businesses and optimising the use of capital, reducing its stakes in non-core
operations, the Bank announced in August 2005 that it had reached an agreement with Dah Sing Bank,
Limited, a banking subsidiary of the Hong Kong based financial services group Dah Sing Banking Group, to
sell its banking and insurance activities in Macau. The Bank is also pursuing negotiations for the sale of 80 per
cent. of Banque BCP France and Banque BCP Luxembourg, and it has reached an agreement to sell BCP’s
shareholding representing 50.001 per cent. of the capital of Interbanco, S.A, a car finance company specialised
on providing financial services at the point of sale of the car.
The Bank has also expanded into international activities through the formation of partnerships and
other strategic alliances with selected foreign financial institutions. These include alliances with Eureko, Spain’s
Banco Sabadell and Fortis.
B.

Business Overview

Nature of Operations and Principal Activities
The BCP Group is engaged in a wide variety of banking and related financial services activities, in
Portugal and internationally. In Portugal, the Bank’s operations are primarily retail banking, but the Bank offers
a range of additional financial services. The Bank also engages in a number of international activities and
partnerships.
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The Bank’s banking products and services include deposit-taking, short-term lending, mortgage lending,
trade finance, credit cards, fund transfers, custody of securities, foreign exchange, treasury services and money
market operations. The Bank’s domestic retail banking activities are conducted principally through its
marketing and distribution network in Portugal, that follow a segmented approach to the Portuguese retail
banking market and serve the diverse banking needs of specific groups of customers. Back office operations for
the distribution network are integrated in order to exploit economies of scale.
The Bank has subsidiaries that offer additional financial services, including investment banking,
mortgage lending, asset management and insurance. These subsidiaries generally distribute their products
through BCP’s distribution networks.
The Bank’s retail banking and related financial services activities, together with its international
operations and partnerships, are described in greater detail below.
Strategy
The Bank’s strategy is to maintain and develop its position as the leading private Portuguese financial
services group by extracting the maximum potential value from its retail and corporate customer base.
Additionally, the Bank plans to focus on selective international expansion. The three main elements of the
Bank’s strategy are to:
–

Further develop the Bank’s leading position in the Portuguese banking market. The Bank intends to maintain its
focus on its domestic retail banking operations, extracting potential value from its customer base by
utilising its detailed knowledge of its customers and the Portuguese market. In addition, the Bank aims
to generate additional revenue growth by expanding upon its best management practices, by focusing
on higher value added products and by increasing cross-selling across its marketing and distribution
network. The Bank believes there is significant potential to increase the range of products sold through
its network. The Bank also intends to continue to reduce operating costs by improving operating
efficiencies.

–

Pursue a strategy of selective international expansion, with Poland and Greece as its growth focus in the medium
term. The Bank intends to concentrate its international expansion in Poland and Greece through organic
growth. The Bank believes Bank Millennium, its Polish operation, is well placed to deliver a high return
on investment, due to the significant economic growth expected in Poland as its financial system
converges with that of EU Member States, and as a result of the major restructuring program of Bank
Millennium which the Bank undertook in 2002-04. This included the introduction of a new technology
platform, the reorganisation of its branch network, the redefinition of its credit processes and the
alignment of provisioning policies with EU standards. NovaBank in Greece, is still at an early stage of
development, but is expected to grow significantly. The Bank’s focus on Poland and Greece results from
the belief that, as the banking industry deregulates in both Poland and Greece, the Bank will be able to
apply the experience it gained following the deregulation of the Portuguese banking system and
Portugal’s accession to the EU. In addition, these markets allow the Bank to leverage its significant
experience in relation to the launch, turnaround and management of retail banking operations. The
Bank also operates in a number of countries with significant communities of Portuguese origin, where
the Bank can take advantage of its position as a leading Portuguese bank.

–

Maintain strong commitment to capital management. Improving management of its capital is a strategic
priority for the BCP Group. The Bank believes that the capitalisation of the Bank, together with its
internal capital generation, should be sufficient to enable it to maintain adequate capital ratios going
forward. In addition, the Bank intends to manage its capital as effectively as possible by reallocating
capital to its most profitable businesses, focusing on core activities and divesting non-core operations in
due course.

Banking Network in Portugal
The Bank offers a broad range of banking products and services to retail and corporate customers in
Portugal. These products and services include deposit-taking, short-term lending, mortgage lending, trade
finance, credit cards, fund transfers, custody of securities, foreign exchange, treasury services and money market
operations.
The Bank’s retail banking activities are conducted in Portugal through its customer-oriented marketing
and distribution network. In addition to providing retail banking products and services, the Bank’s banking
distribution network also serves as a distribution channel for certain specialised products and services of the
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Bank, including investment banking, mortgage lending, consumer credit, specialised credit, asset management
and insurance.
Since 1996, the Bank has integrated its back office operations. The Bank established Millennium bcp –
Prestação de Serviços (formerly known as ServiBanca), whose objective is to provide technological, operational,
administrative and purchasing services to members of the BCP Group. It provides its services at cost to all
members of the BCP Group. Millennium bcp – Prestação de Serviços is responsible for carrying out
standardised back office activities, management of information technology, accounting and audit, and the
monitoring of the costs associated with the BCP Group’s activities. Outsourcing back office functions to a
common structure has allowed the BCP Group to take advantage of economies of scale and better allocate its
resource management capabilities, even if until 2003 the Bank maintained autonomous distribution networks
operating under distinct brands to take advantage of strong brand recognition.
Other Financial Services in Portugal
Investment Banking
Millennium bcp investmento is the Bank’s investment banking subsidiary. Millennium bcp
investmento is wholly owned by the BCP Group.
Mortgage Lending
The Bank entered the mortgage lending business in 1992, when it launched, in association with
Cariplo – Cassa di Risparmio delle Provincie Lombarda S.p.A. (‘‘Cariplo’’) (now a part of the Italian financial
group Banca Intesa), an autonomous mortgage bank, Banco de Investimento Imobiliário, S.A. (‘‘BII’’). BII was
69.9 per cent. owned by the BCP Group, with the remaining 30.1 per cent. being owned by Banca Intesa. BII
previously distributed its mortgage products through the Bank’s marketing and distribution networks, as well as
through its own retail outlets. On 21 September 2005, the Bank reached an agreement with Banca Intesa for the
unwinding of the joint venture arrangements regarding BII. In October 2005 the Bank acquired 30.1 per cent.
of the capital of BII owned by Intesa, becoming the sole shareholder of BII. The transaction has been subject to
all relevant precedent conditions and regulatory approvals.
Asset Management
The Bank is engaged in the asset management business through Millennium bcp – Gestão de Fundos de
Investimento, S.A., AF International, S.G.P.S. Sociedade Unipessoal, Lda, BCP Investimentos International,
S.A. and AF Investments, Limited, all wholly owned subsidiaries. Millennium bcp – Gestão de Fundos de
Investimento operates a number of securities funds and real estate funds.
Insurance
The Bank has an interest in insurance activities through Millennium bcp Fortis, a joint-venture for
bancassurance business with Fortis. The Group holds 49 per cent. of Millennium bcp Fortis’ share capital,
while the remaining 51 per cent is held by Fortis.
International Activities
The Bank is actively pursuing its strategy of focused international expansion. Since 2000, the Bank has
targeted those countries that present strong business growth prospects and where the Bank believes there is a
strong commercial rationale for establishing banking operations following a similar business model to the one
the Bank has adopted in the Portuguese market. In exploiting this strategy, the Bank has concentrated on
Poland and Greece in particular. In addition, the Bank established banking operations in a number of countries
that have a close connection with Portugal or have large communities of Portuguese origin. These include
Mozambique, China (Macao), Luxembourg, France, the United States and Canada.
Poland
In 1998, the Bank entered into a partnership agreement with the Polish financial group, BBG, pursuant
to which the Bank launched a retail operation within BBG in the Polish market under the name ‘‘Millennium’’.
This joint venture was controlled jointly by the Bank and BBG. As part of a restructuring of BBG in 2002, the
Bank and BBG decided to merge their Millennium joint venture into BBG and establish one banking
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operation. During the fourth quarter of 2002, the Bank increased its shareholding in BBG to 50 per cent. of its
share capital. At the start of 2003, BBG changed its name to Bank Millennium. All existing BBG branches and
brands have been rebranded under the name ‘‘Bank Millennium’’.
Greece
In July 1999, the Bank and Interamerican Hellenic Life Insurance Company S.A. (‘‘Interamerican’’),
one of the largest Greek life insurers and a wholly owned subsidiary of Eureko, launched a joint greenfield retail
banking operation in the Greek market, NovaBank. Following the April 2005 acquisition of 50 per cent. of
NovaBank’s share capital and controlling rights, Millennium bcp wholly-owns NovaBank.
Turkey
In order to leverage its operational capabilities and its geographic position, in 2002, NovaBank acquired
Sitebank, a small Turkish commercial bank, to cater for the affluent individuals segment of the Turkish market
in a selective and cost-efficient manner. This bank was subsequently renamed to BankEuropa.
Mozambique
Banco Internacional de Moçambique (‘‘BIM’’) is a Mozambican retail bank that began trading in 1995.
BIM was the first Mozambican bank to be created as a joint venture on an equal basis by local and foreign
partners. In December 2001, BIM was merged into Banco Comercial de Moçambique, the Mozambican
holding company of Banco Mello and Companhia de Seguros Império that was transferred to the Bank in 2000
following the Bank’s agreement with the José de Mello Group to merge their financial services businesses.
Banco Comercial de Moçambique was subsequently renamed Banco Internacional de Moçambique. BIM also
holds interests in subsidiaries specialising in investment banking (BIM Investimento), in leasing activities (BIM
Leasing), specialised credit (Credicar), in insurance activities (SIM) and in micro-credit operations
(NovoBanco).
Macao
Banco Comercial de Macau (‘‘BCM’’) is based in Macao and serves as a commercial and operating
platform from which the Bank can target markets of Southeast Asia, including the Chinese market. BCM
operates in the retail banking sector, focusing on consumer credit products and mortgage lending. BCM is
wholly owned by the BCP Group.
France
Banque BCP (France) is a retail banking operation based in France established in 2001 as a result of the
merger of the French banking institutions, which the Bank acquired as a result of the acquisitions of Atlântico,
Banco Mello and SottoMayor. Banque BCP (France) serves a clearly defined market segment consisting of
residents in France who originated from, or have close ties with, Portugal.
Luxembourg
Banque BCP (Luxembourg) became part of the BCP Group as a result of the acquisition of Banco Mello
in 2000. It was formerly named Banco Mello (Luxembourg) and is wholly owned by the BCP Group. Banque
BCP (Luxembourg) focuses on retail banking and targets the Portuguese community resident in Luxembourg.
United States of America
In November 2000, BCPBank (US), or BPABank, as it was then named, opened its first branches in the
State of New Jersey in the United States of America. BCPBank (US) targets the local population in areas where
the Portuguese community has a strong presence. BCPBank (US) is wholly owned by the BCP Group.
Canada
Following the acquisition by the Bank of SottoMayor in 2000, BCPBank (Canada), or SottoMayor Bank
Canada, as it was then named, became part of the BCP Group. BCPBank (Canada) is a retail bank operating in
Canada, which targets the local population in areas where the Portuguese community has a strong presence.
BCPBank (Canada) is wholly owned by the BCP Group.
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International Partnerships
Since 1991, the Bank has also developed an internationalisation strategy based on establishing cooperation agreements with foreign partners. The Bank’s current foreign partners are Eureko, Banco Sabadell
and Fortis. These partnerships involve, among other things, joint ventures, cross-shareholdings and reciprocal
board representation.
Banco Sabadell
In March 2000, the Bank announced the terms of a strategic partnership agreement with Banco Sabadell
of Spain, seeking the development of joint initiatives in finance-related fields of mutual interest and in
particular in the area of Internet financial services. The Bank currently holds 3.0 per cent. of Banco Sabadell’s
share capital, while Banco Sabadell holds 3.1 per cent. of the share capital of the Bank.
Eureko
In 1991, the Bank established strategic partnerships with two significant European insurance groups,
Friends Provident and AVCB Avero Centraal Beheer. In 1992, Eureko was established as a pan-European
insurance group, as a result of the association of the insurance groups Friends Provident, from the United
Kingdom; AVCB Avero Centraal Beheer, from the Nederlands; Wasa, from Sweden; and the Danish financial
group Topdanmark. In 1993, the Bank, through its insurance holding Seguros e Pensões Gere, became the fifth
partner of this pan-European strategic insurance alliance. The Bank currently holds 3.9 per cent. of the share
capital of Eureko, while Eureko Group holds 7.55 per cent. of the share capital of the Bank.
Fortis
In 2005, the Bank and Fortis established a joint venture for the bancassurance business, through the
insurance company Millennium bcp Fortis. The Group holds 49 per cent. of Millennium bcp Fortis’ share
capital, while the remaining 51 per cent. is held by Fortis. In September 2005, Fortis increased its shareholding
in the Bank to 4.99 per cent.
Banca Intesa
In 1991, the Bank established a strategic partnership with Cariplo, which in 1998 became part of the
Italian financial group now known as Banca Intesa. This partnership was essential to the establishment of a
mortgage bank, BII, which has successfully combined the product expertise in mortgage lending of the Bank’s
Italian partner with the Bank’s knowledge of the Portuguese market. On 21 September, 2005, the Bank and
Intesa agreed to unwind this partnership and in October 2005 the Bank acquired 30.1 per cent. of the capital of
BII. Concurrently, Intesa sold 7.43 per cent. of its shareholding in the Bank, and the Bank disposed of its 2.1
per cent. of the share capital of Intesa through a contribution to the Bank’s Pension Fund.
Recent Developments
The following are among the most significant business developments of the BCP Group since 31
December, 2004:
–

On 4 January, 2005, the Bank announced that it had reached an agreement with SOFINCO S.A., a
French financial company, part of Credit Agricole, which specialises in consumer credit, to sell to them
its point-of-sale consumer credit activity (previously developed by its subsidiary Credibanco, which had
since merged into Banco Comercial Português.) BCP announced that for the purpose of this
transaction, the economic activity sold would be transferred to a new financial company, which would
subsequently be sold to SOFINCO S.A. or to its Portuguese subsidiary Credibom, S.A. in a process
completed in August 2005 further to the disposal to Credibom of the control of Credilar in June 2005.
The transaction price was of 65 million Euros, generating a capital gain of 50.8 million Euros, booked
on Banco Comercial Português profits at completion date. The economic activity sold involved the
transfer of 212 million Euros of consumer credits granted through merchants point-of-sale (i.e. nonbanking channel), excluding car loans, renting, and credit cards and represented 6 per cent. of Banco
Comercial Português’s consolidated consumer credit portfolio. This sale was part of the Bank’s strategy
to refocus on its core business and to optimize its capital management.

–

On 28 January, 2005, the Bank informed that all the formalities for the sale to Fortis of 51 per cent. of
the share capital and management control of the joint-venture ‘‘Millennium bcp Fortis – Grupo
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Segurador, SGPS, S. A.’’, (a new company that controls the total share capital of the following
companies involved in the bancassurance business: Ocidental - Companhia Portuguesa de Seguros de
Vida, S. A., Ocidental – Companhia Portuguesa de Seguros, S. A., Pensõesgere – Sociedade Gestora de
Fundos de Pensões, S. A. and Médis-Companhia Portuguesa de Seguros de Saúde, S.A.) had been
concluded that day. Furthermore, all the formalities for the sale to Caixa Geral de Depósitos of
100 per cent. of the share capital of Império Bonança – Companhia de Seguros, S.A., Seguro Directo
Gere Companhia de Seguros, S.A., Impergesto – Assistência e Serviços, S.A. and Servicomercial Consultoria e Informática, Lda., were also concluded on that day.
–

On 18 February, 2005, the Bank announced that the Chairman of the General Meeting of Shareholders,
having been informed by Mr. Jorge Jardim Gonçalves of his intention to cease his executive functions at
the date as Chairman of the Board of Directors and CEO, proposed to BCPs Annual General Meeting
on 14 March that Mr. Jardim Gonçalves would be appointed Chairman of the Senior Board. Upon his
election to the new functions, his previous mandate ceased. Considering these proposed changes, the
remaining members of the Board of Directors, all of them with executive functions on the management
of the Bank, deemed it adequate to request from the Shareholders a new mandate for all of the members
of the Board of Directors. Accordingly the current Chairman of the Senior Board and Board of
Directors proposed to the Annual General Meeting a list of members for the Board of Directors,
indicating as Chairman and CEO Mr. Paulo Teixeira Pinto and having as remaining members the
individuals on the Board at that time. A proposal for a new mandate for the Chairman and Secretaries
of the General Meeting of Shareholders and of the Audit Board was also submitted.

–

On 14 March, 2005, the General Shareholders Meeting of Banco Comercial Português, S.A. took place,
with the attendance of shareholders representing 69.15 per cent. of the share capital. Among the
deliberations approved the following are noteworthy: Approval of the 2004 management report and of
the consolidated and non-consolidated accounts of the Bank; Approval of the distribution, in cash, of a
gross dividend of EUR 0.065 per share, relative to the profit of 2004; given that in November of 2004 it
had already been paid an early dividend with a gross value of EUR 0.030 per share, the remaining
dividend paid on 6 April was of EUR 0.035 per share. Approval of the changes to the Bank’s articles of
association as listed in paragraph 4 of the call notice of the General Meeting of Shareholders. These aim
to prevent the elections of the Senior Board and of the Board of Directors to take place in the same year,
through extending the term of office of the former to four from three years, whenever that happens. The
General Shareholders Meeting also approved the Board of Auditors to be headed by the Chairman of
the Senior Board, counting the Chairman of the Board of Auditors and other person designated by the
Senior Board as its members; Election of the Corporate Boards for the 2005-2007 period; Election of
the Senior Board for the 2005-2008 period. The 4-year duration of this mandate results from the change
to the Articles of Association referred above.

–

On 17 March, 2005, a New Organisational Model of the Group was announced by the Chairman and
CEO of the Bank, aimed at achieving the following strategic objectives: In the short-term – Fulfil
completely the goals of profitability and growth; Medium-term - To become a Multi-Domestic Bank,
through profitable growth and by capturing synergies in the three domestic markets; Long-term - To
sustain strategic independence, creating value beyond the expectations of shareholders and respecting
the relationships with all stakeholders. With the new Organisational Model the executive coordination
of the Group is structured in eight units: six business units – Retail Banking, Companies and Corporate;
Private Banking and Asset Management, Investment Banking, European Banking and Overseas
Banking-, and two support units – Banking Services and Corporate Services. The executive management
of each of the six Business Units as well as the Banking Services unit will be of the responsibility of the
respective Executive Coordination Committee, which is made up by two or more Board Members and
members of the Senior management directly responsible for the areas included in the unit.
Complementing the structure of the executive coordination, there are the following Committees,
whose responsibilities include the monitoring of the activities of the Bank in their respective areas of
intervention: Markets and Corporate Governance Committee, Training and Career Development
Committee, Social Responsibility and Sustainability Committee, Audit, Security and Anti-Money
Laundering Committee, Risks Committee (credit, markets and liquidity and operational risks and
Pension Fund). All of these Committees are chaired by the Chairman and CEO of the Bank, include
members of the Executive Board as well as members of the Senior management directly involved in the
activities connected to each one of the Commissions. The relations with the Authorities, Portuguese
Association of Banks, Trade Unions and Workers Commissions, Auditors and Consultants and third
parties in which the bank participates and/or develops partnerships (SIBS, UNICRE, BII, Interbanco,
Millennium bcp Fortis and Classis) are directly assured by the Executive Board.
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–

On 26 April, 2005, the acquisition from the Dimitrios Contominas Group of the remaining 50 per cent.
of NovaBank’s capital and respective rights of control was concluded. The transaction terms included a
payment of 250 million euro respective to price and a payment of 80 million euro respective to control
premium. The acquisition resulted from the confidence on the development and growth potential of
NovaBank, supported by the progress that had been obtained, together with the availability manifested
by Mr. Dimitrios Contominas to sell his participation, due to reasons related with legal
incompatibilities with his other interests in Greece.

–

On 22 June, 2005, the Bank announced the launch of a Residential Mortgage-Backed Securities (RMBS)
issued through a special purpose vehicle named Magellan Mortgages No3, Plc and incorporated in the
Republic of Ireland. The 1.5 billion euro transaction was joint managed by Millennium bcp
investimento, ABN AMRO Bank, Calyon and Citigroup. The asset portfolio is composed of residential
mortgages originated by Banco Comercial Português. This transaction was the largest to date offered in
the international RMBS market by a Portuguese originator. This transaction is also a part of Banco
Comercial Português on-going optimization of its risk-weighted assets.

–

On 30 June, 2005, the Bank announced the transfer to its Pension Fund, as contribution in kind, of
78,956,008 shares corresponding to 2.16 per cent. of EDP-Energias de Portugal, S.A. (‘‘EDP’’) share
capital owned by the Bank. At the same date EDP also transferred to its Pension Fund 2.01 per cent. of
BCP share capital. After these transactions, BCP holds a stake of 2.9% of EDP share capital, and EDP
has a participation of 2.35 per cent. in BCP share capital. These cross-shareholdings result from a
strategic alliance established in March 2000, aimed at exploring business opportunities by taking
advantage of the leadership position of both companies in their respective markets. While the abovementioned transactions are part of the financial management and capital allocation initiatives
undertaken by BCP and EDP, both companies reiterated their intention to pursue the analysis and
development of joint initiatives with the objective of extracting value from the strategic partnership.

–

On 3 August, 2005, the Bank announced that it had reached an agreement with Dah Sing Bank,
Limited, a banking subsidiary of the Hong Kong based financial services group Dah Sing Banking
Group, to sell its banking and insurance activities in Macau. The Bank will maintain its Macau branch.
The transaction involves the sale of 100 per cent. of the share capital of Banco Comercial de Macau,
S.A., 4 per cent. of the share capital of Companhia de Seguros de Macau, SARL (92 per cent. of the
capital is held by Banco Comercial de Macau), and 0.13 per cent. of the share capital of Companhia de
Seguros de Macau Vida, SARL (the remaining capital is held by Companhia de Seguros de Macau) for
MOP 1,719 million (euro 177 million). This transaction is subject to relevant regulatory approvals.

–

On 4 August, 2005, the Bank announced that it had reached an agreement with Société Générale to sell
the Bank’s shareholding in Interbanco, S.A. The transaction involves the sale of 50.001 per cent. of the
share capital of Interbanco, S.A. for euro 110 million, subject to relevant regulatory approvals and preemption rights established in the shareholders agreement existing between the Bank and SAG.
Subsequently, SAG notified the Bank of the exercise of its pre-emption rights pursuant to the
shareholders agreement, designating, as provided in such shareholders agreement, Santander Consumer
Finance as the acquirer of the Bank’s stake in Interbanco, in accordance with the terms and conditions
agreed to between the Bank and Société Générale Consumer Finance.

–

On 5 August, 2005, following the communication made on 19 April, 2005 by Banque BCP announcing
the start of negotiations with a relevant French financial institution aiming at establishing a partnership
through the acquisition of participations in Banque BCP France and Banque BCP Luxembourg, whose
share capital is currently fully owned by the Bank, the Bank made the following announcement: ‘‘The
above-mentioned financial institution is ‘‘Caisse Nationale des Caisses d’ Epargne’’, and the negotiations for the
acquisition of a 80.1 per cent. participation in the share capital of both banks has already reached an advanced
stage. Accordingly, the information and consultation procedures with the company’s relevant social partners were
already initiated. According to local legislation, the fulfilment of those procedures is a pre-requirement for the
completion of the agreement, notwithstanding the approval from the supervising authorities.’’

–

On 12 September, 2005, the Bank announced that it had initiated the necessary procedures for the
approval of the distribution of an interim dividend for 2005, for the gross amount of 0.033 euros per
share, to be paid during October 2005. The amount of this interim dividend corresponds to a 10 per
cent. increase versus the previous year’s interim dividend and is in line with the dividend policy
introduced in 2004. The aim of this policy, aligned with best international practices, is to increase the
return to shareholders through a more frequent distribution of the earnings generated by the Bank.

–

On 21 September, 2005, the Bank and Intesa agreed to unwind their partnership and the Bank has
agreed to acquire 30.1 per cent. of the capital of BII. Concurrently, Intesa sold 7.43 per cent. of its
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shareholding in the Bank, and the Bank disposed of its 2.1 per cent of the share capital of Intesa through
a contribution to the Bank’s Pension Fund. The acquisition of 30.1 per cent. of the capital of BII took
place in October 2005.
–

On 22 September, 2005, Fortis announced having acquired a 3.13 per cent. stake in the Bank, for a total
consideration of EUR 224.2 million. This brings Fortis’ total participation in the Bank’s capital to 4.99
per cent.

–

On 22 September, 2005, Eureko B.V. announced that it has acquired a further 1 per cent. stake in the
Bank. Eureko now holds a total shareholding in the Bank of 7.55 per cent, becoming the largest single
shareholder in the Bank.

Developments since 30th September, 2005
–

On 13 October, 2005, Banco Comercial Português’ subsidiary BCP Finance Company issued 500
million euros Non-cumulative Non-voting Preference Shares. This issue, directed at European
institutional investors, has a call option and step-up clause at the end of year 10 and is eligible for Banco
Comercial Português’ total capital ratio. The issue of these Preference Shares is part of the ongoing
management of the hybrid capital instruments issued by the Bank, aiming at reducing its costs.
Dividends will be paid at a fixed rate of 4.239 per cent. during the first 10 years and at 3 month Euribor
plus 1.95 per cent. spread, per annum, payable quarterly, thereafter. We highlight that the launch and
pricing of the issue follows a successful roadshow. The investors’ receptivity and market conditions
allowed Banco Comercial Português to raise funds at attractive terms and benefiting from a spread 12
basis points lower than that of a similar issue made by the Bank in June 2004

–

The Bank formally presented its interest in participating in the privatisation of Banca Comerciala
Romana, the largest bank in Romania with a market share of over 30 per cent. In July 2005, the
Romanian authorities announced that the Bank had been accepted to participate in the pre-qualifying
process for the privatisation of Banca Comerciala Romana. The Bank submitted a proposal on 17
October 2005. In October 2005 the Bank announced its inclusion in the shortlist of Banca Comerciala
Romana’s privatisation process.

C.

Principal Markets and Competition

Since 1996, there has been a significant expansion of personal financial services in the Portuguese
banking market, resulting in a sustained development of mortgage credit, consumer loans, investment funds
and unit-linked products, and increased use of credit cards. The Portuguese banking market is now well
developed, and includes strong domestic competitors that incorporate a multi-product, multi-channel and
multi-client segmented approach. This has allowed Portuguese banks to tailor their financial products and
services to customers’ needs and to improve commercial capabilities. In addition, there has been significant
development of internet banking operations and the use of new techniques, such as customer relationship
management, which enable banks to accurately track customers’ requirements. Cross-selling has benefited from
the use of such techniques and has increased the proportion of banks’ non-interest income in recent years.
Foreign banks have also entered the Portuguese market, particularly in areas such as corporate banking, asset
management, private banking and brokerage services. These factors have resulted in increased competition,
especially for customers’ funds. Customer loans and advances increased significantly in the second half of the
1990s, but lower economic growth observed since the end of 2000 led to a slowdown of demand for credit,
resulting in increased competition.
The Bank competes primarily with the four other major Portuguese banking groups: Caixa Geral de
Depósitos; Banco Espı́rito Santo; Banco Santander Totta and BPI. The diversity of the Bank’s marketing and
distribution networks until October 2003, and since that date the single brand Millennium bcp, have enabled
the Bank to maintain a leading position among its competitors The Bank’s fully centralised back office
operations enable the Bank to operate efficiently and exploit economies of scale.
At the end of 2004, the Bank’s estimated market share, together with that of the four other major
Portuguese banking groups, was in excess of 80 per cent. in terms of total assets, customers’ funds and number
of branches, as a result of the consolidation that took place in the Portuguese banking system in the second half
of the 1990s. This consolidation process was driven by the need to achieve economies of scale and operating
synergies. More recently, major Portuguese banks have rationalised their operating structures, with the aim of
cost-cutting and improving efficiency. In addition, many Portuguese banks have focused on increasing
revenues through increased market share and cross-selling as well as on core operations, which tend to support
aggressive commercial strategies.
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The following table illustrates the competitive environment in Portugal as at 31 December, 2004, 2003,
2002 and 2001, and shows the change between 31 December, 2004 and 31st December, 2003:
As at 31 December,
2003
2002
(in thousands)
62
60
5,256
5,140
10,475
10,408
1,993
2,025
85
86

2004
Number of banks (1)
Number of branches
Population (thousands)
Inhabitants per branch
Branches per bank

61(2)
5,312
10,356(3)
1,983
87

Change
(2004-2003)
2001
57
5,167
10,329
1,999
91

(1.6)%
1.1%
0.6%
(0.5)%
2.7%

Sources: Bank of Portugal, Government of Portugal, Portuguese Banking Association and National Statistics Institute of Portugal
(1)

Including Caixa Económica Montepio Geral.

(2)

Estimated by the Bank as at 31 December, 2004.

(3)

Estimated by the Portuguese Government as at 31 December, 2004.

The Bank is also subject to strong competition in the international markets in which it operates. In
Poland and in Greece, household and corporate indebtedness remain low by international standards, which the
Bank believes supports strong medium term credit growth and therefore makes its strategy of organic growth
viable. However, these opportunities have led to increased competition in recent years. Privatisation and
consolidation in the Polish banking industry in the second half of the 1990s has also led to the establishment of
foreign banks and increased competition. In addition, in both Poland and Greece, increased European
integration has created strong incentives for the cross-border provision of financial services without a local
commercial presence, and for cross-border mergers, resulting in significant additional competition from foreign
banks.
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D.

Organisational Structure

The Bank and the Group
The following diagram summarises the organisational structure of the principal subsidiaries of the
Group on 30th September, 2005 (being the latest practicable date for which such information is available):
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In addition, BCP’s subsidiary, Millenium bcp-Prestação de Serviços ACE centralises common
operational and management support units.
The Bank is, directly or indirectly, the ultimate holding company of all the companies in the BCP
Group. Accordingly, the Bank is dependent on the other members of the BCP Group in respect of the activities
developed by such members.
Significant Subsidiaries
The following is a list of the main subsidiaries of BCP at 30th September, 2005:

Millennium bcp – Gestão de Fundos de Investimento, S.A.
Banco Millennium bcp Investimento, S.A.
Banco de Investimento Imobiliário, S.A.
Interbanco, S.A.
Banco ActivoBank (Portugal), S.A.
Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A.
Banco Internacional de Moçambique, S.A.R.L.
Bank Millennium, S.A.
Banque BCP, S.A.S.
Banque BCP (Luxembourg), S.A.
Banque Privée BCP (Suisse) S.A.
BCPBank Canada
BCPBank National Association
NovaBank, S.A.
BankEuropa Bankasi, A.S.
Millennium BCP – Prestação de Serviços, A.C.E.
Managerland, S.A.
Seguros e Pensões Gere, S.G.P.S., S.A.

Country of
incorporation/
residence

% held
by the Bank

% held
by the Group

Portugal
Portugal
Portugal
Portugal
Portugal
China
Mozambique
Poland
France
Luxembourg
Switzerland
Canada
USA
Greece
Turkey
Portugal
Spain
Portugal

100.0
–
69.9
–
–
–
–
50.0
100.0
–
–
–
–
–
–
52.9
50.0
89.0

100.0
100.0
69.9
50.0
100.0
100.0
66.7
50.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
50.0
96.9
50.0
100.0

The Issuer is a finance company whose sole business is raising debt to be on-lent to the Bank and other
members of the BCP Group on an arm’s length basis. The Issuer is accordingly dependent on the Bank and
other members of the BCP Group servicing these loans.
General
There are no arrangements in place, the operation of which may result in a change of control of the
Bank.
Save as disclosed in the ‘‘Recent Developments’’ section on pages 76 – 79 of this Offering Circular, the
Bank has made no investments since the date of the last published financial statements and the Bank has made
no firm commitments on future investments.
Save as disclosed in the ‘‘Recent Developments’’ section on pages 76 – 79 of this Offering Circular, there
have been no recent events particular to the Bank, which are to a material extent relevant to the evaluation of
the Bank’s solvency.
E.

Share Capital

The authorised and issued share capital of the Bank is E3,257,400,827 fully paid. Each share is ordinary
with a nominal amount of E1.00.
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F.

Management
The Directors of the Bank and their positions held are as follows:

Name

Position(s) held

Company/Institution

Paulo Jorge de
Assunção Rodrigues
Teixeira Pinto

Chairman of the Board of Directors
Chairman of the Board of Directors
Vice-Chairman of the Board on
behalf of BCP
Chairman of the Board of Directors

Banco Comercial Português, S.A.
Fundação Millennium bcp
Associação Portuguesa de Bancos

Chairman of the Board of Directors
Chairman of the Board of Directors
Chairman of the Board of Directors
Chairman of the Board of Directors
Chairman of the Board of Directors
Member of the Supervisory Board
Manager
Manager
Chairman of the Board of Directors
Filipe de Jesus Pinhal

Vice-Chairman of the Board of
Directors
Vice-Chairman of the Board of
Directors
Chairman of Conseil de Surveillance
Member of the Board of Directors
Vice-Chairman of the Board of
Directors
Manager
Manager
Manager

Christopher de Beck

Vice-Chairman of the Board of
Directors
Vice-Chairman of the Board of
Directors
Member of Supervisory Board
Member of the Board of Directors
Member of the Board of Directors
Vice-Chairman of the Board of
Directors
Manager
Manager
Vice-Chairman of Supervisory Board
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Millennium bcp – Prestação de Serviços,
ACE
Banco Millennium bcp Investimento, S.A.
Banco de Investimento Imobiliário, S.A.
Interbanco, S.A.
Banco ActivoBank (Portugal), S.A.
Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A.
Bank Millennium, S.A.
BCP Participações Financeiras, SGPS,
Sociedade Unipessoal, Lda.
BCP Internacional II, Sociedade
Unipessoal, SGPS, Lda.
Seguros e Pensões Gere, SGPS, S.A.
Banco Comercial Português, S.A.
Banco de Investimento Imobiliário, S.A.
Banque BCP, S.A.S.
Millennium bcp – Prestação de Serviços,
ACE
Fundação Millennium bcp
BCP Participações Financeiras, SGPS,
Sociedade Unipessoal, Lda.
BCP Internacional II, Sociedade
Unipessoal, SGPS, Lda.
BII Internacional, SGPS, Lda.
Banco Comercial Português, S.A.
Banco Millennium bcp Investimento, S.A.
Bank Millennium, S.A.
NovaBank, S.A.
Millennium bcp – Prestação de Serviços,
ACE
Fundação Millennium bcp
BCP Participações Financeiras, SGPS,
Sociedade Unipessoal, Lda.
BCP Internacional II, Sociedade
Unipessoal, SGPS, Lda.
Banque BCP, S.A.S.

Name

Position(s) held

Company/Institution

António Manuel de
Seabra e Melo
Rodrigues

Member of the Board of Directors
Member of the Board of Directors
Vice-Chairman of the Board of
Directors
Member of the Board of Directors
Manager

Banco Comercial Português, S.A.
Banco ActivoBank (Portugal), S.A.
Millennium bcp – Prestação de Serviços,
ACE
Fundação Millennium bcp
BCP Participações Financeiras, SGPS,
Sociedade Unipessoal, Lda.
BCP Internacional II, Sociedade
Unipessoal, SGPS, Lda.

Manager

António Manuel
Pereira Caldas de
Castro Henriques

Member of the Board of Directors
Member of the Board of Directors
Chairman of the Board of Directors
Member of the Board of Directors
Vice-Chairman of the Board of
Directors
Vice-Chairman of the Board of
Directors
Vice-Chairman of the Board of
Directors
Vice-Chairman of the Board of
Directors
Vice-Chairman of the Board of
Directors
Vice-Chairman of the Board of
Directors
Member of the Board of Directors
Member of the Board of Directors
Manager
Manager
Member of the Board of Directors
Member of the Board

Alı́pio Barrosa Pereira
Dias

Member of the Board of Directors
Member of the Board of Directors
Manager
Member of the Board of Directors
Member of the Board of Directors
Chairman of the Board of Directors
Chairman of Supervisory Board
Chairman of Supervisory Board
Member of the Board
Manager
Manager
‘‘Curador’’
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Banco Comercial Português, S.A.
Banco ActivoBank (Portugal), S.A.
Banque Privée BCP (Suisse), S.A.
Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A.
Millennium bcp Fortis Grupo Segurador,
SGPS, S.A.
Médis – Companhia Portuguesa de
Seguros de Saúde, S.A.
Ocidental – Companhia Portuguesa de
Seguros, S.A.
Pensõesgere-Sociedade Gestora de
Fundos de Pensões, S A
Ocidental – Companhia Portuguesa de
Seguros de Vida, S.A.
Seguros e Pensões Gere, SGPS, S.A.
Millennium bcp – Prestação de Serviços,
ACE
Fundação Millennium bcp
BCP Participações Financeiras, SGPS,
Sociedade Unipessoal, Lda.
BCP Internacional II, Sociedade
Unipessoal, SGPS, Lda.
bcp holdings (usa), inc.
Associação Portuguesa para o
Desenvolvimento Económico e a
Cooperação
Banco Comercial Português, S.A.
Banco Millennium bcp Investimento,
S.A.
VSC – Aluguer de Veı́culos sem
Condutor, Lda.
Millennium bcp – Prestação de Serviços,
ACE
Fundação Millennium bcp
CVP – Sociedade de Gestão Hospitalar,
S.A.
Fundação Oriente
Associação dos Oficiais da Reserva
Naval
Fundação Portuguesa de Cardiologia
BCP Participações Financeiras, SGPS,
Sociedade Unipessoal, Lda.
BCP Internacional II, Sociedade
Unipessoal, SGPS, Lda.
Fundação Cidade de Lisboa

Name

Position(s) held

Company/Institution

‘‘Curador’’
Vogal da Junta Directiva
Chairman of Supervisory Board

Fundação O Século
Casa de Bragança
Escola de Gestão da Universidade do
Porto
PSD Porto
Associação dos Ex-Deputados
Fundação Manuel Cargaleiro
Associação Fiscal Portuguesa

Chairman of ‘‘Assembleia Distrital’’
Chairman of Supervisory Board
‘‘Curador’’
Member of the Board
Alexandre Alberto
Bastos Gomes

Member of the Board of Directors
Member of the Board of Directors
Member of the Board of Directors
Manager
Member of the Board of Directors
Member of the Board of Directors
Member of the Board of Directors
Member of the Board of Directors
Manager
Manager

Francisco José Queiroz
de Barros de Lacerda

Member of the Board of Directors
Member of the Board of Directors
Member of the Supervisory Board
Vice-Chairman of the Board of
Directors
Vice-Chairman of the Board of
Directors
Member of the Board of Directors
Member of the Board of Directors
Manager
Manager
Member of the ‘‘Conseil de
Surveillance’’

Boguslaw Jerzy Kott

Member of the Board of Directors
Chairman of Management Board
and CEO
Chairman of Supervisory Board
Chairman of Supervisory Board
Member of Supervisory Board
Chairman of Supervisory Board
Member of the Board of Directors
Manager
Manager
Member of the Board of Directors
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Banco Comercial Português, S.A.
Interbanco, S.A.
Banco ActivoBank (Portugal), S.A.
VSC – Aluguer de Veı́culos sem
Condutor, Lda.
Millennium bcp – Prestação de Serviços,
ACE
Seguros e Pensões Gere, SGPS, S.A.
SIBS - Sociedade Interbancária de
Serviços, S.A.
Fundação Millennium bcp
BCP Participações Financeiras, SGPS,
Sociedade Unipessoal, Lda.
BCP Internacional II, Sociedade
Unipessoal, SGPS, Lda.
Banco Comercial Português, S.A.
Banco Millennium bcp Investimento,
S.A.
Bank Millennium, S.A.
NovaBank, S.A.
BankEuropa Bankasi, A.S.
Millennium bcp – Prestação de Serviços,
ACE
Fundação Millennium bcp
BCP Participações Financeiras, SGPS,
Sociedade Unipessoal, Lda.
BCP Internacional II, Sociedade
Unipessoal, SGPS, Lda.
Banque BCP, S.A.S.

Banco Comercial Português, S.A.
Bank Millennium, S.A.
Millennium Dom Maklerski S.A.
BIG-BG Inwestycje
Powszechny Zaklad Ubezpiecsen PZU
S.A.
Bel Leasing Sp. z.o.o.
Fundação Millennium bcp
BCP Participações Financeiras, SGPS,
Sociedade Unipessoal, Lda.
BCP Internacional II, Sociedade
Unipessoal, SGPS, Lda.
bcp holdings (usa), inc.

The business address for each of the Directors of the Bank is Rua Augusta, No 84, 4o, 1149-023 Lisboa,
Portugal.
Positions held outside the Banco Comercial Português Group by Banco Comercial Português Board Members
which are significant with respect to the Banco Comercial Português Group:
Name

Position(s) held

Company

Alexandre Alberto
Bastos Gomes
Boguslaw Jerzy Kott

Member of the Board

SIBS-Sociedade Interbancária de
Serviços, S.A.
Powszechny Zaklad Ubezpilcsen, S.A.

President of Supervisory Board

Other than as disclosed above, no Director of the Bank has any activities outside the Bank which are
significant with respect to the Bank.
There are no potential conflicts of interest between the duties to the Bank of the persons listed above
and their private interests or duties.
The Bank complies with general provisions of Portuguese law on corporate governance.
Audit Committee
The Bank’s Audit, Security and Anti Money Laundering (‘‘ALM’’) Committee comprises ten members,
including the Chairman. Five of its members are members of the Board of Directors: Paulo Teixeira Pinto
(Chairman), António Rodrigues, Alı́pio Dias, Alexandre Bastos Gomes and Francisco Lacerda. The Bank’s
Audit, Security and ALM Committee also comprises representatives for certain areas, namely Member
Responsible for the Audit (Secretary), Member Responsible for Physical Security, Member Responsible for
Logical Systems Security, Compliance Officer and Member Responsible for Servitrust.
The Audit, Security and ALM Committee is required to define the strategic orientations and decide the
more relevant aspects of the internal audit, physical and logical systems security and anti money laundering
functions.
To carry out these duties, the Audit, Security and ALM Committee has to coordinate, centralise
information and follow the execution of the policies and measures taken, with the support of the existing
specialised structures. The Audit, Security and ALM Committee also has to answer, for its initiative or by
request of the Board of Directors, or of the relative Chairman, any questions that are in its scope-of-action.
The Audit, Security and ALM Committee regularly reports the Board of Directors and the Board of
Auditors on all subjects, either by submitting minutes of its meetings, or by answering direct queries.
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Impact of IFRS transitional adjustments and recent operations on the Bank’s solvency
The application of IFRS altered the accounting policies previously applied by the Bank to its financial
statements, and in particular to the items determining the amount of the Bank’s own funds to be considered in
the calculations of the Bank’s solvency ratio.
According to the solvency ratio requirements of the Bank of Portugal, elements of these impacts can be
linearly deferred over a three to seven year period, depending on their nature. In addition, general provisions
for loan losses, regardless of their elimination with the introduction of IFRS, are now considered as a positive
contributor for tier II capital, with a threshold of 1.25 per cent. of risk-weighted assets.
In the BCP Group, these changes led to an increase in own funds and risk-weighted assets. The increase
in the Bank’s own funds was supported on tier II, influenced by the general provisions for loan losses and by
lower deductions. The transition to IFRS had a negative impact on the Group’s tier I capital. This was partially
offset, however, by the Bank of Portugal policy allowing the impacts to be deferred.
The result was an immediate decrease of the Bank’s core capital at transition, amounting to
euro 108 million (mostly due to higher impairment in the loan portfolio compared to the provisions for loan
losses booked in compliance with Portuguese GAAP). Additionally, the deferred adjustments negatively impact
the core capital of the Bank in the amount of euro 31 million per quarter.
These deferred impacts are associated with additional responsibilities for health benefits of pensioners
(over seven years), with other responsibilities related to the BCP Groups’ pension fund (over five years), and
with the change of the valuation criteria for financial instruments (excluding loans) and the recognition of
deferred taxes (over three years). In the first nine months of 2005, the unfavourable impact on the BCP Group’s
core capital (Euro 92 million) was offset by the increase and retention of net income in the period
(Euro 238 million).
Furthermore, important changes took place in the first nine months of 2005, with significant impacts on
the consolidated solvency ratio, in particular in core tier I, including:
(a)
acquisition of the remaining 50 per cent. of NovaBank and respective joint control rights,
implying a reduction in tier 1 capital amounting to Euro 360 million;
(b)
sale of ‘‘Crédilar’’, a unit specialised in point-of-sale consumer credit, and shareholdings in
Friends Provident and EDP. The gains on the sales were allocated to a non-recurrent provision
for specific cases. The favourable impact of these operations in core tier 1 ratio resulted from the
reduction in risk weighted assets amounting to Euro 550 million; and
(c)
launch of a Euro 1,500 million issue of residential mortgage backed securities (RMBS), named
‘‘Magellan Mortgages Nº 3, Plc.’’, led to the reduction in risk-weighted assets amounting to Euro
800 million.
(Millions of euro)
31 Dec. 04(1)
30 Jun. 05(2)
30 Sep. 05(3)
Own funds
Tier I
Core
;
;
Preference Shares ;

;
;

;
;

;
;

;
;

3,053
1,192

2,781
1,091

2,899
1,128

Tier II and deductions ;

;

;

;

;

4,245
2,005

3,872
2,981

4,027
3,052

6,250

6,852

7,079

Risk-weighted assets

;

;

;

;

;

52,711

53,450

54,369

Solvency ratio (BoP)
Core Tier 1
;
Preference shares

;
;
;

;
;
;

;
;
;

;
;
;

;
;
;

5.8%
2.3%

5.2%
2.0%

5.3%
2.1%

Tier I ;
Tier II ;

;
;

;
;

;
;

;
;

;
;

;
;

8.1%
3.8%

7.2%
5.6%

7.4%
5.6%

Total capital

;

;

;

;

;

;

11.9%

12.8%

13.0%

Notes:
(1) Source: Proforma unaudited consolidated financial statements of the Bank as at 31st December, 2004.
(2) Source: Unaudited consolidated interim financial statements of the Bank as of 30th June, 2005.
(3) Source: Unaudited consolidated financial statements of the Bank as of 30th September, 2005.
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IFRS TRANSITIONAL ADJUSTMENTS
The application of IFRS, starting from 1st January, 2005, requires transitional adjustments resulting
from the change to the new accounting rules. Equity and net income for the year ended 31 December, 2004,
previously released according to the local GAAP, were adjusted to comply with the IFRS.*
*

(Source: Notes to the consolidated financial statements of the Bank as of 30th June, 2005).

Impact of IFRS on net income 2004 (Unaudited)
Total Earning
Adjustments

Recurrent

Non Recurrent

(Euro million)
;

513

IFRS Adjustments
Loan portfolio impairment
;
;
Valuation of investments ;
;
;
Effective interest rate
;
;
;
Hedge accounting ;
;
;
;
Intangible assets ;
;
;
;
Bonus and variable remuneration ;
;
Preference shares ;
;
;
;
Deferred tax assets ;
;
;
;
Other adjustments ;
;
;
;
Sale of insurance activity ;
;
;
Sale of 4.08% stake in Sabadell ;
;
Retirement pensions and other post retirement

;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
benefits;

24
(42)
(9)
(77)
(9)
(64)
16
21
(4)
366
85
(214)

24
–
(9)
–
(9)
(24)
16
21
(4)
–
–
19

–
(42)
–
(77)
–
(40)
–
–
–
366
85
(233)

Total IFRS Adjustments ;

;

;

;

;

93

34

59

Net income 2004 (IFRS) ;

;

;

;

;

606

31 Dec. 04

1st Jan. 04

Net income 2004 (local GAAP) ;

;

;

–

Impact of IFRS on equity and reserves (Unaudited)

(Euro million)
Shareholders’ equity local GAAP (including Minority Interests)

;

4,001

3,186

IFRS Adjustments
Retirement pensions and other post
Loan portfolio impairment (DCF)
Valuation of Investments
;
Effective interest rate ;
;
Hedge accounting
;
;
Intangible assets
;
;
Consolidation of own shares ;
Interim dividends
;
;
Bonus and variable remuneration
Other adjustments
;
;
Deferred tax assets
;
;
Preference shares
;
;

;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;

(505)
(141)
(277)
(16)
(41)
(53)
(54)
(98)
(115)
(39)
413
500

(290)
(165)
(259)
(6)
37
(45)
(57)
–
(66)
(24)
404
–

(426)

(471)

3,575

2,715

retirement benefits
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;

;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;

Shareholders’ equity IFRS (including Minority Interests)
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;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;

;

;

In addition to the information released in Millennium bcp’s 2004 annual report, the next section
explains the impacts of the adjustments produced.
Pension plans and other employees’ benefits
The adoption of IFRS results in the recognition of the additional responsibilities from health benefits of
retired and working personnel, benefits related with death before retirement and deferred restructuring costs
arising from early retirements. The Group opted to recalculate the actuarial calculations from the date of the
set-up of the Pension Fund. This resulted in an increase of deferred actuarial differences and shareholders’
equity. In the future all actuarial gains and losses in excess of 10 per cent. of the value of liabilities (the corridor)
will be amortised for the remaining average working life of the employees of 20 years (previously: 10 years). On
an ongoing basis the extended amortisation period of the actuarial losses will lead to a decrease in annual
charges to the profit and loss account.
Variable compensation
Bonuses and other variable compensation are recognised as a cost of the year to which they relate
(previously: recognised in the year of payment). Costs associated with employees’ stock option plans are
recognised over the period between the grant date and the date of exercise of the option. The impact for the
Bank is not material.
Fair value of financial assets
The financial investments in companies that the Bank does not control nor have significant influence
on are classified as ‘‘available for sale’’ and valued at fair value (either market prices or independent valuation
for non-listed holdings). The differences arising from fair value were charged against reserves. A negative impact
was recorded on EDP, ONI, INTESA and Friends Provident investments and a positive impact on Eureko and
Sabadell investments.
Credit impairment
The method used by the Bank to assess the economic risk of its credit portfolio is not materially
different from that of IAS 39. However, the introduction of the discounted cash flow (DCF) method to
determine the present value of future cash flows resulted in an increase of the impairment charge against
transition reserves.
Effective interest rate / Accrual of commissions
The calculation of the effective interest rate should include the contractual interest rate as well as
eligible costs and income related with the underlying operations. The impacts are relatively small and relate to
investment banking lending operations, mortgage and current accounts fees.
Derecognition of assets and consolidation of SPEs
Under IFRS, the Bank consolidates Special Purpose Entities (SPE) on which it exercises control or has
maintained substantially the risks and rewards. This resulted in an increase of Assets and Liabilities.
Consolidation of own shares
In case of credit impairment collateralised with BCP shares, such shares were considered as treasury
stock and deducted from equity at transition date.
Gains on sale of financial investments
Gains / losses on sale of subsidiaries are recognised as profit of the year (previously: booked on reserves
up to the value of goodwill). In 2004, the Bank sold 100 per cent. of non-bancassurance activities and 51 per
cent. of bancassurance and 4.08 per cent. of Banco Sabadell, which generated positive adjustments in results.

89

Deferred Taxes
Deferred tax assets are recognised as an asset, based on reasonable expectation of taxable future profits
(previously: deferred taxes were not recognised). On an ongoing basis income taxes will include the
amortisation of deferred tax assets.
Hedge accounting
Hedge accounting is only applicable if the hedge is expected to be highly effective at inception and
throughout the life of the underlying financial instrument. Hedge effectiveness has to be measured on an
ongoing basis. The non-effective part is recorded in Net Income. The impact in Net Income for 2004 was
mainly related to the application of fair value of financial instruments, which were not classified as fair value
hedges. From 1st January, 2005 the Bank has adopted prospectively the fair value hedge requirements, therefore
no material impact is expected in Net Income on an ongoing basis.
Interim Dividends
The interim dividends are deducted from equity in the year in which they are declared.
Preference shares
Preference shares with no mandatory repayment clause (either cash or in other financial assets), and for
which dividends are set discretionarily and are non-cumulative, are classified as capital. This item has a positive
impact in Shareholders’ equity and Net Income.
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BANCO COMERCIAL PORTUGUÊS
The financial information set out below has been derived from the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Bank as at, and for the years ended, 31 December, 2003 and 31 December, 2004. Such
information was prepared in accordance with Portuguese GAAP and should be read in conjunction with, and is
qualified in its entirety by reference to, the Bank’s annual reports and audited financial statements as at, and for
the years ended, 31 December, 2003 and 31 December, 2004, incorporated by reference in this Offering
Circular.
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 December, 2004 and 2003
2004

2003

(Thousands of Euros)
Assets
Cash and deposits at central banks ;
Loans and advances to credit institutions
Repayable on demand ;
;
Other loans and advances
;
Loans and advances to customers ;
Securities
;
;
;
;
Treasury stock ;
;
;
;
Investments ;
;
;
;
Intangible assets
;
;
;
Tangible assets ;
;
;
;
Other debtors ;
;
;
;
Prepayments and accrued income ;

Liabilities
Amounts owed to credit institutions
Repayable on demand ;
;
With agreed maturity date
;
Amounts owed to customers
Repayable on demand ;
;
With agreed maturity date
;
Debt securities ;
;
;
;
Other liabilities
;
;
;
Accruals and deferred income
;
Provision for liabilities and charges ;
Subordinated debt
;
;
;
Total Liabilities

;

;

;

;

;

1,724,360

1,510,355

;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;

;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;

;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;

;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;

;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;

793,329
5,005,694
50,792,704
4,649,903
–
2,830,250
112,646
971,622
1,704,183
3,093,804

967,489
3,435,448
49,176,508
4,186,566
2,742
2,538,550
154,048
1,129,018
1,217,112
3,370,148

71,678,495

67,687,984

;
;

;
;

;
;

;
;

;
;

180,398
9,881,658

173,092
11,187,389

;
;
;
;
;
;
;

;
;
;
;
;
;
;

;
;
;
;
;
;
;

;
;
;
;
;
;
;

;
;
;
;
;
;
;

13,496,543
20,111,667
15,756,353
686,304
2,187,315
1,112,828
3,074,888

12,668,775
17,955,203
13,894,663
581,813
2,742,738
1,016,382
3,123,258

;

;

;

;

;

;

;

66,487,994

63,343,313

Shareholders’ Equity
Share capital ;
;
;
Mandatorily convertible notes
Share premium
;
;
Reserves and retained earnings

;
;
;
;

;
;
;
;

;
;
;
;

;
;
;
;

;
;
;
;

;
;
;
;

3,257,401
528,207
674,435
(854,768)

3,257,401
528,207
674,435
(1,608,835)

;

;

;

;

;

;

3,605,275

2,851,208

;

;

;

;

;

;

1,585,266

1,493,463

71,678,495

67,687,984

;

Total Shareholders’ Equity
Minority interests

;

;
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BANCO COMERCIAL PORTUGUÊS
Consolidated Statement of Income
for the years ended 31 December, 2004 and 2003
2004

2003

(Thousands of Euros)
Interest income ;
Interest expense ;

;
;

;
;

;
;

;
;

;
;

;
;

;
;

2,925,630
1,509,424

3,056,494
1,590,483

Net interest income ;
Provision for loan losses ;

;
;

;
;

;
;

;
;

;
;

;
;

1,416,206
403,412

1,466,011
473,044

Net interest income after provision for loan losses ;

;

;

985,794

992,967

;
;
;
;
;

98,642
646,466
219,065
537,809
84,096

128,257
590,480
129,269
545,373
–

1,586,078

1,393,379

852,520
583,598
233,945
64,865
175,666

864,032
601,418
203,056
33,597
148,704

1,910,594

1,850,807

Other operating income
Income from securities ;
;
;
Commissions
;
;
;
;
Profit arising from trading activity
;
Other income
;
;
;
;
Gains on sales of shares and subsidiaries and

Other operating expenses
Staff costs ;
;
;
Other administrative costs
Depreciation
;
;
Other provisions ;
;
Other expenses ;
;

;
;
;
;
;

;
;
;
;
;

;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
associated companies

;
;
;
;
;

;
;
;
;
;

;
;
;
;
;

;
;
;
;
;

Income before income taxes ;
Income taxes
;
;
;

;
;

;
;

;
;

;
;

;
;

661,278
60,443

535,539
37,883

Income after income taxes
Minority interests ;
;

;
;

;
;

;
;

;
;

;
;

;
;

600,835
87,833

497,656
60,002

Net income for the period

;

;

;

;

;

;

513,002

437,654
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BANCO COMERCIAL PORTUGUÊS
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
for the years ended 31 December, 2004 and 2003
2004

2003

(Thousands of Euros)
Cash flows arising from operating activities
Interest and commission income received
;
;
Services income received ;
;
;
;
;
Interest and commissions expense paid ;
;
;
Recovered loans which previously had been charged-off
Payments to suppliers and employees
;
;
;

;
;
;
;
;

Decrease/(increase) in operating assets:
Loans and advances to credit institutions
;
;
;
Deposits with the Bank of Portugal under monetary regulations
Loans and advances to customers
;
;
;
;
Short term trading account securities ;
;
;
;
Increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities:
Amounts owed to credit institutions repayable on demand ;
Amounts owed to credit institutions with agreed maturity date
Amounts owed to clients repayable on demand
;
;
Amounts owed to clients with agreed maturity date ;
;
Income taxes (paid)/received

;

;

;

Cash flows arising from investing activities
Proceeds from sale of shares in subsidiaries
;
Acquisition of shares in subsidiaries
;
;
Dividends received ;
;
;
;
;
Interest income from investment securities
;
Proceeds from sale of investment securities
;
Investment securities purchased ;
;
;
Proceeds from investment securities on maturity;
Acquisition of fixed assets ;
;
;
;
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets ;
;
;
Increase/(decrease) in other sundry assets;
;

;

;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;

;

;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;

Cash flows arising from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of subordinated debt ;
;
;
Reimbursement of subordinated debt
;
;
;
;
Proceeds from issuance of debt securities ;
;
;
;
Repayment of debt securities
;
;
;
;
;
Proceeds from issuance of commercial paper
;
;
;
Repayment of commercial paper ;
;
;
;
;
Proceeds from issuance of share capital ;
;
;
;
Share premium proceeds from issuance of share capital;
;
Certificates of deposit
;
;
;
;
;
;
Dividends paid and bonus to employees ;
;
;
;
Interim dividends paid and interim bonus to employees
;
Increase/(decrease) in other sundry liabilities and minority interest

Exchange differences effect on cash and equivalents

;
;
;
;
;

;
;
;
;
;

3,709,472
136,833
(1,616,471)
255,612
(1,769,222)

3,523,466
175,741
(1,785,004)
198,641
(1,636,701)

716,224

476,143

;
;
;
;

;
;
;
;

(2,385,442)
(19,022)
(2,301,070)
(320,209)

(501,554)
111,787
(4,469,951)
(305,742)

;
;
;
;

;
;
;
;

7,306
(1,305,731)
827,768
2,156,464

(227,152)
(1,553,197)
360,490
3,175,444

;

;

(2,623,712)
2,489

(2,933,732)
(21,259)

(2,621,223)

(2,954,991)

676,899
(172,131)
51,336
147,402
48,370,930
(53,490,038)
5,367,683
(114,240)
80,971
149,069

26,796
(275,925)
46,979
122,046
45,764,499
(49,591,295)
4,989,286
(228,234)
159,653
(384,829)

1,067,881

628,976

41,588
(89,958)
4,250,051
(2,893,934)
9,226,597
(8,629,228)
–
–
(216)
(212,726)
(111,297)
(278,464)

402,535
(532,832)
2,818,099
(2,124,878)
9,798,951
(8,694,325)
930,686
(40,682)
(2,124)
(236,304)
–
185,308

1,302,413

2,504,434

;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;

;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;

;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;

;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;

;

;

;

;

11,551

10,019

Net changes in cash and equivalents
;
;
;
Cash and equivalents balance at the beginning of the year

;
;

;
;

;
;

(239,378)
1,536,781

188,438
1,348,343

Cash ;
;
;
;
Other short term investments

;
;

;
;

;
;

;
;

504,074
793,329

569,292
967,489

Cash and equivalents balance at the end of the period ;

;

;

;

1,297,403

1,536,781

;
;

;
;

;
;
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BANCO COMERCIAL PORTUGUÊS
Set out below are the unaudited consolidated financial statements of the Bank as at, and for the nine
months ended, 30th September, 2005 and 30th September, 2004, prepared in accordance with IFRS.
Unaudited Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 30th September, 2005 and 2004
2005

2004

(Thousands of Euros)
Assets
Cash and deposits at central banks ;
Loans and advances to credit institutions
Repayable on demand
;
;
Other loans and advances ;
;
Loans and advances to customers ;
Financial assets held for trading
;
Financial assets available for sale
;
Financial assets repurchase agreement
Hedging derivatives ;
;
;
Held to maturity securities ;
;
Investments in associated companies
Non current assets held for sale
;
Property and equipment
;
;
Goodwill and intangible assets
;
Current tax assets
;
;
;
Deferred tax assets
;
;
;
Other assets ;
;
;
;

;

;

;

;

;

1,163,015

978,103

;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;

;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;

;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;

;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;

;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;

1,211,198
5,077,777
51,533,707
2,154,808
4,217,798
11,123
471,097
19,766
272,456
3,326,075
847,402
337,271
14,993
504,106
4,625,645

879,947
3,532,845
50,684,732
1,141,838
4,721,531
–
3,664
–
38,145
10,095,139
943,293
98,432
20,228
536,365
4,371,181

75,788,237

78,045,443

Liabilities
Amounts owed to central banks
;
;
Amounts owed to others credit institutions ;
Amounts owed to customers ;
;
;
Debt securities ;
;
;
;
;
Financial liabilities held for trading ;
;
Hedging derivatives ;
;
;
;
Non current liabilities held for sale ;
;
Provisions for liabilities and charges ;
;
Subordinated debt
;
;
;
;
Current tax liabilities ;
;
;
;
Deferred tax liabilities ;
;
;
;
Other liabilities
;
;
;
;

;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;

;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;

;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;

;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;

72,722
9,994,971
33,468,007
18,145,128
631,771
303,502
3,144,883
304,956
3,616,311
1,130
53,446
2,094,224

56,250
10,547,517
31,327,402
16,251,881
45,708
28,030
9,452,848
358,669
3,781,230
1,055
39,506
2,754,691

;

;

;

;

;

71,831,051

74,644,787

Equity
Share capital ;
;
;
;
Treasury stock ;
;
;
;
Share premium
;
;
;
Preference shares
;
;
;
Other capital instruments
;
;
Fair value reserves
;
;
;
Reserves and retained earnings
;
Net income attributable to Shareholders

;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;

;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;

;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;

;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;

;
;
;
;
;
;
;
;

3,257,401
(37,382)
674,435
500,000
528,207
316,887
(2,174,655)
546,446

3,257,401
(55,510)
674,435
500,000
528,207
329,599
(2,591,914)
401,030

Total Equity attributable to Shareholders

;

;

;

;

;

3,611,339

3,043,248

Minority interests

;

;

;

;

;

;

;

;

345,847

357,408

Total Equity;

;

;

;

;

;

;

;

;

3,957,186

3,400,656

75,788,237

78,045,443

Total Liabilities

;

;

;

94

BANCO COMERCIAL PORTUGUÊS
Unaudited Consolidated Statement of Income
for the months ended 30th September, 2005 and 2004
2005

2004

;
;

;
;

;
;

;
;

;
;

;
;

;
;

(Thousands of Euros)
2,461,060
2,222,367
(1,364,004)
(1,271,052)

;

;

;

;

;

;

;

1,097,056

951,315

Dividends from equity instruments
;
;
;
Net fees and commissions income
;
;
;
Net gains arising from trading activity ;
;
;
Net gains arising from available for sale financial assets
Other operating income ;
;
;
;
;

;
;
;
;
;

;
;
;
;
;

54,274
473,887
124,706
167,619
91,247

29,368
450,464
227,787
50,455
157,551

Other net income from non banking activity ;

;

;

;

2,008,789
2,716

1,866,940
–

Interest income ;
Interest expense ;
Net interest income

Total operating income

;

;

;

;

;

;

2,011,505

1,866,940

Staff costs ;
;
;
Other administrative costs
Depreciation
;
;

;
;
;

;
;
;

;
;
;

;
;
;

;
;
;

;
;
;

708,157
420,040
102,959

726,462
438,366
124,486

Operating costs

;

;

;

;

;

;

1,231,156

1,289,314

780,349

577,626

;

;

Loans impairment;
;
Other assets impairment ;
Other provisions ;
;

;
;
;

;
;
;

;
;
;

;
;
;

;
;
;

;
;
;

(140,772)
(6,766)
(29,619)

(126,325)
(9,299)
(40,926)

Operating profit ;

;

;

;

;

;

;

603,192

401,076

;
;

;
;

26,391
45,263

13,943
(4,779)

;

Share of profit in associates
;
;
;
;
Net income from the sale of subsidiaries and other assets
Income before income taxes ;

;

;

;

;

;

674,846

410,240

;
;

;
;

;
;

;
;

;
;

(24,891)
(68,823)

(30,188)
(4,687)

Income after income taxes excluding the effect of the income
arising from non current assets held for sale
;
;
Income arising from non current assets held for sale
;

;
;

581,132
–

375,365
41,637

Income after income taxes

Income tax
Current ;
Deferred;

;
;

;
;

;
;

;

;

;

;

;

581,132

417,002

Consolidated net income attributable to:
Shareholders
;
;
;
;
Minority interests ;
;
;
;

;
;
;

;
;
;

;
;
;

;
;
;

546,446
34,686

401,030
15,972

Net income for the period

;

;

;

;

;

;

581,132

417,002

Earnings per share (in euros)
Basic
;
;
;
Diluted ;
;
;

;
;
;

;
;
;

;
;
;

;
;
;

;
;
;

;
;
;

0,22
0,20

0,16
0,15

;
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TAXATION
1.

United States Taxation

Certain United States Federal Income Tax Considerations
The following general discussion summarises certain material U.S. federal income tax aspects of the
acquisition, ownership and disposition of the Notes. This discussion is a summary for general information only
and does not consider all aspects of U.S. federal income taxation that may be relevant to the purchase,
ownership and disposition of the Notes by a prospective investor in light of his or her personal circumstances.
This discussion also does not address the U.S. federal income tax consequences either of ownership of Notes
not held as capital assets within the meaning of Section 1221 of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended (the ‘‘Code’’), or to investors subject to special treatment under the U.S. federal income tax laws, such
as dealers in securities or foreign currency, tax-exempt entities, financial institutions, insurance companies,
persons that hold the Notes as part of a ‘‘straddle’’, of a ‘‘hedge’’ against currency risk, or as a ‘‘conversion
transaction’’ and persons whose ‘‘functional currency’’ is not the U.S. dollar. In addition, the discussion is
generally limited to the tax consequences to initial holders of the Notes. It does not address tax consequences
to holders of interests in pass-through entities that hold the Notes or the special rules that may apply if the
holder receives principal in instalment payments or if the Note is called before the maturity date. Finally, it
does not describe any tax consequences arising out of the tax laws of any state, local or foreign jurisdiction or,
except to a limited extent under ‘‘Non-U.S. Holders,’’ (see below) U.S. federal gift or estate tax consequences.
This summary is based upon the Code, existing and proposed regulations thereunder, and current
administrative rulings and court decisions. All of the foregoing are subject to change, possibly on a retroactive
basis, and any such change could affect the continuing validity of this discussion.
Persons considering the purchase of Notes should consult their own tax advisors concerning the
application of U.S. federal income tax laws, as well as the laws of any state, local or foreign taxing jurisdiction to
their particular situations. Additional U.S. federal income tax consequences applicable to particular Notes will
be set forth in the applicable Final Terms.
Special considerations relevant to the U.S. federal income taxation of payments on Notes denominated
in a Specified Currency other than the U.S. dollar or indexed to changes in exchange rates (‘‘Foreign Currency
Notes’’) are discussed separately below under the heading ‘‘Foreign Currency Notes’’. Special considerations
relevant to the U.S. federal income taxation of payments on Notes the interest or principal of which is indexed
to property other than foreign currency and which is not a variable rate debt instrument (discussed under the
heading ‘‘Variable Rate Notes’’) are discussed separately below under the heading ‘‘Indexed Notes.’’ The
discussion below assumes that the Notes will be treated as debt for U.S. federal income tax purposes. However,
it is possible that some contingent payment arrangements would not be treated as debt for U.S. federal income
tax purposes. Holders should consult their own tax advisors with respect to whether any contingent payment
obligations constitute debt for U.S. federal income tax purposes.
Notice Pursuant To Circular 230: Anything contained in this discussion concerning any U.S. federal
tax issue is not intended or written to be used, and it cannot be used by a holder of Notes, for the purpose of
avoiding federal tax penalties under the Code. This discussion was written to support the promotion or
marketing of the Notes. Each holder of Notes should seek U.S. federal tax advice, based on such holder’s
particular circumstances, from an independent tax advisor.
U.S. Holders
The following discussion is limited to the U.S. federal income tax consequences relevant to a holder of a
Note that is (i) a citizen or resident of the United States, (ii) a corporation (including an entity treated as a
corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes) created in or organised under the laws of the United States,
any state of the United States or the District of Columbia, (iii) an estate, the income of which is subject to U.S.
federal income tax regardless of the source or (iv) a trust if (A) one or more United States persons (as defined for
U.S. tax purposes) have the authority to control all substantial decisions of the trust and a court within the
United States is able to exercise primary supervision over the administration of the trust or (B) the trust was in
existence on 20th August, 1996, was considered a United States person as of that date, and has in effect an
election to continue to be so treated (‘‘U.S. Holder’’). Certain aspects of U.S. federal income tax relevant to a
holder other than a U.S. Holder (a ‘‘Non-U.S. Holder’’) are discussed separately below.
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Stated Interest; Original Issue Discount
Except as set forth below, interest on a Note will be taxable to a U.S. Holder as ordinary interest income
at the time it accrues or is received in accordance with such U.S. Holder’s method of accounting for tax
purposes. U.S. Holders of Notes that bear original issue discount (‘‘OID’’) and that mature more than one year
from the date of issuance will generally be required to include OID in income as it accrues in advance of the
receipt of cash attributable to such income, whether such U.S. Holder uses the cash or accrual method of
accounting. The U.S. Internal Revenue Service (the ‘‘Service’’) has issued final regulations (the ‘‘OID
Regulations’’) addressing in detail the tax rules applicable in the case of debt instruments issued with OID.
These OID Regulations contain an anti-abuse rule which provides that, if a principal purpose in structuring a
debt instrument or engaging in a transaction is to achieve a result that is unreasonable in light of the applicable
statutes, the Commissioner of the Service can apply or depart from the regulations as necessary or appropriate
to achieve a reasonable result. Although the Issuers do not believe that the Notes will be structured with such a
principal purpose, there can be no assurance that the Service will agree with such position.
Subject to a statutory de minimis exception, the amount of OID, if any, on a Note is the excess of its
‘‘stated redemption price at maturity’’ over its ‘‘issue price’’. For this purpose, de minimis OID is OID that is less
than 1/4 of 1 per cent. of the stated redemption price at maturity multiplied by the number of complete years
to its maturity from the issue date. If the amount of OID is de minimis, it is deemed to be zero.
The issue price of a Note will be the initial offering price to the public, excluding bond houses, brokers
or similar persons or organisations acting in the capacity of underwriters, placement agents or wholesalers, at
which a substantial amount of the Note is sold. (A U.S. Holder may elect in certain circumstances to decrease
the issue price, and the stated redemption price at maturity, by the amount of pre-issuance accrued interest and
offset such pre-issuance accrued interest against an equal amount of stated interest payable on the first interest
payment date).
A Note’s stated redemption price at maturity includes all payments required to be made over the term
of the Note other than the payment of ‘‘qualified stated interest’’ which is defined as interest that is
unconditionally payable in cash or property (other than debt instruments of the issuer) at least annually at a
single fixed rate or, in the circumstances described below, a qualified floating rate or objective rate on a variable
rate note. If a debt instrument provides for alternate payment schedules upon the occurrence of one or more
contingencies which provide for payments the timing and amount of which are known as of the issue date, the
yield and maturity of the debt instrument are computed based on a single payment schedule if, based on all of
the facts and circumstances, that schedule is significantly more likely than not to occur. If no one payment
schedule is significantly more likely than not to occur, the rules for contingent payment debt obligations
described below under the heading ‘‘Indexed Notes’’ will apply. However, if a debt instrument provides for one
or more alternative payment schedules, but all possible payment schedules under the terms of the instrument
result in the same fixed yield, that yield is the yield of the instrument.
Interest is considered unconditionally payable only if reasonable legal remedies exist to compel timely
payment or the debt instrument otherwise provides terms and conditions that make the likelihood of late
payment (other than a late payment within a reasonable grace period) or non-payment a remote contingency.
Interest is payable at a single fixed rate only if the rate appropriately takes into account the length of the interval
between stated interest payments. Thus, if the interval between payments varies during the term of the
instrument, the value of the fixed rate on which payment is based generally must be adjusted to reflect a
compounding assumption consistent with the length of the interval preceding the payment.
A U.S. Holder (whether on the cash or accrual method of accounting) must include in income the sum
of the daily portions of OID for each day of the taxable year during which the U.S. Holder held the Note. The
daily portions of OID are determined by determining the OID attributable to each accrual period and
allocating a rateable portion of such amount to each day in the accrual period. The accrual period may be any
length and may vary in length over the term of the Note, provided that each accrual period is no longer than
one year and each scheduled payment of principal and interest occurs on the final day of an accrual period or
on the first day of an accrual period. In general, OID allocable to an accrual period equals (i) the product of the
adjusted issue price at the beginning of the accrual period (i.e., the original issue price plus previously-accrued
OID minus previous payments other than payments of qualified stated interest) multiplied by the original yield
to maturity of the Note (determined on the basis of compounding at the end of each accrual period) minus (ii)
the amount of qualified stated interest allocable to the accrual period.
The OID Regulations provide special rules for determining the amount of OID allocable to a period
when there is unpaid qualified stated interest, for short initial accrual periods and final accrual periods, and for
determining the yield to maturity of debt instruments subject to certain contingencies as to the timing of
payments, including debt instruments that provide for options to accelerate or defer any payments and debt
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instruments with indefinite maturities. For example, the maturity date and yield will be determined to take into
account the options. In the case of such options held by issuers, the options will be deemed exercised or not in
a manner that minimises the yield on the instrument, while in the case of options held by holders, the options
will be deemed exercised or not in a manner that maximises yield. Under the OID Regulations, an option to
convert debt into stock of the issuer or into stock or debt of certain related parties or to cash or other property
in an amount equal to the approximate value of such stock or debt are disregarded in determining OID.
Variable Rate Notes
The OID Regulations contain special rules for determining the accrual of OID and the amount of
qualified stated interest on a ‘‘variable rate debt instrument.’’ For purposes of these regulations, a ‘‘variable rate
debt instrument’’ is a debt instrument that: (1) has an issue price that does not exceed the total non-contingent
principal payments by more than a specified amount; (2) provides for stated interest (compounded or paid at
least annually) at (a) one or more ‘‘qualified floating rates’’, (b) a single fixed rate and one or more qualified
floating rates, (c) a single ‘‘objective rate’’, or (d) a single fixed rate and a single objective rate that is a ‘‘qualified
inverse floating rate’’; (3) provides that a qualified floating rate or objective rate in effect at any time during the
term of the instrument is set at a current value of that rate; and (4) except as permitted in (1), does not provide
for any principal payments that are contingent.
For purposes of determining if a Note is a variable rate debt instrument, a floating rate is a ‘‘qualified
floating rate’’ if variations in the rate can reasonably be expected to measure contemporaneous variations in the
costs of newly-borrowed funds in the currency in which the debt instrument is denominated. A multiple of a
qualified floating rate is generally not a qualified floating rate, unless it is either (a) a product of a qualified rate
times a fixed multiple greater than 65 but not more than 1.35 or (b) a multiple of the type described in (a)
increased or decreased by a fixed rate. If a debt instrument provides for two or more qualified floating rates that
can reasonably be expected to have approximately the same value throughout the term of the instrument, the
debt instrument will be considered to provide for a single qualified rate. Two or more such rates will be
considered to have approximately the same value throughout the term of the instrument if the values of the
rates on the date of issuance are within 25 basis points of each other.
An ‘‘objective rate’’ is a rate, other than a qualified floating rate, that is determined using a single fixed
formula and that is based on objective financial or economic information, including, for example, a rate based
on one or more qualified floating rates or a rate based on the yield of actively-traded personal property (within
the meaning of Section 1092(d)(1)of the Code). The rate, however, must not be based on information that is
within the control of the issuer (or a related party), or that is, in general, unique to the circumstances of the
issuer (or a related party) such as dividends, profits, or the value of the issuer’s stock. In addition, the Service
may designate other variable rates as objective rates. Restrictions establishing a minimum interest rate (‘‘floor’’)
or maximum interest rate (‘‘cap’’), or the amount of increase or decrease in the stated interest rate (‘‘governor’’),
generally will not result in the rate failing to be treated as a qualified floating rate or an objective rate, if the
restriction is fixed throughout the term of the instrument and the cap, floor, or governor is not reasonably
expected to affect the yield significantly as of the date of issuance. However, a rate is not an objective rate if it is
reasonably expected that an average value of such rate of interest over the first half of the instrument’s term will
be either significantly less or more than the average value of the rate during the final half of the instrument’s
term (i.e., if there is a significant front loading or back loading of interest).
A ‘‘qualified inverse floating rate’’ is a rate that is equal to a fixed rate minus a qualified floating rate if
variations in the rate can reasonably be expected to inversely reflect contemporaneous variations in the cost of
newly borrowed funds (disregarding any cap, floor or governor).
Under the OID Regulations, for purposes of determining the amount and accrual of OID and qualified
stated interest, a debt instrument providing for a qualified floating rate or qualified inverse floating rate is in
effect converted to an equivalent fixed rate debt instrument by assuming that each qualified floating rate, or
qualified inverse floating rate, respectively, will remain at its value as of the issue date. A debt instrument
providing for an objective rate (other than a qualified inverse floating rate) is in effect converted to an
equivalent fixed rate debt instrument and the amounts of qualified stated interest and OID allocable to any
accrual period are determined by assuming that the objective rate will equal a fixed rate that reflects the yield
that is reasonably expected for the instrument. The rules applicable to fixed rate debt instruments are then
applied to determine the qualified stated interest payments and OID accruals on the equivalent fixed rate debt
instrument. Appropriate adjustments are made to the extent the interest or OID actually accrued or paid differs
from that assumed on the equivalent fixed rate debt instrument.
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Elections to Treat All Interest as OID
Under the OID Regulations, a U.S. Holder may elect to account for all income on a Note (other than
foreign currency gain or loss), including stated interest, acquisition discount, OID, de minimis OID, market
discount, de minimis market discount, amortisable bond premium, or acquisition premium, in the same manner
as OID. The election is made in the year of acquisition of the Note and such election is irrevocable without the
consent of the Service. If this election is made, the U.S. Holder may be subject to the conformity requirements
of section 171(c) or 1278(b) of the Code, respectively, which may require the amortisation of bond premium
and the accrual of market discount on other debt instruments held by the same U.S. Holder.
Short-Term Notes
In general, an individual or other cash method U.S. Holder of a Note that has an original maturity of
not more than one year from the date of issuance (a ‘‘short-term Note’’) is not required to accrue OID unless
he or she elects to do so. Such an election applies to all short-term Notes acquired by the U.S. Holder during
the first taxable year for which the election is made, and all subsequent taxable years of the U.S. Holder, unless
the Service consents to a revocation. U.S. Holders who report income for U.S. federal income tax purposes on
the accrual method and certain other U.S. Holders and electing cash method U.S. Holders are required to
include OID on such short-term Notes on a straight-line basis, unless an irrevocable election with respect to
any short-term Note is made to accrue the OID according to a constant interest rate based on daily
compounding. In the case of a U.S. Holder who is not required, and does not elect, to include OID in income
currently, any gain realised on the sale, exchange or retirement of the short-term Note will be ordinary income
to the extent of the OID accrued (on a straight-line basis or, if elected, according to the constant yield method
based on daily compounding) through the date of sale, exchange or retirement. In addition, such non-electing
U.S. Holders who are not subject to the current inclusion requirement described above will be required to defer
deductions for any interest paid on indebtedness incurred or continued to purchase or carry such short-term
Notes in an amount not exceeding the deferred income until such income is realised.
Market Discount
If a Note (other than a short-term Note described above) is acquired at a ‘‘market discount,’’ some or all
of any gain realised upon a sale or other disposition, a payment at maturity, or a partial principal payment on
such Note may be treated as ordinary income, as described below. For this purpose, ‘‘market discount’’
generally is the excess (if any) of the stated redemption price at maturity over the purchase price, subject to a
statutory de minimis exception. In the case of a Note issued with OID, in lieu of using stated redemption price
at maturity, the ‘‘revised issue price’’ is used. For this purpose, the ‘‘revised issue price’’ of an obligation is
presently defined as the issue price of the obligation, increased by the aggregate amount of OID (determined
without regard to Sections 1272(a)(7) and (b)(4) of the Code) included in the gross income of all previous
holders thereof.
Unless a U.S. Holder has elected to include the market discount in income as it accrues, any gain
realised on any subsequent disposition of such Note (other than in connection with certain non-recognition
transactions), payment at maturity, or partial principal payment on such Note will be treated as ordinary
income to the extent of the market discount that is treated as having accrued during the period such Note was
held.
The amount of market discount treated as having accrued will be determined either (i) on a rateable
basis by multiplying the market discount times a fraction, the numerator of which is the number of days the
Note was held by a U.S. Holder and the denominator of which is the total number of days after the date such
U.S. Holder acquired the Note up to and including the date of its maturity or (ii) if the U.S. Holder so elects,
on a constant interest rate method. A U.S. Holder may make that election with respect to any Note, but such
election is irrevocable.
In lieu of re-characterising gain upon disposition as ordinary income to the extent of accrued market
discount at the time of disposition, a U.S. Holder of such Note acquired at a market discount may elect to
include market discount in income currently, through the use of either the rateable inclusion method or the
elective constant interest method. Once made, the election to include market discount in income currently
applies to all Notes and other obligations of the U.S. Holder that are purchased at a market discount during the
taxable year for which the election is made, and all subsequent taxable years of the U.S. Holder, unless the
Service consents to a revocation of the election. If an election is made to include market discount in income
currently, the basis of the Note in the hands of the U.S. Holder will be increased by the market discount
thereon as it is included in income.

99

If the U.S. Holder makes the election to treat as OID all interest on a debt instrument that has market
discount, the U.S. Holder is deemed to have made the election to accrue currently market discount on all other
debt instruments with market discount. In addition, If the U.S. Holder has previously made the election to
accrue market discount currently, the conformity requirements of that election are met for debt instruments
with respect to which the U.S. Holder elects to treat all interest as OID.
Unless a U.S. Holder who acquires a Note at a market discount elects to include market discount in
income currently, such U.S. Holder may be required to defer deductions for any interest paid on indebtedness
allocable to such Notes in an amount not exceeding the deferred income until such income is realised.
Premium
If a subsequent U.S. Holder purchases a Note issued with OID at an ‘‘acquisition premium’’, the U.S.
Holder reduces the amount of OID includible in income in each taxable year by that portion of the acquisition
premium allocable to that year. A Note is purchased at an ‘‘acquisition premium’’ if, immediately after the
purchase, the purchaser’s adjusted basis in the Note is greater than the adjusted issue price but not greater than
all amounts payable on the instrument after the purchase date (other than qualified stated interest) (i.e., the
Note is not purchased at a ‘‘bond premium’’). In general, the reduction in OID allocable to acquisition
premium is determined by multiplying the daily portion of OID by a fraction, the numerator of which is the
excess of the U.S. Holder’s adjusted basis in the Note immediately after the acquisition over the adjusted issue
price of the Note and the denominator of which is the excess of the sum of all amounts payable on the Note
after the purchase date (other than payments of qualified stated interest) over the Note’s adjusted issue price.
Rather than apply the above fraction, the U.S. Holder who, as discussed above, elects to treat all interest as
OID would treat the purchase at an acquisition premium as a purchase at original issuance and calculate OID
accruals on a constant yield to maturity basis.
If a U.S. Holder purchases a Note and immediately after the purchase the adjusted basis of the Note
exceeds the sum of all amounts payable on the instrument after the purchase date, other than qualified stated
interest, the Note has ‘‘bond premium’’. Special rules govern the determination of adjusted basis for this
purpose. For example, a U.S. Holder’s basis in a convertible bond is reduced by the value of the conversion
privilege. A U.S. Holder that purchases a Note at a bond premium is not required to include OID in income.
In addition, a U.S. Holder may elect to amortise such bond premium over the remaining term of such Note
(or, in certain circumstances, until an earlier call date). That election must be made with a timely-filed U.S.
federal income tax return for the first taxable year to which the U.S Holder wishes the election to apply.
If bond premium is amortised, the amount of interest that must be included in the U.S. Holder’s
income for each period ending on an interest payment date or on stated maturity, as the case may be, will be
reduced by the portion of premium allocable to such period based on the Note’s yield to maturity. If the bond
premium allocable to an accrual period is in excess of qualified stated interest allocable to that period, such
premium is carried to the next accrual period and offsets qualified stated interest in such period. Special rules
govern the determination of bond premium on variable rate debt instruments, inflation-indexed debt
instruments and bonds with alternative payment schedules that are not treated as contingent payment
obligations. If an election to amortise bond premium is not made, a U.S. Holder must include the full amount
of each interest payment in income in accordance with its regular method of accounting and will receive a tax
benefit from the premium only in computing its gain or loss upon the sale or other disposition or payment of
the principal amount of the Note.
An election to amortise bond premium will apply to amortisable bond premium on all Notes and other
bonds, the interest on which is includible in the U.S. Holder’s gross income, held at the beginning of the U.S.
Holder’s first taxable year to which the election applies or thereafter acquired, and may be revoked only with
the consent of the Service. The election to treat all interest, including for this purpose amortisable premium, as
OID is deemed to be an election to amortise bond premium. In addition, if the U.S. Holder has already made
an election to amortise premium, the conformity requirements will be deemed satisfied with respect to any
Notes for which the U.S. Holder makes an election to treat all interest as OID.
Sale, Exchange, Redemption or Repayment of the Notes
Upon the disposition of a Note by sale, exchange, redemption or repayment, the U.S. Holder will
generally recognise gain or loss equal to the difference between (i) the amount realised on the disposition
(excluding amounts attributable to accrued interest) and (ii) the U.S. Holder’s tax basis in the Note. A U.S.
Holder’s tax basis in a Note generally will equal the cost of the Note (net of accrued interest) to the U.S.
Holder, increased by amounts includible in income as OID or market discount (if the holder elects to include
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market discount in income on a current basis) and reduced by any amortised premium and any payments,
other than payments of qualified stated interest, made on such Note.
Provided that the Note is held as a capital asset, such gain or loss (except to the extent that the market
discount rule or rules relating to certain short-term OID notes otherwise provide) will generally constitute
capital gain or loss and will be long-term capital gain or loss if the U.S. Holder has held such Note for longer
than one year. In certain circumstances, if an issuer were found to have had an intention, at the time its debt
obligations were issued, to call such obligations before maturity, gain would be ordinary income to the extent
of any unamortised OID. The OID Regulations clarify that this rule will not apply to publicly-offered debt
instruments.
Foreign Currency Notes
The following discussion applies to Foreign Currency Notes, provided that such Notes are not
denominated in or indexed to a currency that is considered a ‘‘hyperinflationary’’ currency. Special U.S. Federal
income tax considerations applicable to obligations denominated in or indexed to a hyperinflationary currency
or to ‘‘dual currency’’ Notes will be discussed in the applicable Final Terms.
In general, a U.S. Holder that uses the cash method of accounting and holds a Foreign Currency Note
will be required to include in income the U.S. dollar value of the amount of interest income (other than OID)
received, whether or not the payment is received in U.S. dollars or converted into U.S. dollars. The U.S. dollar
value of the amount of interest received is the amount of foreign currency interest paid, translated at the spot
rate on the date of receipt. The U.S. Holder will not have exchange gain or loss on the interest payment, but
may have exchange gain or loss when it disposes of any foreign currency received.
A U.S. Holder on the accrual method of accounting is generally required to include in income the U.S.
dollar value of interest accrued during the accrual period. Accrual basis U.S. Holders may determine the
amount of income recognised with respect to such interest in accordance with either of two methods. Under
the first method, the U.S. dollar value of accrued interest is translated at the average rate for the interest accrual
period (or, with respect to an accrual period that spans two taxable years, the partial period within the taxable
year). For this purpose, the average rate is the simple average of spot rates of exchange for each business day of
such period or other average exchange for the period reasonably derived and consistently applied by the U.S.
Holder. Under the second method, a U.S. Holder can elect to accrue interest at the spot rate on the last day of
an interest accrual period (in the case of a partial accrual period, the last day of the taxable year) or, if the last
day of an interest accrual period is within five business days of the receipt, the spot rate on the date of receipt.
Any such election will apply to all debt instruments held by the U.S. Holder at the beginning of the first
taxable year to which the election applies or thereafter acquired and will be irrevocable without the consent of
the Service. An accrual basis U.S. Holder will recognise exchange gain or loss, as the case may be, on the receipt
of a foreign currency interest payment if the exchange rate on the date payment is received differs from the rate
applicable to the previous accrual of that interest income. The foreign currency gain or loss will generally be
treated as U.S. source ordinary income or loss.
OID on a Foreign Currency Note is determined in the foreign currency at the time of acquisition of the
Note and is translated into U.S. dollars in the same manner that an accrual basis U.S. Holder accrues stated
interest. Exchange gain or loss will be determined when OID is considered paid to the extent the exchange rate
on the date of payment differs from the exchange rate at which the OID was accrued.
The amount of market discount on a Foreign Currency Note includible in income will generally be
determined by computing the market discount in the foreign currency and translating that amount into U.S.
dollars at the spot rate on the date the Foreign Currency Note is retired or otherwise disposed of. If the U.S.
Holder has elected to accrue market discount currently, the amount of market discount which accrues during
any accrual period is determined in the foreign currency and translated into U.S. dollars on the basis of the
average exchange rate in effect during the accrual period. In that event, exchange gain or loss may be recognised
to the extent that the rate of exchange on the date of the retirement or disposition of the Note differs from the
exchange rate at which the market discount was accrued.
Amortisable premium on a Foreign Currency Note is also computed in units of foreign currency and, if
the U.S. Holder elects, will reduce interest income in units of foreign currency. At the time amortised bond
premium offsets interest income (i.e., the last day of the tax year in which the election is made and the last day
of each subsequent tax year), exchange gain or loss with respect to amortised bond premium is recognised
measured by the difference between exchange rates at that time and at the time of the acquisition of the Note.
With respect to the sale, exchange, retirement or repayment of a Foreign Currency Note, the foreign
currency amount realised will be considered to be the payment first of accrued but unpaid interest (on which
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exchange gain or loss is recognised as described above), then of accrued but unpaid OID (on which exchange
gain or loss is recognised as described above), next of accrued but un-amortised market discount (on which
exchange gain or loss is recognised as described above) and finally as a payment of principal (except to the
extent of accrued but un-amortised market discount on which exchange gain or loss is recognised as described
above). With respect to such payment of principal: (i) gain or loss is computed in the foreign currency and
translated on the date of retirement or disposition and (ii) exchange gain or loss is separately computed on the
foreign currency amount of the purchase price, reduced by amortised bond premium, that is repaid to the
extent that the rate of exchange on the date of retirement or disposition differs from the rate of exchange on the
date the Note was acquired, or deemed acquired. Exchange gain or loss computed on accrued interest, OID,
market discount and principal is recognised, however, only to the extent of total gain or loss on the transaction.
For purposes of determining the total gain or loss on the transaction, a U.S. Holder’s tax basis in the Note will
generally equal the U.S. dollar cost of the Note, increased by the U.S. dollar amounts includible in income as
accrued interest, OID, or market discount (if the U.S. Holder elects to include such market discount on a
current basis) and reduced by the U.S. dollar amount of amortised premium and of any payments other than
payments of qualified stated interest.
In the case of a Note denominated in foreign currency, the cost of the Note to the U.S. Holder will be
the U.S. dollar value of the foreign currency purchase price translated at the spot rate for the date of purchase
(or, in some cases, the settlement date). The conversion of U.S. dollars into a foreign currency and the
immediate use of that currency to purchase a Foreign Currency Note generally will not result in a taxable gain
or loss for a U.S. Holder. A U.S. Holder will have a tax basis in any foreign currency received on the sale,
exchange or retirement of a Note equal to the U.S. dollar value of such currency on the date of receipt.
Indexed Notes
Pursuant to certain OID Regulations (the ‘‘Contingent Debt Regulations’’), certain debt instruments
calling for one or more contingent payments are subject to special rules. These rules generally will apply to the
Indexed Notes, the interest or principal of which may be indexed to property other than foreign currency.
In general, under the Contingent Debt Regulations, the amount of interest that is taken into account for
each accrual period is computed by determining a yield for the debt instrument as described below, then
constructing a projected payment schedule for the debt instrument that produces that yield and finally
applying rules similar to those for accruing OID on a non-contingent debt instrument. This method is referred
to as the non-contingent bond method. The issuer’s projected payment schedule must be used to determine
the holder’s interest accruals and adjustments, unless the issuer does not create a payment schedule or the
holder determines that the issuer’s projected payment schedule is unreasonable, in which case the holder must
disclose its own schedule in connection with its U.S. federal income tax return filings and the reasons why it is
not using the issuer’s projected payment schedule.
In general, under the non-contingent bond method, the yield on a contingent bond is determined by
reference to the comparable yield at which the issuer would issue a fixed rate debt instrument with no
contingent payments, but with terms and conditions similar to those of the contingent debt instrument,
including the level of subordination, term, timing of payments, and general market conditions. If a hedge is
available and the combined cash flows of the hedge and the non-contingent payments would permit the
calculation of a yield to maturity such that the debt instrument and the hedge could be integrated into a
synthetic fixed-rate instrument, the comparable yield is the yield that the synthetic fixed-rate instrument would
have. However, if a substantial part of the issue is being marketed to persons for whom the inclusion of interest
is not expected to have a substantial effect on their U.S. federal income tax liability and the instrument
provides for a non-market based projected payment schedule, the yield of the contingent payment debt
instruments generally is deemed to be the applicable federal annual percentage rate.
Under the Contingent Debt Regulations, if the actual contingent payments made on a debt instrument
in a taxable year differ from the projected contingent payments, an adjustment must be made for such
differences. A positive adjustment, i.e. the amount by which an actual payment exceeds a projected payment, is
treated as additional interest. A negative adjustment first reduces the amount of interest required to be accrued
in the current year. Any excess is treated as an ordinary loss to the U.S. Holder to the extent prior cumulative
interest accruals exceed any negative adjustments in prior years. Any negative adjustment in excess of those
amounts is carried over to subsequent years and reduces the amounts that would otherwise accrue in such
subsequent years, and to the extent not so applied reduces the amount realised on disposition of the debt
instrument.
A U.S. Holder’s basis in a contingent debt obligation is increased by the projected contingent payments
accrued by the holder under the projected payment schedule (as determined without regard to adjustments
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made to reflect differences between actual and projected payments) and reduced by the amount of any noncontingent payments and the projected amount of any contingent payments previously made. Gain on the
sale, exchange, or retirement of a contingent payment debt obligation generally would be treated as ordinary
interest income. Losses, on the other hand, would be treated as ordinary only to the extent of the holder’s prior
net interest inclusions (reduced by the total net negative adjustments previously allowed to the holder as an
ordinary loss) and thereafter capital loss.
To the extent that Indexed Notes are physically settled rather than cash settled, a U.S. Holder would
have income as described above and its basis in the property or stock received should equal fair market value at
time of receipt.
The Contingent Debt Regulations do not apply to variable rate debt instruments, certain debt
instruments that provide for alternative payment schedules, REMIC Interests and certain other debt
instruments that are subject to prepayment, or a debt instrument that provides for payments denominated in,
or determined by reference to, a non-functional currency that is subject to Section 988 of the Code. Special
rules are provided in the Contingent Debt Regulations to account for market discount and premium on
contingent Notes.
Backup Withholding
A U.S. Holder of a Note may be subject to U.S. backup withholding tax at the rate of 28 per cent., with
respect to interest paid on the Note, unless such U.S. Holder (i) is a corporation or comes within certain other
exempt categories and, when required, demonstrates that status or (ii) provides a correct taxpayer identification
number, certifies as to no loss of exemption from backup withholding tax and otherwise complies with the
applicable requirements of the backup withholding tax rules. U.S. Holders of Notes should consult their tax
advisors as to their qualification for exemption from U.S. backup withholding and the procedure for obtaining
such an exemption. Any amount paid as U.S. backup withholding tax would be creditable against the U.S.
Holder’s U.S. federal income tax liability, provided the applicable requisite information is provided to the
Service.
Treasury Tax Shelter Regulations
The United States Department of the Treasury and the Service have issued tax shelter regulations that
may require certain information regarding prospective purchasers to be maintained in a database subject to
disclosure to the Service upon its request. Similarly, U.S. Holders also may be required to make certain annual
disclosures to the Service with respect to the purchase or ownership of Notes. Accordingly, U.S. Holders
should consult their own tax advisors regarding the applicability of the tax shelter regulations and the
consequences thereof, including, for instance, whether it is advisable to make annual protective filings.
Non-U.S. Holders
United States Income and Estate Tax Consequences
The following is a summary of certain material U.S. federal income and estate tax consequences that
may be applicable to Non-U.S. Holders of the Notes. This discussion does not deal with all aspects of U.S.
federal income and estate taxation that may be relevant to the purchase, ownership or disposition of the Notes
by a Non-U.S. Holder in light of his or her personal circumstances. This discussion also does not consider
holders of interests in pass through entities that hold the Notes nor any state or local tax consequences.
For purposes of the following discussion, interest (including OID) and gain on the sale, exchange or
other disposition of the Note will be considered ‘‘U.S. trade or business income’’ if such income or gain is (i)
effectively connected with the conduct of a U.S. trade or business and (ii) in the case of a treaty resident,
attributable to a permanent establishment (or to a fixed base) in the United States.
Interest and Original Issue Discount
Subject to the discussion below on information reporting and backup withholding, in general any
interest or OID paid to a Non-U.S. Holder of a Note that is not ‘‘U.S. trade or business income’’ will not be
subject to U.S. federal income tax.
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Sale of Notes
Subject to the discussion concerning information reporting and backup withholding, any gain realised
by a Non-U.S. Holder on the sale, exchange, redemption, or repayment of a Note generally will not be subject
to U.S. federal income tax, unless (i) such gain is U.S. trade or business income, (ii) the Non-U.S. Holder is an
individual who holds the Note as a capital asset, is present in the United States for 183 days or more in the
taxable year of the disposition and satisfies certain other requirements, or (iii) the Non-U.S. Holder is subject to
tax pursuant to the provisions of the Code applicable to certain U.S. expatriates.
United States Federal Estate Tax
Except in the case of certain U.S. expatriates, Notes held (or treated as held) by an individual who is a
Non-U.S. Holder at the time of his death will not be subject to United States federal estate tax.
Information Reporting and Backup Withholding
A Non-U.S. Holder generally will be exempt from backup withholding tax and information reporting
requirements, but may be required to comply with certification and identification procedures in order to
obtain an exemption from backup withholding tax and information reporting in certain circumstances. A NonU.S. Holder that fails to satisfy any applicable certification, documentation or identification procedures in
order to obtain an exemption from backup withholding tax may be subject to U.S. backup withholding tax at a
28 per cent. rate on interest (including OID) or principal paid on, and proceeds from a sale, exchange or other
disposition of, the Notes.
Any amounts withheld under the backup withholding tax rules from a payment to a Non-U.S. Holder
will be allowed as a refund or a credit against such Non-U.S Holder’s U.S. federal income tax liability, provided
that certain required information is furnished to the Service in a timely manner. Non-U.S Holders should
consult their tax advisors regarding the application of information reporting and backup withholding in their
particular situations, the availability of exemptions and the procedure for obtaining any available exemption.
2.

Portuguese Taxation

The following is a general summary based on tax laws of Portugal as in effect on the date of this Offering
Circular in relation to certain current relevant aspects to Portuguese taxation of payments made under the
Notes and is subject to changes in such laws, including changes that could have a retroactive effect. The
following summary is intended as a general guide only and is not exhaustive. It is not intended to be, nor
should it be considered to be, legal or tax advice to any holder of Notes. It does not take into account or discuss
the tax laws of any country other than Portugal and relates only to the position of persons who are absolute
beneficial owners of the Notes. Prospective investors are advised to consult their own tax advisers as to the
Portuguese or other tax consequences of the purchase, ownership and disposal of Notes.
The summary below in relation to Notes issued by BCP Finance or the Bank assumes that such Notes
would be treated by the Portuguese tax authorities as debt instruments such as corporate bonds (‘‘obrigações’’) as
defined under Portuguese law, but no assurance can be given that such position should be taken or maintained.
If the Portuguese tax authorities do not treat the Notes as debt instruments such as corporate bonds
(‘‘obrigações’’) no assurance can be given that the same tax regime described below would apply.
The reference to ‘‘interest’’, ‘‘other investment income’’ and ‘‘capital gains’’ in the paragraphs below
mean ‘‘‘‘, ‘‘interest’’, ‘‘other investment income’’ and ‘‘capital gains’’ as understood in Portuguese tax law. The
statements below do not take any account of any different definitions of ‘‘interest’’, ‘‘other investment income’’
or ‘‘capital gains’’ which may prevail under any other law or which may be created by the ‘‘Terms and
Conditions of the Notes’’ or any related documentation.
Payments made under the Notes issued by BCP Finance
Payments made by BCP Finance of interest, other investment income or principal on Notes issued by it
to an individual or legal person, either resident or non-resident in Portugal for tax purposes, are in general not
subject to Portuguese withholding tax. However, if the payment of interest or other investment income is made
available to Portuguese resident individuals through a Portuguese resident entity (specifically mandated or not)
they are subject to withholding tax at a current final rate of 20 per cent. unless an option for aggregation is
made in which case the withheld tax is creditable against the recipient’s final tax liability.
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Interest or other investment income derived from the Notes and capital gains realised with the transfer
of the Notes by legal person resident for tax purposes in Portugal and by foreign legal person with a permanent
establishment in Portugal to which the income or gains is attributable are included in their taxable results and
taxed in Portugal at the normal corporate tax rate of 25 per cent. plus a municipality surcharge (‘‘derrama’’) of a
maximum of 2.5 per cent resulting in a combined tax rate of up to 27.5 per cent.
Capital gains obtained by Portuguese tax resident individuals with the transfer of the Notes are excluded
from taxation for personal income tax purposes.
Capital gains realised on the transfer of a Note by a holder who is neither resident nor engaged in
business through a permanent establishment in Portugal to which that gain is attributable are not Portuguesesource income and therefore are not subject to Portuguese taxation.
Payments made under the Notes issued by the Bank acting through and within the legal framework of its Sucursal
Financeira Internacional in the Madeira zone
Under current Portuguese law, payments made under the Guarantee of the Bank, acting through and
within the legal framework of its Sucursal Financeira Internacional in the Madeira zone to a Noteholder who is an
individual non-resident in Portugal for tax purposes or a legal person non-resident and without a permanent
establishment in Portugal to which income is attributable, are not subject to any Portuguese income, capital
transfer, wealth, estate, gift, inheritance or other tax or duty. Noteholders should present proof of its
nonresident status in Portugal before the Bank under the terms of number 14 of article 33 of the Tax Incentives
Statue (‘‘Estatuto dos Benefı́cios Fiscais’’) to benefit from such exemption.
Interest paid on Notes issued by the Bank, acting through and within the legal framework of its
international Madeira branch (Sucursal Financeira Internacional), to individuals non-resident in Portugal for
tax purposes (or a legal person non-resident and without permanent establishment in Portugal to which the
income is attributable), where such interest arises from operations connected with the funding of balance sheet
liabilities of its Sucursal Financeira Internacional, is not subject to withholding tax.
Payments made under the Notes issued by the Bank acting other than through its international Madeira
branch (Sucursal Financeira Internacional) or BCP Finance
Portuguese Residents Noteholders and foreign corporate holders with a permanent establishment in Portugal to whom the
income or gains is attributable
Interest and other investment income are generally subject to a withholding tax at a current rate of
20 per cent. Among others, the Financial Institutions are exempt of withholding tax.
For legal person resident in Portugal or foreign legal person with a permanent establishment in Portugal
to which the income is attributable, the aggregate of the withholding tax will be included in the computation of
the taxable income of such persons, at a normal corporate rate of 25 per cent. plus a municipality surcharge
(‘‘derrama’’) of a maximum of 2.5 per cent resulting in a combined tax rate of up to 27.5 per cent.
For individual resident in Portugal, the withholding tax will be the final tax, unless an option for
aggregation is made in which case the withheld tax is creditable against the recipient’s final tax liability.
In the case of zero coupon Notes, the difference between the redemption value and the subscription
cost is regarded as investment income and is also subject to Portuguese individual income taxation.
Capital gains obtained by legal person resident in Portugal for tax purposes or foreign legal person with
a permanent establishment in Portugal to which the income is attributable with the transfer of the Notes are
subject to corporate income tax in general terms, currently at the normal corporate tax rate of 25 per cent. plus
a municipality surcharge (‘‘derrama’’) of a maximum of 2.5 per cent resulting in a combined tax rate of up to
27.5 per cent.
Capital gains obtained by individuals resident in Portugal for tax purposes with the transfer of the Notes
are excluded from taxation for personal income tax purposes.
Non-Resident Noteholders
Any payments of interest or other investment income made in respect of the Notes to Noteholders who
are not Portuguese residents for tax purposes and do not have a permanent establishment in Portugal to which
the income is attributable will be subject to withholding tax at a current definitive rate of 20 per cent., subject
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to the provisions of specific treaties for avoidance of double taxation, under which a reduced rate (of 10 per
cent., 12 per cent., or 15 per cent., depending on the applicable treaty) may be applicable.
The gains obtained on the disposal of Notes issued by the Bank by an individual not resident in
Portugal for tax purposes will not be subject to Portuguese capital gains taxation. Gains obtained on the
disposal of Notes issued by the Bank by a legal person non resident in Portugal and without permanent
establishment in Portugal to which the income is attributable will also not be subject to Portuguese capital gains
taxation provided that:
(a)

the share capital of the corporate holder is not more than 25 per cent. directly or indirectly held by
Portuguese resident entities; and

(b)

he holder is not resident in a country included in a list of countries and territories approved by the
Ministry of Finance of Portugal (‘‘black list’’ published by the Portuguese Government in Ministerial
order no. 150/2004 of 13th February, 2004).

If any of the above circumstances is met, such gains will be subject to taxation at a rate of 25 per cent.
subject to the provisions of specific treaties for the avoidance of double taxation under which such gains may
not be subject to taxation.
Special Tax Regime for Income derived from Debt Securities
Portuguese Decree-Law no 193/2005, of 7 November, 2005 approved a new ‘‘Special Tax Regime for
Income derived from Debt Securities’’, which will enter into force in 1 January, 2006. Under the new regime,
provided some formal legal requirements are met, income obtained by non-resident investors from Notes
issued directly by the Bank will be exempted from Portuguese personal and corporate income tax. However in
order to benefit from the regime the Notes must be integrated and settled in a centralised system for securities
recognised under the terms of the Portuguese Securities Code and complementary legislation. Currently
Euroclear and Clearstream Luxembourg are not so recognised.
3.

Cayman Islands Taxation

There are no income, corporation, capital gains or other direct taxes in effect in the Cayman Islands on
the basis of present legislation. BCP Finance has received an undertaking from the Governor in Council of the
Cayman Islands pursuant to the Tax Concessions Law of the Cayman Islands that, for a period of 20 years
from the date of the grant of the undertaking, no law enacted in the Cayman Islands imposing any tax to be
levied on profits, income or gains or appreciation shall apply to BCP Finance or its operations and no such tax
or any tax in the nature of the estate duty or inheritance tax shall be payable by BCP Finance on or in respect of
the shares, debentures, or other obligations of BCP Finance or by way of withholding in whole or in part of any
payment of dividend or other distribution of income or capital by BCP Finance to its members or any payment
of interest or principal or other sums due under a debenture or other obligation of BCP Finance.
4.

United Kingdom Taxation

The following is a summary of the Issuers’ understanding of current law and practice in the United
Kingdom relating to the withholding of tax from payments of principal and interest in respect of the
Notes. It applies only to persons who are the beneficial owners of the Notes. Some aspects do not apply to
certain classes of taxpayer (such as dealers). Prospective Noteholders who may be subject to tax in a
jurisdiction other than the United Kingdom or may be unsure as to their tax position should seek their
own professional advice.
Payments of interest on the Notes may be made without withholding on account of United Kingdom
income tax.
However, Noteholders who are individuals may wish to note that the HM Revenue & Customs has
power to obtain information (including the name and address of the beneficial owner of the interest) from any
person in the United Kingdom who either pays interest to or receives interest for the benefit of an individual,
or who either pays amounts payable on the redemption of Notes to or receives such amounts for the benefit of
an individual. Information so obtained may, in certain circumstances, be exchanged by the HM Revenue &
Customs with the tax authorities of jurisdiction in which the Noteholder is resident for tax purposes.
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5.

EU Savings Directive

Under the EC Council Directive 2003/48/EC on the taxation of savings income, Member States are
required, from 1st July, 2005, to provide to the tax authorities of another Member State details of payments of
interest (or similar income) paid by a person within its jurisdiction to an individual resident in that other
Member State. However, for a transitional period, Belgium, Luxembourg and Austria are instead required
(unless during that period they elect otherwise) to operate a withholding system in relation to such payments
(the ending of such transitional period being dependent upon the conclusion of certain other agreements
relating to information exchange with certain other countries). A number of non-EU countries and territories
including Switzerland have agreed to adopt similar measures (a withholding system in the case of Switzerland)
with effect from the same date.
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BOOK-ENTRY CLEARANCE PROCEDURES
The information set out below is subject to any change in or reinterpretation of the rules, regulations and procedures
of DTC, Clearstream, Luxembourg or Euroclear (together, the ‘‘Clearing Systems’’) currently in effect. Investors wishing to
use the facilities of any of the Clearing Systems are advised to confirm the continued applicability of the rules, regulations
and procedures of the relevant Clearing System. None of the Issuers, the Trustee or any agent party to the Agency
Agreement will have any responsibility or liability for any aspect of the records relating to or payments made on account of
beneficial ownership interests in the Notes held through the facilities of any Clearing System or for maintaining, supervising
or reviewing any records relating to such beneficial ownership interests.
Book-Entry Ownership of Registered Global Notes
The relevant Issuer will make application to DTC for acceptance in its book-entry settlement system of
each Tranche of Notes represented by a Reg. S Global Note and/or a Restricted Global Note, respectively.
The custodian with whom the Registered Global Notes are deposited (the ‘‘Custodian’’) and DTC will
electronically record the principal amount of the Notes represented by the Reg. S Global Note and the
Restricted Global Note, as the case may be, held within the DTC system. Prior to expiry of the Distribution
Compliance Period applicable to each Tranche of Notes, investors may hold their interests in the Reg. S Global
Note only through Clearstream, Luxembourg or Euroclear. Thereafter, investors may additionally hold such
interests directly through DTC if they are participants in such system (‘‘Direct Participants’’), or indirectly
through organisations which are participants in DTC (‘‘Indirect Participants’’). Clearstream, Luxembourg and
Euroclear will hold interests in the Reg. S Global Note on behalf of their accountholders through customers’
securities accounts in Clearstream, Luxembourg or Euroclear’s respective names on the books of their
respective depositaries, which in turn will hold such interests in the Reg. S Global Note in customers’ securities
accounts in the depositaries’ names on the books of DTC. Citibank, N.A. will initially act as depositary for
Clearstream, Luxembourg and Morgan Guaranty Trust Company of New York will act as depositary for
Euroclear. Investors may hold their interests in the Restricted Global Note directly through DTC if they are
Direct Participants, or indirectly through organisations which are Direct Participants in such system.
Payments of principal and interest in respect of Registered Global Notes registered in the name of
DTC’s nominee, will be to or to the order of its nominee as the registered holder of such Registered Global
Note. The relevant Issuer expects that the nominee will, upon receipt of any such payment, immediately credit
Direct Participants’ accounts with any such payments denominated in U.S. dollars in amounts proportionate to
their respective beneficial interests in the principal amount of the relevant Registered Global Note as shown on
the records of DTC or the nominee. In the case of any such payments which are denominated otherwise than
in U.S. dollars payment of such amounts will be made to the Exchange Agent on behalf of the nominee who
will make payment of all or part of the amount to the beneficial holders of interests in such Registered Global
Note directly, in the currency in which such payment was made and/or cause all or part of such payment to be
converted into U.S. dollars and credited to the relevant Direct Participant’s DTC account as aforesaid, in
accordance with instructions received from DTC. The relevant Issuer also expects that payments by Direct
Participants to owners of beneficial interests in such DTC Global Note held through such Direct Participants
will be governed by standing instructions and customary practices, as is now the case with securities held for the
accounts of customers registered in the names of nominees for such customers. Such payments will be the
responsibility of such Direct Participants. Neither the Issuers nor any agent will have any responsibility or
liability for any aspect of the records relating to or payments made on account of ownership interests in the
Registered Global Notes or for maintaining, supervising or reviewing any records relating to such ownership
interests.
Application will be made on behalf of the relevant Issuer to Clearstream, Luxembourg and Euroclear for
acceptance of each Tranche of Notes issued under the Programme in their respective book-entry system.
Transfers of Notes represented by Registered Global Notes
Transfers of interests in Registered Global Notes within DTC, Clearstream, Luxembourg and Euroclear
will be in accordance with the usual rules and operating procedures of the relevant system. The laws in some
states in the United States require that certain persons take physical delivery of securities in definitive form.
Consequently, the ability to transfer a beneficial interest in a Registered Global Note to such persons may
require that such interests be exchanged for Notes in definitive form. Because DTC can only act on behalf of
Direct Participants, who in turn act on behalf of Indirect Participants, the ability of a person having an interest
in a DTC Global Note to pledge such interest to persons or entities that do not participate in the DTC system,
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or otherwise take actions in respect of such interest may require that such interests be exchanged for Notes in
definitive form. The ability of the holder of a beneficial interest in any Registered Note represented by the
Registered Global Notes to resell, pledge or otherwise transfer such interest may also be impaired if the
proposed transferee of such interest is not eligible to hold the same through a Direct Participant or Indirect
Participant in DTC.
DTC has advised the Issuers that it is a limited purpose trust company organised under the laws of the
State of New York, a member of the United States Federal Reserve System, a ‘‘clearing corporation’’ within the
meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code and a ‘‘clearing agency’’ registered pursuant to Section
17A of the U.S. Securities Exchange Act of 1934. DTC holds securities that its Direct Participants deposit with
DTC. DTC also facilitates the settlement among Direct Participants of securities transactions, such as transfers
and pledges, in such securities through electronic book-entry changes in accounts of the Direct Participants,
thereby eliminating the need for physical movement of security certificates. Direct Participants include
securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations and certain other organisations.
DTC is owned by a number of its Direct Participants and by the New York Stock Exchange, Inc., the American
Stock Exchange, Inc. and the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc. Access to DTC is available to
others, such as securities brokers and dealers, banks and trust companies that clear through or maintain a
custodial relationship with a Direct Participant, either directly or indirectly. The rules applicable to DTC and
its Direct Participants are on file with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission.
DTC has advised the Issuers that it will take any action permitted to be taken by the holding of a
beneficial interest in a Registered Global Note (including, without limitation, the presentation of a Global Note
for exchange as described above) only at the direction of one or more Direct Participants to whose account with
DTC interests in such Registered Global Note are credited and only in respect of such portion of the aggregate
nominal amount of Notes in respect of which such Direct Participant or Participants has or have given such
direction. If an Event of Default under the Notes occurs, DTC will exchange the Registered Global Notes for
Notes in definitive form, legended as appropriate, which it will distribute to the relevant Direct Participants.
Bearer Notes held outside the United States may be held in book-entry form through Clearstream,
Luxembourg or Euroclear. Clearstream, Luxembourg and Euroclear will operate with respect to the Notes in
accordance with customary Euromarket practice.
Secondary Trading, Same-Day Settlement and Payment
All payments made by the relevant Issuer or the Guarantor with respect to Registered Notes registered in
the name of Cede & Co., as nominee for DTC, will be passed through to DTC in same-day funds. In relation
to secondary market trading, since the purchaser determines the place of delivery, it is important to establish at
the time of the trade where both the purchaser’s and seller’s accounts are located to ensure that settlement can
be made on the desired value date.
Trading Within Same Clearing System
Trading within DTC
If neither the seller, nor the purchaser of Registered Notes represented by any Registered Global Note
holds or will receive (as the case may be) such Notes through a Direct Participant in DTC acting on behalf of
Clearstream, Luxembourg or Euroclear, the trade will settle in same-day funds and in accordance with DTC
rules, regulations and procedures.
Trading within Clearstream, Luxembourg or Euroclear
Transfers between accountholders in Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg will be effected in the
ordinary way in accordance with their respective rules and operating procedures.
Trading Between Clearing Systems
Trading between Clearstream, Luxembourg or Euroclear seller and DTC purchaser involving only Registered Global Notes
Due to time zone differences in their favour, Clearstream, Luxembourg and Euroclear accountholders
may employ their customary procedures for transactions in which interests in a Registered Global Note are to
be transferred by Clearstream, Luxembourg or Euroclear (as the case may be) to a Direct Participant. The seller
will send instructions to Clearstream, Luxembourg or Euroclear through a Clearstream, Luxembourg or
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Euroclear accountholder (as the case may be) at least one business day prior to settlement. In these cases,
Clearstream, Luxembourg or Euroclear will instruct its respective depositary to deliver the interests in the
Registered Global Note to the Direct Participant’s account against payment. Payment will include interest (if
any) accrued on such interests in the Note from and including the immediately preceding date for the payment
of interest to and excluding the settlement date. The payment will then be reflected in the account of the
Clearstream, Luxembourg or Euroclear accountholder the following day, and receipt of cash proceeds in the
Clearstream, Luxembourg or Euroclear accountholder’s account would be back-valued to the value date (which
would be the preceding day when settlement occurred in New York). Should the Clearstream, Luxembourg or
Euroclear accountholder have a line of credit in its respective Clearing System and elect to be in debit in
anticipation of receipt of the sale proceeds in its account, the back-valuation will extinguish any overdraft
charges incurred over that one-day period. If settlement is not completed on the intended value date (i.e. the
trade fails), receipt of the cash proceeds in the Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg accountholder’s account
would be valued instead as of the actual settlement date.
Trading between DTC seller and Clearstream, Luxembourg or Euroclear purchaser involving only Registered Global Notes
When interests in a Registered Global Note are to be transferred from the account of a Direct
Participant to the account of a Clearstream, Luxembourg or Euroclear accountholder, the purchaser will send
instructions to Clearstream, Luxembourg or Euroclear through a Clearstream, Luxembourg or Euroclear
accountholder, as the case may be, at least one business day prior to settlement. Clearstream, Luxembourg or
Euroclear, as the case may be, will instruct its respective depositary to receive such interests against payment.
Payment will include interest (if any) accrued on such interests in the Registered Global Note from and
including the immediately preceding date for the payment of interest to and excluding the settlement date.
Payment will then be made by the depositary to the Direct Participant’s account against delivery of the interests
in the Note. After settlement has been completed, the interests will be credited to the respective Clearing
System, and by the Clearing System, in accordance with its usual procedures, to the Clearstream, Luxembourg
or Euroclear accountholder’s account. The securities credit will appear the next day (European time) and the
cash debit will be back-valued to, and any interests on the Note will accrue from, the value date (which would
be the preceding day when settlement occurred in New York). If settlement is not completed on the intended
value date (i.e. the trade fails), the Clearstream, Luxembourg or Euroclear cash debit will be valued instead as of
the actual settlement date.
Day traders that use Clearstream, Luxembourg or Euroclear to purchase interests in an Reg. S Global
Note from Direct Participants for delivery to Clearstream, Luxembourg or Euroclear accountholders should
note that these trades would automatically fail on the sale side unless affirmative action were taken. At least
three techniques should be readily available to eliminate this potential problem:
(i)

borrowing through Clearstream, Luxembourg or Euroclear for one day (until the purchase side
of the day trade is reflected in their Clearstream, Luxembourg or Euroclear accounts) in
accordance with the Clearing System’s customary procedures;

(ii)

borrowing the interests in the United States from a Direct Participant no later than one day prior
to settlement, which would give the interests sufficient time to be reflected in their Clearstream,
Luxembourg or Euroclear account in order to settle the sale side of the trade; or

(iii)

staggering the value date for the buy and sell sides of the trade so that the value date for the
purchase from the Direct Participant is at least one day prior to the value date for the sale to the
Clearstream, Luxembourg or Euroclear accountholder.

Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg accountholders will need to make available to the respective
Clearing System the funds necessary to process same-day funds settlement. The most direct means of doing so
is to pre- position funds for settlement, either from cash on-hand or existing lines of credit, as such Direct
Participants would for any settlement occurring within Clearstream, Luxembourg or Euroclear. Under this
approach, such Direct Participants may take on credit exposure to Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg until
the interests in the Note are credited to their accounts one day later.
Alternatively, if Clearstream, Luxembourg or Euroclear has extended a line of credit to a Clearstream,
Luxembourg or Euroclear accountholder, as the case may be, such accountholder may elect not to pre-position
funds and allow that credit line to be drawn upon to finance settlement. Under this procedure, Clearstream,
Luxembourg or Euroclear accountholders purchasing interests in the Note held in DTC would incur overdraft
charges for one day, assuming they cleared the overdraft when the interests in the Note were credited to their
accounts. However, any interest on the Note would accrue from the value date. Therefore, in many cases the
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investment income on the interests in the Note held in DTC earned during that one-day period may
substantially reduce or offset the amount of such overdraft charges, although this result will depend on each
accountholder’s particular cost of funds.
Since the settlement is taking place during New York business hours, Direct Participants can employ
their usual procedures for transferring interests in global Notes to the respective depositaries of Clearstream,
Luxembourg or Euroclear for the benefit of Clearstream, Luxembourg or Euroclear accountholders. The sale
proceeds will be available to the DTC seller on the settlement date. Thus, to the Direct Participants, a crossmarket transaction will settle no differently from a trade between Direct Participants.
Secondary trading in long-term notes and debentures of corporate issuers is generally settled in
clearinghouse or next-day funds. In contrast, Registered Notes held through Direct Participants or Indirect
Participants will trade in DTC’s Same-Day Funds Settlement System until the earliest of maturity or
redemption, and secondary market trading activity in such Registered Notes will therefore be required by DTC
to settle in immediately available funds. No assurance can be given as to the effect, if any, of settlements in
immediately available funds on trading activity in such Registered Notes.
Although DTC, Clearstream, Luxembourg and Euroclear have agreed to the foregoing procedures in
order to facilitate transfers of beneficial interests in the Registered Global Notes among Direct Participants and
accountholders of DTC, Clearstream, Luxembourg and Euroclear, they are under no obligation to perform or
continue to perform such procedures, and such procedures may be discontinued at any time. None of the
Issuers, any agent or any Dealer will have the responsibility for the performance by DTC, Clearstream,
Luxembourg or Euroclear or their respective Direct or Indirect Participants or accountholders of their
respective obligations under the rules and procedures governing their operations.
While a Registered Global Note is lodged with DTC or its custodian, Notes represented by individual
Definitive Notes will not be eligible for clearing or settlement through DTC, Clearstream, Luxembourg or
Euroclear.
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SUBSCRIPTION AND SALE AND TRANSFER RESTRICTIONS
The Programme Dealers, pursuant to an amended and restated dealer agreement dated 13th December,
2005 (as amended, restated or supplemented from time to time, the ‘‘Dealer Agreement’’), have agreed with
the Issuers on the terms upon which any one or more of the Programme Dealers may from time to time agree
to purchase (as principal, unless the applicable Final Terms states otherwise) Notes. Any such agreement will
extend to those matters stated under ‘‘Form of the Notes’’, ‘‘Form of the Final Terms’’ and ‘‘Terms and Conditions of
the Notes’’ above. In the Dealer Agreement, each Issuer, and in the event of default of such obligation by such
Issuer, the Bank (where the Issuer is BCP Finance), has agreed to reimburse the Programme Dealers for certain
of their expenses in connection with the establishment and any future update of the Programme and the issue
of Notes under the Programme. Each Issuer may also agree to issue Notes to Issue Dealers who shall enter into
the Dealer Agreement with such Issuer for the purpose only of a particular issue or issues of Notes under the
Programme on, and subject to, the terms of the Dealer Agreement. Dealers will be entitled in certain
circumstances to be released from their obligations under the Dealer Agreement in respect of the issue and
purchase of Notes under the Programme.
United States
The Notes have not been and will not be registered under the Securities Act and may not be offered or
sold within the United States or to, or for the account or benefit of, U.S. persons except in certain transactions
exempt from the registration requirements of the Securities Act.
(i)

Offers, sales, resales and other transfers of Notes made in the United States made or approved by a
Dealer (including in connection with secondary trading) shall be made with respect to Registered Notes
only and shall be effected pursuant to an exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities
Act.

(ii)

Offers, safes, resales and other transfers of Notes made in the United States will be made only to
(a) Institutional Accredited Investors that have executed and delivered to a Dealer the IAI Investment
Letter addressed to the relevant Issuer (and to the Bank, in the event the Issuer is BCP Finance)
substantially in the form set out in the Agency Agreement or/and (b) QIBs that are reasonably believed
to qualify as qualified institutional buyers (as therein defined) within the meaning of Rule 144A.

(iii)

Notes will be offered in the United States only by approaching prospective purchasers on an individual
basis. No general solicitation or general advertising will be used in connection with the offering of the
Notes in the United States.

(iv)

No sale of Notes in the United States to an Institutional Accredited Investor will be for less than
U.S.$250,000 principal amount and no Note will be issued in connection with such a sale in a smaller
principal amount. If such purchaser is a non-bank fiduciary acting on behalf of others, each person for
whom it is acting must purchase at least U.S.$250,000 principal amount of such Notes.

(v)

Each Registered Note (other than Reg. S Notes in definitive form) shall contain a legend in substantially
the following form:
‘‘THIS NOTE HAS NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE UNITED STATES SECURITIES ACT
OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE ‘‘SECURITIES ACT’’), OR ANY STATE SECURITIES LAWS.
NEITHER THIS NOTE NOR ANY INTEREST OR PARTICIPATION HEREIN MAY BE
REOFFERED, SOLD, ASSIGNED, TRANSFERRED, PLEDGED, ENCUMBERED OR OTHERWISE DISPOSED OF IN THE ABSENCE OF SUCH REGISTRATION OR UNLESS SUCH
TRANSACTION IS EXEMPT FROM, OR NOT SUBJECT TO, REGISTRATION.
THE HOLDER OF THIS NOTE BY ITS ACCEPTANCE HEREOF, ON ITS OWN BEHALF AND
ON BEHALF OF ANY ACCOUNT FOR WHICH IT IS PURCHASING THIS NOTE OR ANY
INTEREST OR PARTICIPATION HEREIN, AGREES THAT IT SHALL NOT OFFER, SELL OR
OTHERWISE TRANSFER SUCH NOTE OR ANY INTEREST OR PARTICIPATION HEREIN
EXCEPT TO, OR FOR THE ACCOUNT OR BENEFIT OF (A) THE ISSUER OR A DEALER
(AS DEFINED IN THE OFFERING CIRCULAR FOR THE NOTE), (B) A ‘‘QUALIFIED
INSTITUTIONAL BUYER’’ (AS DEFINED IN RULE 144A UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT),
(C) AN INSTITUTIONAL ‘‘ACCREDITED INVESTOR’’ (AS DEFINED IN RULE 501(a)(1), (2) OR
(3) UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT) AND THAT, PRIOR TO SUCH TRANSFER, SHALL HAVE
FURNISHED TO SUCH HOLDER AND TO THE ISSUER OF THIS NOTE A WRITTEN
CERTIFICATION CONTAINING CERTAIN REPRESENTATIONS AND AGREEMENTS RELATING TO THE RESTRICTIONS ON TRANSFER OF THIS NOTE (THE FORM OF WHICH
LETTER CAN BE OBTAINED FROM THE REGISTRAR AND THE TRANSFER AGENTS),

112

(D) OUTSIDE THE UNITED STATES IN AN OFFSHORE TRANSACTION WHICH MEETS THE
REQUIREMENTS OF RULE 904 UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT, (E) PURSUANT TO AN
EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT, OR (F) PURSUANT
TO ANY OTHER AVAILABLE EXEMPTION FROM THE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF
THE SECURITIES ACT. UPON ANY TRANSFER OF THIS NOTE OR ANY INTEREST OR
PARTICIPATION HEREIN PURSUANT TO CLAUSES (C), (D) OR (F), IN THE CASE OF
LEGENDED NOTES OR CLAUSES (B), (C) OR (F) IN THE CASE OF REG. S NOTES, THE
HOLDER WILL BE REQUIRED TO FURNISH TO THE ISSUER SUCH CERTIFICATIONS
(WHICH IN THE CASE OF TRANSFERS PURSUANT TO CLAUSES (C), (D) OR (F), IN THE
CASE OF LEGENDED NOTES OR CLAUSES (B), (C) OR (F) IN THE CASE OF REG. S NOTES,
CAN BE OBTAINED FROM THE REGISTRAR AND THE TRANSFER AGENTS), LEGAL
OPINIONS OR OTHER INFORMATION AS EITHER OF THEM MAY REASONABLY REQUIRE
TO CONFIRM THAT SUCH TRANSFER IS BEING MADE PURSUANT TO AN EXEMPTION
FROM, OR IN A TRANSACTION NOT SUBJECT TO, THE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS
OF THE SECURITIES ACT. THE HOLDER WILL ALSO BE REQUIRED TO DELIVER TO THE
TRANSFEREE OF THIS NOTE OR ANY INTEREST OR PARTICIPATION THEREIN A NOTICE
SUBSTANTIALLY TO THE EFFECT OF THIS LEGEND. ANY RESALE OR OTHER TRANSFER
OR ATTEMPTED RESALE OR OTHER TRANSFER OF THIS NOTE MADE OTHER THAN IN
COMPLIANCE WITH THE FOREGOING RESTRICTION SHALL NOT BE RECOGNISED BY
THE ISSUER, THE REGISTRAR, THE TRANSFER AGENTS OR ANY OTHER AGENT OF THE
ISSUER.’’
The legend endorsed on each Reg. S Global Note shall cease to apply after expiration of the
Distribution Compliance Period applicable thereto.
By its purchase of any Notes, each investor in the United States shall be deemed to have agreed to the
restrictions contained in any legend endorsed on the Note purchased by it (to the extent still applicable) and
each such purchaser shall be deemed to have represented to the relevant Issuer, the seller and the Dealer, if
applicable, that it is either (i) a QIB and is aware that the sale to it is being made in reliance on Rule 144A or
(ii) an Institutional Accredited Investor that is acquiring the Notes for its own account for investment and not
with a view to the distribution thereof. If it is acquiring any Notes for the account of one or more qualified
institutional buyers it represents that it has sole investment discretion with respect to each such account and
that it has full power to make the foregoing acknowledgements, representations and agreements on behalf of
each such account. Each investor (other than an investor in Reg. S Notes following expiration of the applicable
Distribution Compliance Period), by its purchase of any Notes, also agrees to deliver to the transferee of any
Note a notice substantially to the effect of the above legend.
Each prospective investor is hereby offered the opportunity to ask questions of, and receive answers
from, the relevant Issuer and the Dealers concerning the terms and conditions of the offering. Each prospective
investor acknowledges that (i) it has been afforded an opportunity to request from the Issuer and to review, and
it has received, all additional information considered by it to be necessary to verify the accuracy of the
information herein; (ii) it has not relied on any Dealer or any person affiliated with any Dealer in connection
with its investigation of the accuracy of the information contained in this Offering Circular or its investment
decision; and (iii) no person has been authorised to give any information or to make any representation
concerning the Issuer or the Notes other than those contained in this Offering Circular and, if given or made,
such other information or representation should not be relied upon as having been authorised by the Issuer or
any Dealer.
Pursuant to the Dealer Agreement, each Issuer has agreed to indemnify the Dealers against, or to
contribute to losses arising out of, certain liabilities, including liabilities under certain securities laws, in respect
of Notes of which it is the Issuer.
Bearer Notes are subject to U.S. tax law requirements and may not be offered, sold or delivered within
the United States or its possessions or to a United States person, except in certain transactions permitted by
U.S. tax regulations. Terms used in this paragraph have the meanings given to them by the U.S. Internal
Revenue Code and regulations thereunder.
Each Programme Dealer has represented and agreed and each further Programme Dealer or Issue Dealer
appointed under the Programme will be required to represent and agree that it will not offer or sell any Notes of
any Tranche (i) as part of their distribution at any time or (ii) otherwise until expiration of the Distribution
Compliance Period applicable to such Tranche issued prior to such determination, within the United States or
to, or for the account or benefit of, U.S. Persons, and it will have sent to each Dealer to which it sells Notes
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during the distribution compliance period a confirmation or other notice setting forth the restrictions on offers
and sales of the Notes within the United States to or, for the account or benefit of, U.S. Persons.
In addition, until expiration of the relevant Distributed Compliance Period, an offer or sale of Notes
within the United States by a dealer, including a dealer that is not participating in the offering, may violate the
registration requirements of the Securities Act.
Each issuance of Dual Currency or Indexed Linked Notes will be subject to such additional U.S. selling
restrictions as the relevant Issuer and the relevant Dealer(s) may agree, as indicated in the applicable
Final Terms. Each Programme Dealer has agreed and, if different, the relevant dealer in respect of each such
issue will be required to agree that it will offer, sell and deliver such Notes only in compliance with such
additional U.S. selling restrictions.
European Economic Area
In relation to each Member State of the European Economic Area which has implemented the
Prospectus Directive (each, a Relevant Member State), each Programme Dealer has represented and agreed, and
each further Programme Dealer or Issuer Dealer appointed under the Programme will be required to represent
and agree, that with effect from and including the date on which the Prospectus Directive is implemented in
that Relevant Member State (the Relevant Implementation Date) it has not made and will not make an offer of
Notes to the public in that Relevant Member State, except that it may, with effect from and including the
Relevant Implementation Date, make an offer of Notes to the public in that Relevant Member State:
(a)

in (or in Germany, where the offer starts within) the period beginning on the date of publication of a
prospectus in relation to those Notes which has been approved by the competent authority in that
Relevant Member State or, where appropriate, approved in another Relevant Member State and notified
to the competent authority in that Relevant Member State, all in accordance with the Prospectus
Directive and ending on the date which is 12 months after the date of such publication;

(b)

at any time to legal entities which are authorised or regulated to operate in the financial markets or, if
not so authorised or regulated, whose corporate purpose is solely to invest in securities;

(c)

at any time to any legal entity which has two or more of (1) an average of at least 250 employees during
the last financial year; (2) a total balance sheet of more than E43,000,000 and (3) an annual net turnover
of more than E50,000,000, as shown in its last annual or consolidated accounts; or

(d)

at any time in any other circumstances which do not require the publication by the Issuer of a
prospectus pursuant to Article 3 of the Prospectus Directive.

For the purposes of this provision, the expression an ‘‘offer of Notes to the public’’ in relation to any
Notes in any Relevant Member State means the communication in any form and by any means of sufficient
information on the terms of the offer and the Notes to be offered so as to enable an investor to decide to
purchase or subscribe the Notes, as the same may be varied in that Member State by any measure
implementing the Prospectus Directive in that Member State and the expression Prospectus Directive means
Directive 2003/71/EC and includes any relevant implementing measure in each Relevant Member State.
United Kingdom
Each Programme Dealer has represented and agreed, and each further Programme Dealer or Issue
Dealer appointed under the Programme will be required to represent and agree, that:
(a)

in relation to any Notes issued by BCP Finance which have a maturity of less than one year, (i) it is a
person whose ordinary activities involve it in acquiring, holding, managing or disposing of investments
(as principal or agent) for the purposes of its business and (ii) it has not offered or sold and will not offer
or sell any Notes other than to persons whose ordinary activities involve them in acquiring, holding,
managing or disposing of investments (as principal or as agent) for the purposes of their businesses or
who it is reasonable to expect will acquire, hold, manage or dispose of investments (as principal or
agent) for the purposes of their businesses where the issue of the Notes would otherwise constitute a
contravention of Section 19 of the FSMA by BCP Finance;

(b)

it has only communicated or caused to be communicated and will only communicate or cause to be
communicated an invitation or inducement to engage in investment activity (within the meaning of
Section 21 of the FSMA) received by it in connection with the issue of any Notes in circumstances in
which Section 21(1) of the FSMA does not or, in the case of the Guarantor, would not, if it was not an
authorised person, apply to the Issuer or the Guarantor; and
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(c)

it has complied and will comply with all applicable provisions of the FSMA with respect to anything
done by it in relation to any Notes in, from or otherwise involving the United Kingdom.

The Cayman Islands
Each Programme Dealer has represented and agreed, and each further Programme Dealer or Issue Dealer
appointed under the Programme will be required to represent and agree, that no invitation will be made to the
public in the Cayman Islands to purchase any Notes, whether directly or indirectly.
Portugal
Each Programme Dealer has represented and agreed, and each further Programme Dealer or Issue
Dealer appointed under the Programme will be required to represent and agree, that the Offering Circular has
not been and will not be registered with the Portuguese Securities Exchange Commission (‘‘Comissa˜o do
Mercado de Valores Mobilia´rios’’) and therefore the Notes may not be and will not be offered to the public in
Portugal under circumstances which are deemed to be a public offer under the Portuguese Securities Code
(Co´digo dos Valores Mobilia´rios) enacted by Decree Law no. 486/99 of 13 November, 1999 unless the
requirements and provisions applicable to the public offerings in Portugal are met and the above mentioned
registration is made. In addition no offering materials have been or will be publicly distributed in Portugal and
no publicity or marketing activities related to the Notes have been or will be conducted in Portugal unless the
requirements and provisions applicable to the public offerings in Portugal are met and the above mentioned
registration is made.
Japan
The Notes have not been and will not be registered under the Securities and Exchange Law of Japan
(the ‘‘Securities and Exchange Law’’) and each Programme Dealer has agreed, and each further Programme
Dealer or Issue Dealer appointed under the Programme will be required to agree, that it will not offer or sell any
Notes, directly or indirectly, in Japan or to, or for the benefit of, any resident of Japan (which term as used
herein means any person resident in Japan, including any corporation or other entity organised under the laws
of Japan), or to others for re-offering or resale, directly or indirectly, in Japan or to a resident of Japan except
pursuant to an exemption from the registration requirements of, and otherwise in compliance with, the
Securities and Exchange Law and any other applicable laws, regulations and ministerial guidelines of Japan.
General
Each Programme Dealer has agreed, and each further Programme Dealer or Issue Dealer appointed
under the Programme will be required to agree, that it will (to the best of its knowledge and belief) comply with
all applicable securities laws and regulations in force in any jurisdiction in which it purchases, offers, sells or
delivers Notes or possesses or distributes this Offering Circular and will obtain any consent, approval or
permission required by it for the purchase, offer, sale or delivery by it of Notes under the laws and regulations
in force in any jurisdiction to which it is subject or in which it makes such purchases, offers, sales or deliveries
and neither the Issuers nor any Dealer shall have any responsibility therefor.
Neither the Issuers nor any Dealer represents that Notes may at any time lawfully be sold in compliance
with any applicable registration or other requirements in any jurisdiction, or pursuant to any exemption
available thereunder, or assumes any responsibility for facilitating such sale.
With regard to each Tranche, the relevant Dealer will be required to comply with such other additional
restrictions as the relevant Issuer and such Dealer shall agree and as shall be set out in the applicable
Final Terms.
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GENERAL INFORMATION
Authorisation
The establishment and update of the Programme and the giving of the Guarantee have been duly
authorised by resolutions of the Board of Directors of the Bank dated 3rd September, 1998, 9th November,
1999, 20th November, 2000, 7th December, 2001, 16th December, 2002, 14th November, 2003,
12th November, 2004 and 7th December, 2005 and the increase in the Programme limit was authorised by
resolutions of the Board of Directors of the Bank dated 9th November, 1999, 20th November, 2000, 7th
December, 2001, 14th November, 2003, 12th November, 2004 and 7th December, 2005. The Board of
Directors of BCP Finance duly authorised the establishment and update of the Programme and the issue of
Notes under the Programme by resolutions dated 7th October, 1998, 11th November, 1999, 24th November,
2000, 17th December, 2001, 17th December, 2002, 19th November, 2003, 19th November, 2004 and
12th December, 2005, and the increase in the Programme by resolutions dated 11th November, 1999, 24th
November, 2000, 17th December, 2001, 19th November, 2003, 19th November, 2004 and 12th December,
2005.
Listing of Notes
The admission of Notes to the Official List will be expressed as a percentage of their nominal amount
(excluding accrued interest). It is expected that each Tranche of Notes which is to be admitted to the Official
List and to trading on the London Stock Exchange’s Gilt Edged and Fixed Interest Market will be admitted
separately as and when issued, subject only to the issue of the relevant Note or Notes in global and/or
definitive form initially representing the Notes of such Tranche. Application has been made to the UK Listing
Authority for the Notes issued under the Programme to be admitted to the Official List and to the London
Stock Exchange for such Notes to be admitted to trading on the London Stock Exchange’s Gilt Edged and
Fixed Interest Market. The listing of the Programme in respect of Notes is expected to be granted on or around
16th December, 2005.
Documents Available
For the period of 12 months, following the date of this Offering Circular, copies of the following
documents will, when published, be available throughout the life of the Programme from the registered office
of each of the Issuers and from the specified office of the Paying Agents:
(i)

the constitutional documents (in English) of each Issuer;

(ii)

the published audited consolidated financial statements of the Banco Comercial Português Group in
English and auditors’ report contained in the Bank’s Annual Report for the two financial years ended
31 December, 2004;

(iii)

the published unaudited consolidated financial statements of the Banco Comercial Português Group
for the six months ended, and as at 30th June, 2005;

(iv)

the most recently available audited consolidated financial statements of the Banco Comercial Português
Group contained in the Bank’s Annual Report and the most recently available published interim
statements of the Bank;

(v)

the published audited financial statements of BCP Finance in English and auditors’ report contained in
BCP Finance’s Annual Report for the two financial years ended 31 December, 2004 and the most
recently available unaudited interim financial statements of BCP Finance (if any);

(vi)

the Dealer Agreement, the Agency Agreement and the Trust Deed containing the forms of Temporary
Bearer Global Notes, Permanent Bearer Global Notes, Reg. S Global Notes, Restricted Global Notes,
Notes in definitive form, Receipts, Coupons and Talons from time to time issuable under the
Programme;

(vii)

copy of this Offering Circular;

(viii)

any future offering circulars, information memoranda and supplements (excluding the Final Terms in
connection with Notes not listed on any stock exchange to this Offering Circular and any other
documents incorporated herein or therein by reference; and

(ix)

in the case of a syndicated issue of Notes admitted to trading on the Gilt Edged and Fixed Interest
Market, the syndication agreement (or equivalent document).

116

Clearing Systems
The Bearer Notes have been accepted for clearance through Clearstream, Luxembourg and Euroclear.
The appropriate common code and ISIN for each Tranche of Bearer Notes allocated by Clearstream,
Luxembourg and Euroclear will be specified in the applicable Final Terms. In addition, the relevant Issuer will
make an application for any Registered Notes to be accepted for trading in book-entry form by DTC. The
CUSIP and/or CINS numbers for each Tranche of Registered Notes, together with the relevant ISIN and
common code, will be specified in the applicable Final Terms. If the Notes are to clear through an additional or
alternative clearing system the appropriate information will be specified in the applicable Final Terms.
The address of Euroclear is Euroclear Bank SA/NV, 1 Boulevard du Roi Albert II, B-1210 Brusssels and
the address of Clearstream, Luxembourg is Clearstream Banking, 42 Avenue JF Kennedy, L-1855 Luxembourg.
Significant or Material Change
Save as disclosed in the ‘‘Recent Developments – Developments since 30th September, 2005’’ section
on page 79 of this Offering Circular, there has been no significant change in the financial or trading position of
the Banco Comercial Português Group since 30th September 2005.
There has been no significant change in the financial or trading position of BCP Finance since 30th
September, 2005.
There has been no material adverse change in the financial position or prospects of either Issuer or the
Banco Comercial Português Group since the date of the last audited annual accounts, 31 December, 2004.
Litigation
There are no, nor have there been any governmental, legal or arbitration proceedings (including any
such proceedings which are pending or threatened of which either Issuer is aware) which may have or have had
during the 12 months before the date of this document a significant effect on the consolidated financial
position or profitability of either of the Issuers or the Banco Comercial Português Group.
Auditors
The consolidated financial statements of the Banco Comercial Português Group for each of the two
financial years ended 31 December, 2003 and 31 December, 2004 were prepared in accordance with local
GAAP. The financial statements of the Banco Comercial Português Group were audited in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing for each of the two years ended 31 December, 2003 and 31 December,
2004 by KPMG & Associados, SROC, SA independent certified public accountants.
The financial statements of BCP Finance for each of the two financial years ended 31 December, 2003
and 31 December, 2004 were prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and
audited in accordance with International Standards on Auditing by KPMG independent certified public
accountants.
The Trust Deed provides that the Trustee may rely on certificates or reports from the Auditors or any
other expert or other person in accordance with the provisions of the Trust Deed whether or not any such
certificate or report or any engagement letter or other document entered into by the Trustee and the Auditors
or any other expert or other person in connection therewith contains any limit on the liability of the Auditors
or any other expert or other person.
Dealers transacting with the Issuer and the Bank
Certain of the Dealers and their affiliates have engaged, and may in the future engage, in investment
banking and/or commercial banking transactions with, and may perform services to the Issuer, the Bank and
their affiliates in the ordinary course of business.
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REGISTERED OFFICE OF BCP FINANCE

REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE BANK

BCP Finance Bank, Ltd.
Strathvale House
3rd Floor
90 North Church Street
PO Box 30124 SMBGeorge Town
Grand Cayman
Cayman Islands

Banco Comercial Português, S.A.
Praça Dom João I, 28
4000-434 Porto

TRUSTEE
The Law Debenture Trust Corporation p.l.c.
Fifth Floor
100 Wood Street
London EC2V 7EX

AGENT
Citibank, N.A.
5 Carmelite Street
London EC4Y 0PA

PAYING AGENTS AND TRANSFER AGENTS
Citibank, N.A.
5 Carmelite Street
London EC4Y 0PA
Dexia Banque Internationale à Luxembourg
69 route d’Esch
L-2953 Luxembourg

REGISTRAR AND EXCHANGE AGENT
Citibank, N.A.
111 Wall Street
New York, 10043
New York
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LEGAL ADVISERS
To the Dealers and the Trustee as to English law
Allen & Overy LLP
One New Change
London EC4M 9QQ

To the Issuers as to Cayman Islands law
Stuarts Walker Hersant
Cayman Financial Centre
PO Box 2510 GT
Grand Cayman
Cayman Islands
British West Indies

To the Issuers as to Portuguese law
Morais Leitão, Galvão Teles, Soares da Silva &
Associados, RL
R. Castilho, 75
1250-068 Lisboa

To the Issuers as to US law
Dorsey & Whitney LLP
250 Park Avenue
New York
New York 10177

AUDITORS OF THE BANK

AUDITORS OF BCP FINANCE

KPMG & Associados, SROC, SA
Edificio Monumental
Av. Praia da Vitoria 71 - A, 11º
1069-006 Lisboa

KPMG
PO Box 493
George Town
Grand Cayman

ARRANGER
UBS Limited
1 Finsbury Avenue
London EC2M 2PP
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DEALERS
ABN AMRO Bank N.V.
250 Bishopsgate
London EC2M 4AA

Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A.
Ciudad Grupo Santander
Avenida de Boadilla, s/n
28660 Boadilla del Monte
Madrid

Banco Millennium bcp
Investimento, S.A.
Av. José Malhoa, Lote 1686
1070-157 Lisboa

Bear, Stearns International Limited
One Canada Square
London E14 5AD

BNP PARIBAS
10 Harewood Avenue
London NW1 6AA

Banco Caboto s.p.a.
Via Boito, 7
20121 Milano

Citigroup Global Markets Limited
Citigroup Centre
Canada Square
Canary Wharf
London E14 5LB

Deutsche Bank AG London
Winchester House
1 Great Winchester Street
London EC2N 2DB

J.P. Morgan Securities Ltd.
125 London Wall
London EC2Y 5AJ

Lehman Brothers International (Europe)
25 Bank Street
Canary Wharf
London E14 5LE

Merrill Lynch International
Merrill Lynch Financial Centre
2 King Edward Street
London EC1A 1HQ

Morgan Stanley & Co. International Limited
25 Cabot Square
Canary Wharf
London E14 4QA
UBS Limited
1 Finsbury Avenue
London EC2M 2PP
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